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John Fisbeck - CEO

Since our founding in 2000, Fortune Industries has been committed to driving growth in businesses that are
poised for significant long-term growth. Our fiscal 2006 was no different with our completion of one start-up
operation and two acquisitions in the wireless infrastructure and electronics integration fields. As a result, four out
of five of our segments reported all-time record fiscal year revenues, and all five segments outperformed prior year
revenue and earnings results. Organic revenue growth increased approximately $35 million or 29%. Earnings were
up $4.1 million, or 181% from fiscal 2005. This growth was the result of several key initiatives:

Within our Wireless Infrastructure Services, our combination of marketing services under the Fortune Wireless
name brand instead of our five niche-market operations has allowed us to shift our sales efforts from sub-

- contractor niche markets to nationwide turn-key wireless infrastructure services. We believe our investments
related to our hiring, training, geographic expansion and equipment expenditures over the past few years will
enable us to increase market share with existing customers and procure new customers and contracts with the
continued growth in the build-out and upgrades of the wireless networks in the United States.

Within our Business Solutions segment, our acquisition of CSMin Nashville, Tennessee in fiscal 2005 has allowed us
to expand service offerings in addition to our payroll services, including human resource outsourcing, employ-
ment training and testing. We expect to allocate additional capital resources to this segment over the next twelve
to twenty four months to fund growth efforts.

Our Transportation Infrastructure segment has benefited from funding of federal and state highway safety proj-
ects, market conditions and commercial steel erection. We expect continued growth in our Ultraviolet Technolo-
gies segment operations as a result of the significant investment in research and development of new products.
We will continue to push sales efforts in the Asian markets, largely due to our investment and expansion of our
Singapore and new China offices. Our Electronics Integration segment has benefited from expanded vendor
relationships, improved economic conditions, and investments in management. We expect to realize the value of
_our start-up operations in this segment over the next twelve months.

With our strategic position across multiple industries and strengthening of our balance sheet, | feel we are poised
for cantinued growth and long-term earnings consistency as a result of our industry segments, growth in the
world-economy, and experienced management team. Our strategy has been and continues to be to operate busi-
nesses that present consistent long-term growth opportunities, which may include strategic acquisitions that

~expand our core offerings. We will look to continue to drive incremental revenue and earnings growth, which we
believe will create long-term benefits for the Company and our shareholders.

As always, our success is dependent on the strong individuals and management teams that share in our vision for
the Company. Thank you for your interest and dedication to Fortune Industries and its subsidiaries. | look forward
ta aur future success. ~ 7]
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As of February 28, 2006, the last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter, the aggrcgate ! "
market value of the registrant’s Common Stock and Preferred Stock held by non-affiliates, based upon the closing price per share
for the registrant’s common stock as reported on the American Stock Exchange, was approximately $7.6 million.

The number of shares of the registrant’s Common Stock, outstanding as of November 28, 2006 was 10,524,722, The number of i
shares of the registrant’s Preferred Stock, outstanding as of November 28, 2006 was 66,180. | :.

For the purpose of calculating the aggregate market value of the Company’s Common Stock held by non-affiliates,
the Company utilized the definition of “affiliates” provided by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. In applying that |U
definition, the Company has considered all individual members.of the “Control Group” as designated in the
Schedule 13D filed by the Company on August 7; 2000 and+on- any-amendmentsltheretmtoIbe;aff' liatesqasywelliasiall
then current directors and executive officers. As used for purposes of determining the aggregate market value of the
Voting Common Stock held by non-affiliates, “beneficial ownership™ of securities means the sole or shared power to
vote, or to direct the voting of, such securities, or the sole or shared investment power with respect to such '
securities, including the power to dispose of, or to direct the disposition of, such securities. In addition, for purposes
of this calculation, a person is deemed to have beneficial ownership of any sccurity that such person had the right to
acquire within 60 days after February 28, 2006. The Company then multiplied the beneficial ownership of the non-
affiliates by the closing price of the Company’s Comimon Stock, as of the date stated above, to derive the market

value, or ‘float.’
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

PART I1I - Portions of the registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement relating to the 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of
Fortune Industries, Inc., expected to be held January 9, 2007, are incorporated herein by reference in Part II1 of this Form 10-K.
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~ and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this 10-K report.

PARTI

Item 1. Business

General

Fortune Industries, Inc. (formerly known as Fortune Diversified Industries, Inc.) is a holding company of various !

product and service entities which operate in diverse market segments. The terms “we”, “our”, “us”, “the L
Company”, and “management” as used herein refers to Fortune Industries, Inc. and its subsidiaries unless the s~ s .. Sy
context otherwise requires. We provide a variety of services and products for selected market scgments, which ar¢

classified under five operating segments, Wireless Infrastructure, Business Solutions, Transportation Infrastructure,

Ultraviolet Technologies and Electronics Integration. We have expanded services offered within certain segments|

which has necessitated that we change from three to five reporting segments. We have restated segment information

for earlier periods in connection with the new reporting segments in the Notes to- Consolidated Financial Statements

We have historically invested in businesses that we believe to be undervalued, underperforming, and /or poised for
significant growth, Management’s strategic focus is to support the revenues and earnings growth of its operations
by creating synergies that can be leveraged to enhance the performance of our entities and investing capital to fund
expansion, Additionally, we continually seek and evaluate strategic acquisitions that expand core offerings and

drive incremental revenue and carnings growth,
|

L

Our operations are largely decentralized from the corporate office. Autonomy is given to subsidiary entities, and
there are few integrated business functions (i.e. sales, marketing, purchasing and human resources). Day-to-day
operating decisions are made by subsidiary management teams. Our Corporate management team assists in
operational decisions when deemed necessary, selects subsidiary presidents and handles capital allocation among
our operations.

We were incorporated in the state of Delaware in 1988, restructured in 2000 and redomesticated to the state of
[ndiana in May 2005. Prior to 2001, we conducted business mainly in the entertainment industry. Effective
September 1, 2005,we were no longer eligible as a small business reporter on Form 10-KSB under Regulation S-B
and instead became subject to the reporting requirements on Form 10-K under Regulation S-K. A description of our
operating segments is as follows:

Wireless Infrastructure Segment

We have invested in wireless infrastructure businesses since July 2001, and have completed six acquisitions
primarily related to infrastructure products and service offerings related to the development, marketing,
management, maintenance and upgrading of wireless telecommunications sites. While services are still offered
under certain subsidiaries, in Novemnber 2005 we began marketing the consolidated services of these subsidiaries
under the Fortune Wireless name brand to promote our ‘turn-key” service offerings whereby we assist with multiple
areas of wireless infrastructure under integrated contracting arrangements. Turn-key services include site
acquisition, engineering, architecture and design, construction management, and technical consulting.

Site Acquisition
Site acquisition services are performed for the wireless telecommunications industry and include program
management, site leasing, land use planning, architectural & engineering design, construction management, co-

location facilitation, environmental services, lease renegotiation, site marketing and asset management.

Engineering, Architecture and Design

Engineering, architecture and design services are performed for the wireless, telecommunications, real estate
development, municipal, and petroleam industries. The telecommunications industry includes cellular, personal
communication services (PCS), specialized mobile radio (SMR), enhanced specialized mobile radio (ESMR),
microwave systems, fixed wireless, broadband and fiber optics technologies for carriers, tower consolidators and
utilities. Services also include structural analysis and design of improvements to telecommunications towers, the




structural design and analysis of buildings, commercial and residential land development projects, including re-
zoning of properties,

Construction Management

Construction management is performed for the telecommunications industry, primarily consisting of developing and
upgrading wireless networks for wireless carriers. Services include program and construction management,
electrical, foundation, tower installations, antennae and line installations.

Technical Consulting

Technical consulting services are performed for wireless equipment manufacturers and service providers including
switch and radio base station engineering, Services include site, survey, delivery, installation and integration for the
implementation of end user equipment offered by a wide range of wirgless equipment manufacturers,

[ e o .
Subsidiaries operating in the Wireless Infrastructure segment include Fortune Wireless, Inc. (Fortune Wireless),
PDH, Inc. (PDH), Magtech Services, Inc. (Magtech), Cornerstone Wireless Construction Services, Inc. (Comerstone
Construction), Innovative Telecommunications Consultants, Inc, (ITC), and James Westbrook & Associates, LLC
(JWA).

The principal products and services rendered by the segment accounted for 18% or our consolidated revenues in
fiscal year 2006, 13% of our consolidated revenues in 2005, and 9% of our consolidated revenues in 2004.

Customers and Backlog

Four customers accounted for 65% of revenues in the Wireless Infrastructure segment in fiscal year 2006. While not
maternial to the consolidated Company, the loss of any of these customers could have a material adverse effect on the
segment. Our wireless infrastructure operations are primarily focused in the central United States, though a number
of contracts are performed outside of that region or on a national basis. Revenues and operating results may be
subject to seasonal variations due mainly to weather and customer spending patterns. Qur revenues are typically
greatest in our first, third and fourth quarters. Revenues are lowest in the second quarter due to adverse weather
conditions, which may cause delays. Additionally, our volume of revenues and operating results may be highly
cyclical as a result of changes in geographic spending habits and the financial condition of our customers and their
access to capital,

As of August 31, 2000, the Wireless Infrastructure segment backlog was approximately $5.3 million, and
management currently anticipates completing backlog orders by August 31, 2007. Management defines backlog as
the value of work to be done where the following conditions are met: (i) the price of the work to be done is fixed;
(i1} the scope of the work (both in definition and amount) to be done is fixed (i.e. the number of sites has been
determined); and (iii) there is a written contract, purchase order, agreement or other documentary evidence which
represents a firm commitment by the customer to pay us for the work to be performed. These backlog amounts may
not result in actual receipt of revenue in the originally anticipated period or at all. We have experienced variances in
the realization of our backlog because of project delays or cancellations resulting from external market factors and
economic factors beyond our control and we may experience such delays or cancellations in the future.

Competition

The wireless infrastructure industry is highly competitive and fragmented, requiring substantial resources and skilled
and experienced personnel. Several competitors are large companies that have greater capital resources, larger
customer bases, and more established industry relationships than we do. Additionally, there are numerous regional
competitors. There are relatively few barriers to entry and, as a result, any organization that has adequate financial
resources and access to technical expertise may become a competitor.

A significant portion of the Wireless Infrastructure segment’s revenues is derived from direct bidding on projects as
well as unit price agreements, and price is often an important factor in the award of such business and agreements.
Accordingly, we could be underbid by our competitors in an effort by them to procure such business. We believe




that as demand for our products and services increases, customers will increasingly consider other factors in
choosing a provider, including technical expertise and experience, industry reputation and dependability. We believe
that the Company will benefit when these factors are considered. There can be no assurance, however, that our
competitors will not develop the expertise, experience and resources to provide products and services that are
superior in both price and quality to our producis and services, or that we will be able to maintain or enhance our
competitive position,

Government Regulation

Operations are subject to various federal, state and iocal laws and regulations including licensing requirements

applicable to architects, electricians, engincers and other professionals; permitting and inspection requirements

applicable to construction projects; and regulations relating to worker safety and environmental protection. Wcﬂrm
also indirectly subject to Federal Communication Commission regulations and requirements related to our

association with wireless networks.

Business Solutions Segment

The Business Solutions segment provides full-service human resource services through professional employment
organization (PEQ) relationships. Business Sclutions services are performed by Professional Staff Management,
Inc. and subsidiaries (PSM), CSM, Inc, and subsidiaries (CSM) and related entitics. PSM was acquired in October
2003 and CSM was acquired in April 2005 and arc among the nation’s oldest PEOs, and arc recognized lcaders in
outsourced human resource services. Our PEOs provide services typically managed by a company’s internal human
resources and accounting departments, including payroll and tax processing and management, worker’s
compensation and risk management, benefits administration, unemployment administration, human resource
compliance services, 401k and retirement plan administration and employee assessments. Clients represent a wide
varicty of industries from healthcare, professional services, manufacturing logistics, telemarketing to blue collar _
services, Combined, these organizations provide co-employment services to over 7,800 employees in 44 states, ot

The principal services rendered by the segment accounted for 28% of our consclidated revenues in fiscal year 2006,
25% of our consolidated revenues in 2005, and 27% of our consolidated revenues in 2004,

Customers

Management’s focus is on providing PEO services to small and medium-sized businesses with 10 to 1,000
employees. Our customer base is diverse with no significant customer or group of customers. While worksite
employees are located throughout the majority of the United States, our client operations are primarily
headquartered in Indiana or Tennessee.

Competition

We compete with other PEOs, third party payroll processing and human resource consulting companies, and in-
house human resource divisions. The PEO industry is highly fragmented between local, regional and national PEO
operators.

Vendor Relationships

We provide benefits to worksite employees under arrangements with a variety of vendors. We provide health
insurance coverage to our worksite employees through a partially self-funded plan using AIG (“AIG™) and other
health networks, and through a fully-insured plan using Healthspring, Inc. (“Healthspring™) and various other fully
insured policies or service contracts. Under the partially self-funded policy with AIG, we are liable for the first
$£180,000 of claims per individual, while AIG is liable for all excess claims. There is an additional limit for
aggregate claims incurred based on the number of participants in the plan. The policy with Healthspring is a fully
insured plan. We provide workers compensation coverage to our worksite employees through Wausau Insurance.
(“Wausau”). Under the partially self-funded policy with Wausau, we are liable for the first $250,000 of claims per
occurrence, while Wausau 1s liable for all excess claims.




Government Regulation

Operations are subject to various federal, statc and local laws and regulations including federal regulations relating
to various employee benefit plans including 401 (k) plans, cafeteria plans, group health plans, welfare benefit plans
and health care flexible spending plans; local, state and federal reguiations relating to employment taxes including
withholding of income tax, obligations under the Federal Income Contribution Act (“FICA™), the Federal
Unemployment Tax Act (“FUTA”), state unemployment and related tax reporting and remittance; compliance with
COBRA, HIPAA and ERISA {for employee benefit plans sponsored solely by the Company and/or its subsidiaries ).

Additionally, certain states have varying regulations regarding licensing, registration or certification requirements
for PEQs.

Transportation Infrastructure Segment

The Transporiation Infrastructure segment assists customers with the development, maintenance and upgrading of
transportation infrastructure and commercial construction projects. Transportation infrastructure products and
services are performed by the James H. Drew Corp. and subsidiaries (JH Drew). JH Drew was acquired in April
2004 and has been operating over fifty years servicing contractors and state departments of transportation
throughout the Midwestern United States. JH Drew is a leading specialty contractor in the field of transportation
infrastructure, including guardrail, electrical components, and the fabrication and installation of structural steel for
commercial buildings.

The principal i)roducts and services rendered by the segment accounted for 37% or our consolidated revenues in
fiscal year 2006, 41% of our consolidated revenues in 2005, and 26% of our consolidated revenues in 2004.
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Customers and Backlog -

.
Three customers accounted for 11% of revenues in the Transportation Infrastructure segment in fiscal year 2006,
While not material to the consolidated Company, the loss of any of these customers could have a material adverse
effect on the segment. Revenues and operating results may be subject to seasonal variations due mainly to weather
and customer spending patterns. Our revenucs are typically greatest in our first, third and fourth quarters. Revenues
are lowest in the second quarter due to the nature of the construction industry and due to adverse weather conditions,
which may cause delays. Additionally, our volume of revenues and operating results may be highly cyclical as a
result of changes in federal and state funding of highway construction projects.

The Transportation Infrastructure segment backlog was approximately $34.5 million and $23.0 million at August 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company currently anticipates completing the majority of the backlog orders by
August 31, 2007.

Muaterials

We purchase materials, including guardrail and other components, that are contingent upon commodity pricing.
Certain of our materials are purchased from a limited number of sources; however, we do not anticipate
experiencing any difficulties in procuring these materials. The prices of these commodities have been subject to
volatility in previous years and this trend 1s expected to continue.

Competition . . t

The transportation infrastructure markets in which we operate are highly competitive, requiring substantial resources
and skilled and experienced personnel. We compete with other companies in most of the geographic markets in
which we operate. A majority of contracts are completed under unit price contracts and are derived from direct
bidding on projects.

Government Regulation

Operations are subject to various federal and state laws and regulations for contractors including licensing
requirements and regulations rclating to worker safety and environmental protection.
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Ultraviolet Technologies Segment

The Ultraviolet (UV) Technologies segment manufactures UV curable screen printing inks. UV Technologies
products are manufactured by Nor-Cote International, Inc. and subsidiaries (Nor-Cote), which we acquired in July
2003. These ink products are printed on many types of plastic, metals and other substrates that are compatible with
the UV curing process. Typical applications are plastic sheets, point-of-purchase (POP) signage, banners, decals,
cell phones, bottles and containers, CD and DVD, rotary-screen printed labels, and membrane switch overlays for
conductive ink. Nor-Cote has operating facilities in the United States, United Kingdom, China and Singapore, with
worldwide distributors located in South Africa, Australia, Canada, China, Colombia, Hong.Kong; y
Italy, Japan, Korea, New Zealand, Poland, Spain, Taiwan, Ihai_lagd,i.gt_iﬁ_jA‘f%’?ﬁéﬁ%éd thel

The principal products rendered by the segment accounted for 8% or our consolidated revenues in fiscal year 2006,
10% of our consolidated revenues in 2005, and 16% of our consolidated revenues in 2004.

Rescarch and development expenses are incurred within the Ultraviolet Technologies segment. These expenses
primarily relate to research regarding improvements to existing ultraviolet inks and the development of new
ultraviolet ink products.

Cuistomers

Our customer base is diverse with no significant customer or group of customers. While not material to the
consolidated Company, thirty-one percent of Nor-Cote revenues are derived from overseas customers. Sales to
these customers are typically made through distributor relations or through European and Asian sales office
personnel.

Competition

Competition comes from new technologies, customer unwillingness to move to new technologies and products,
internal product development departments and outside vendors. We compete with numerous other ink-related
companies that are located throughout the world. Several competitors are large companies that have greater

financial, technical and marketing resources than we do.

Raw Marerials

We use various resins and pigments in the manufacture of our ink products. We are subject to risks including raw
material shortages and discontinued products, We purchase materials from a variety of sources which helps mitigate
these risks.

Electronics Integration Segment

The Electronies Integration segment sclis and installs a variety of electronic products and equipment, including
video, sound and security products. Subsidiaries include Kingston Sales Corporation (Kingston), Commercial
Solutions, Inc. (Commercial Solutions) and Audio-Video Revolution, Inc. (AVR}).

Kingston and Commercial Solutions are distributors for prominent national companies in the electronic, sound,
security, and video markets. Customers include businesses in the lodging, healthcare, education, transportation and
retail industries. Product offerings include the latest technology in TVs, sound systems, electronic locking devices,
wire, cable and fiber optics, and intercom systems. Kingston was acquired in July 2002. Commercial Solutions
began operations in December 2003,

AVR, acquired in November 2005, provides a wide range of design, engineering and installation of residential,
commercial, and retail audio and video systems including video-conferencing, board-room, home-thcater, surround
sound audio and security systems, as well as design, engineering and installation of electrical wiring and structured
cabling systems, digital satellite television and wireless and network high speed (broadband) internet.




The principal products rendered by the segment accounted for 9% or our consolidated revenues in fiscal year 2006,
11% of our consolidated revenues in 2005, and 22% of our consolidated revenues in 2004,

Customers
Our customer, base 15 diverse with no significant customer or group of customers. Delivery time is critical to
operational success and drop-shipments are performed whenever reasonably possible.

Vendor Relationships

We have distributorship agreements with various vendors including TTE Corporation (RCA), LG Electronics Inc.
and Panasonic. These agreements contain competitive pricing and channels of distribution that are critical to the on-
going success of our segment operations.

.. h
Competition "

There is a significant amount of competition with other distributors, service and retail providers. [n addition, there
are relatively few barriers to entry into the industries in which we operate and, as a result, any organization that has
adequate financial resources and access to technical expertise may become a competitor.

Employees

As of November 28, 2006, we employed approximately 580 full-time employees, of which approximately 150 were
represented by union contracts within the Transportation Infrastructure segment. Additionally, within the Business
Solutions segment, we had approximately 7,800 co-employees under customer-contract relationships. Our in-house
staff is supplemented with contract personnel on an as-needed basis. Management believes that its relationships with
its employees are generally satisfactory.

Control Group

At August 31, 2006, a Control Group held 80.3% or 8,456,134 shares of our outstanding common stock. Members
of the control group include our CEQ, Mr. John Fisbeck, and our Chairman of the Board, Mr, Carter Fortune.
Additionally, Mr. Harlan Schafir, Mr. Norman Wolcott, Ir. and the “Wolcott Trusts” are deemed members of the
control group. Individually, each of the above persons has the sole voting and dispositive power over the following
number of shares of the Company’s Common Stock as of August 31, 2006: John F. Fisbeck, 1,637,701 (or 15.6%),
Carter M. Fortune, 4,132,810 (or 39.3%), Harlan M. Schafir, 1,310,000 (or 12.4%), Norman G. Wolcett, Jr.,
individually, 713,751 (or 6.8%), Norman G. Wolcott Jr., as Trustee of the Wolcott Trusts, 285,372 {or 2.7%). In
addition to the above shares, Messrs. Fisbeck and Fortune share dispositive control over 376,500 (or 3.6%) shares of
the Company’s Common Stock held by Fisbeck - Fortune Development, LLC.

Additional information with respect to the Company’s businesses

The amounts of assets, revenues and earnings attributable to the aforementioned operating segments are included in
Note 22 to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Item 8, Financial Statemnents and
Supplementary Data.

Our common stock is traded on The American Stock Exchange under the symbol “FFI”. We maintain a website
(http:/fwww ffi.net) where our annual reports, certain corporate governance documents, press releases, interim
shareholder reports and links to our subsidiaries” websites can be found. The Company’s pertodic reports filed with
the SEC, which include Form 10-K’s, Form 10-Q’s, Form 8-K’s and amendments thereto, may be accessed by the
public free of charge from the SEC and through the Company. Electronic copies of these reports can be accessed at
the SEC’s website (http://www.sec.gov) and indirectly through our website (http://www.ffi.net). Copies of these
reports may also be obtained, free of charge, upon written request to the Company’s principal executive office at:
Fortune Industries, Inc., 6402 Corporate Drive, Indianapolis, IN 46278, Attn; Corporate Secretary (1-317-532-1374)
or may be obtained from the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, D.C.
20549 (1-800-SEC-0330).




Item 1A. Risk Factors

-Qur businesses are subject to a variety of risks and uncertainties which are described below. These risks-and

uncertainties are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not described or not known to
management of the Company may also impair business operations. If any of the following risks actually occur, our

_ business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

The businesses in which we provide services are highly competitive.

The industries we operate in are highly competitive and are served by numerous small, owner-operated private

companies, regional companies, national and international public compan1csﬁlnfadd1t:oﬁiﬁIatwely}{ewj_bamcrle
- prevent entry into these industries. As a result, any organization that has adequate financial resources and access to

technical expertise may become one of our competitors. Customers within certain of our industries usually employ
personnel who perform some of the same types of services we provide. We cannot be certain that our existing or
prospective customers will continue to outsource services in the future. Competition in the various industries in
which we focus depends on a number of factors, including price. Certain of our competitors may have lower
overhead cost structures and may, therefore, be able to provide their services at lower rates than we are able to
provide. In addition, some of our competitors are larger and have greater resources than we do, Our management
cannot be certain that our competltors will not develop the expertise, experience and resources to provide services
that are superior in both price and quality to our services. Similarly, our management cannot be certain that we will -
be able to maintain or enhance our competitive position within our industries.

QOur operating results may vary significantly from quarter-to-quarter.

During the winter months and at other times of year, demand for our services (including, but not limited to the
services provided by the Wireless Infrastructure and Transportation Infrastructure segments) may be lower due to-
inclement weather. In addition, inclement weather could cause delays in the issuance or completion of projects.
Further, our quarterly results may also be materially affected by:

=  the timing and volume of work under new agreements )
= the termination of existing agreemems .

» regional or general economic conditions;

= achange in the mix of our customers, contracts and business;

»  the budgetary spending patterns of customers;

*  variations in the margins of projects performed during any particular quarter;

* increases in construction and design costs;

= the availability of products to sell;

= changes to the cost of available products;

* changes in bonding requirements applicable to new agreements;

* losses experienced in our operations not otherwise covered by insurance;

»  payment risk associated with the financial condition of our customers;

a  costs we incur to support growth internally or through acquisitions or otherwise; .
= the timing of acquisitions; and

= the magnitude of acquisition assimilation costs.

Accordingly, our operating results in any particular quarter may not be indicative of the results that can be expected
for any other quarter or for the entire year. :

We may not be able to successfully achieve the expected benefits of acquisitions, which exposes us to risks
associated with these transactions.

We have made and may continue to make acquisitions or investments in or engage in strategic partnering
relationships with other companies or technologies, We may not be able to-successfully achieve expected benefits.
Additionally, we may be exposed to factors including but not limited to unanticipated contingent liabilities,
additional expenses, loss of key employees or customers, or other contingencies consistent with acquisition risks,
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whlch ultimately could result in significantly decreased earnings and material and adverse effects on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

We may be unsuccessful at integrating companies.

We may not successfully integrate the companies that we have acquired or that we may acquire with our existing
operations without substantial costs, delays or other operational or financial problems. Failure to implement proper
overall business controls could result in inconsistent operating and financial practices at the companies that we

acquire, and our overall profitability could be adversely affected. Integrating our acquired companies involves a
number of special risks which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations, including:

= failure of acquired companies to achieve the results that we expect;

» ' diversion of management's attention from operational matters;

difficulties integrating the operations and personnel of acquired companies;

*=  inability to retain key personnel of the acquired companies;

. akrisks: associated with unanticipated events or liabilities; .

" the potentral disruption of business; And - S e T

thc drff cu]ty of maintaining uniform standards, controls, procedures and pohcres

Further, if one of the acquired companies suffers customer dissatisfaction or performance problems, our reputation
could be materially and adversely affected,

We may not succeed in generating internal growth.

+
A

Qur ability to generate internal growth will be affected by, among other factors, our ability to:

»  expand the range of services we offer to customers to address their evolving needs;

®  attract new customers, )

* increase the number of projects performed for existing customers;

=  hire and retain employees;

»  open additional facilities; and

* reduce our operating and overhead expenses.
In addition, our customers may reduce the number or size of projects available to us due to their inability to obtain -
capital. Many of the factors affecting our ability to generate internal growth may be beyond our control, and we
cannot be certain that our strategies will be successful or that we will be able to generate cash flow sufficient to fund
our operations and to support internal growth. Our inability to achieve internal growth could matenally and
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our customers are often larger companies that have superior bargaining' strength. -
Some of our customers or prospective customers (including, but not limited to, customers or prospective customers
of the Wireless Infrastructure segment) are large companies that have a greater bargaining position-than we do in
negotiating contracts due to the potential value to us of obtaining their business and-the intense competition we face
to obtain that business. This unequal bargaining position could result in our acceptance of less favorable contract
terms than we might otherwise accept, reduced operating margins and material and adverse effects on our business,’
financial condition and results of operations.

The concentration of a portion of our business among large customers could increase credit risks.

The concentration of a portion of our business among a number of large customers (including, but not limited to
customers in the Wireless Infrastructure segment) increases our potential credit risks. One or more of these .
customers could delay payments or default on credit extended to them. Any significant delay in the collection of
significant accounts receivable could result in an increased need for us to obtain working capital from other sources,
possibly on worse terms than we could have negotiated if we have established such working capital resources prior
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to such delays or defaults. Any significant default could result in significantly decreased earnings and matcrial and
adverse effects on our business, financial condition and results of operations. .

Many of our contracts may be canceled on short notice and we may be unsuccessful in replacing the contracts as
they are completed or expire.

We could experience a material adverse effect on our revenue, net income and liquidity if any of the following
oceur:

= our customers cancel a significant number of contracts;

»  we fail to win a significant number of our existing contracts upon re-bid; or
WE comp]ete the requlred work under a significant number of non—recumng pr0_|ects and carmot

¥ o R S s o 2y T G
replace them WIth similar prolects - AEERTRTEES ; -

" We may not be able to maintain appropriate ctaﬂ‘ ng levels related to our billable workfarce

If we maintain or increase billable staffing levels in anticipation of one or more projects and those projects are
delayed, reduced or terminated, or otherwise do not materialize, we may underutilize these personnel, which could
have material and adverse effects on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We bear the risk of cost overruns on a large percenmge of our revenues that are derived from fixed price
contracis.

. The concentration of a portion of our business among a number of fixed price contracts (including, but not limited to
contracts in the Wireless Infrastructure and Transportation Infrastructure segments) increases our potential risk of
loss. Under fixed price contracts, we provide specific tasks for a specific price and are typically paid on a milestone -
basis. Such contracts involve greater financial risks because we bear the risk if actual project costs exceed the
amounts we are paid under the contracts.

Increases in estimated project costs under the percentage-of-completion method of accounting could cause
[fluctuations in our quarterly results and adversely affect our operating results.

Certain portions of our business (including, but not limited to construction services within the Wireless
Infrastructure and Transportation Infrastructure segments) recognize revenues using the percentage-of-completion
method of accounting. This accounting method results in our recognizing contract revenues and earnings over the
contract term in proportion to our incurrence of contract cost. The earnings or losses recognized on individual
contracts are based on estimates of contract revenues, costs and profitability which requires considerable judgment.
If in any period we significantly increase our estimate of the total costs to complete a given project, we may
recognize very little or no additional revenues with respect to that project. If the total contract cost estimates
indicate that there is a loss, such loss is recognized in the period such determination is made. To the extent that our
cost estimates fluctuate over time or differ from actual costs, our operating results may be materially affected. Asa
result, our gross profit in future periods may be significantly reduced or eliminated.

A portion of our business depends on our ability to hmvide surety bonds. We may be unable to compete for our
work on certain pro_,'ects if we are not able 1o obtain the necessary surety bonds. -

We have posted letters of credlt to support our surcty bond program in our Wireless Infrastructure and
Transportation Infrastructure segments. Further, under standard terms in the surety market, sureties issue or continue
bonds on a project-by-project basis and can decline to issue bonds at any time or require the posting of additional
collateral as a condition to issuing or renewing any bonds. Current or future market conditions, as well as changes
in our surety’s assessment of our operating and financial risk, could cause our surety provider to decline to issue or
renew, or substantially reduce the amount of, bonds for our work and could increase our bonding costs. These
actions could be taken on short notice. If our surety provider were to limit or eliminate our access to bonding, our
alternatives would include seeking bonding capacity from other sureties, finding more business that does not require
bonds and posting other forms of collateral for project performance, such as letters of credit or cash. We may be
unable to secure these alternatives in a timely manner, on acceptable terms, or at all. Accordingly, if we were to
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experience an interruption or reductlon in the availability of bondmg capacity, we may be unable to compete for or
work on certain projects. '

Our unionized workforce could adversely affect our operations.

As of August 31, 2006, approximately 71% of our employees within our Transportation Infrastructure segment were
covered by mult: -employer bargaining agreements, Although the majority of these agreements prohibit strikes and
work stoppages we cannot be certain that strikes or work stoppages will not occur in the future. Strikes or work

. stoppages would adversely impact our relatlonshlps with our customers and could cause us to lose business and

decrease our revenue
We may incur liabilities or suffer negative financial impact relating ro occupational health and safety matters.

The services provided by us create a risk of serious injury or death for the employees performing the work and for
other persons {including but not limited to cellular tower construction in the Wireless Infrastructure segment and
highway construction work in the Transportation Infrastructure segment), These risks can increase the Company’s
exposure to liability and may result in increased insurance costs. In addition, if our safety record were to
substantially deteriorate over time, our customers could cance! our contracts and not award us future business.

Our success is dependent on growth in the deployment of wireless networks and new technology upgrades, and to
the extent that such growth slows, our business may be harmed.

Telecommunications carriers, who are serviced by our Wireless Infrastructure segment, are constantly re-evaluating
their network deployment plans in response to trends in the capital markets, changing perceptions regarding industry
growth, the adoption of new wireless technologies, increasing pricing competition for subscribers and general
economic conditions in the United States. If the rate of network deployment slows and carriers reduce their capital
investments in wireless infrastructure or fail to expand into new geographic areas, our business may be significantly
harmed. The uncertainty associated with-rapidly changing telecommunications technologies may also negatively
impact the rate of deployment of wireless networks and the demand for our services. Telecommunications service
providers face significant challenges in assessing consumer demand and in acceptance of rapidly changing enhanced
telecommunications capabilities. If telecommunications service providers perceive that the rate of acceptance of
next generation telecommunications products will grow more slowly than previously expected, they may, as a result,
slow their devélopment of next generation technologies. Moreover, increasing price competition for subscribers
could adversely affect the profitability of carriers and limit their resources for network deployment. Any significant
sustained slowdown will further reduce the demand for our services and adversely affect our financial results.

If wireless carriers, network equipment vendors and enterprises do not outsource their wireless .
telecommunications services, our business will suffer. 3 ) '

. *

Our success depends upon the continued trend by wireless carriers and network equipment vendors to outsource
their network design, deployment and management needs. If this trend does not continue and wireless carriers and
network equipment vendors elect to perform more network deployment services themselves, our operating results -
and revenues may decline.

The telecommumcatmm‘ industry has experienced s:gmf icant consolidation, and this trend is expected to
continne. It is pombie that we and one or more of our competitors each supply products to the companies that
have merged or wu'l merge. -

This consolidation could result in delays in purchasing decisions by merged companies or in us playing a decreased

role in the supply of products to the merged companies. Delays or reductions in wireless infrastructure spending
could have a material adverse effect on detmand for our products and servxees and, consequently, our results of
operations.

We could have unfavorable health insurance and workers compensation claim experiences.
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The Business Solutions segment calculates reserves for workers compensation and health insurance claims by
estimating unpaid losses and loss expenses with respect to claims occurring on or before the balance sheet date, and
under certain instances we carry high deductibles on these policies. Such estimates include provisions for reported
claims and provisions for incurred-but-not-reported claims. The estimates of unpaid losses are established and
continually reviewed by the Company using a variety of statistical and analytical techniques. Reserve estimates
reflect past claims experience, currently known factors and trends and estimates of future claim trends. We cannot
be certain that future claims will be consistent with past experience.

We could face additional liability for worlsite emplovee payroll and benefits costs.

Under customer service agreements, we become a co-employer of worksite employees and assume the obligations to
pay the salaries, wages and related benefits costs and payroll taxes of such worksite employees. Our obligations
include responsibility for: :
i
= payment of the salaries and wages for work performed by worksite employecs, regardless of
whether the client timely pays us the associated service fee; and
*  providing benefits to worksite employees even if our costs to provide such benefits exceed the fees
the client pays us.

If a client does not pay us, or if the costs of benefits we provide to worksite employees exceed the fees a client pays
us, our ultimate liability for worksite employee payroll and benefits costs could have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition or results of operations. !

We may face operational challenges as a result of changes in federal, state and local regulations.

As a major employer, our operations are affected by numerous federal, statc and iocal laws and regulations relating
to labor, tax and employment matters. By entering into a co-employer relationship with employees assigned to work
at client locations, we assume certain obligations and responsibilities of an employer under these laws. However,
many of these laws (such as ERISA and federal and state employment tax laws) do not specifically address the
obligations and responsibilities of non-traditional employers such as PEOs, and the definition of “employer” under
these laws is not uniform. In addition, many of the states in which we operate have not addressed the PEO
relationship for purposes of compliance with applicabie state laws governing the employer/employee relationship.
Any adverse application of these other federal or state laws to the PEQ relationship with our worksite employees
could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition.

While many states do not explicitly regulate PEOs, various states have passed or may be considering passing laws
that have licensing or registration requirements for PEOs. Such laws vary from state to state, but generally provide
for monitoring the fiscal responsibility of PEOs, and in some cases codify and clarify the co-employment
relationship for unemployment, workers’ compensation and other purposes under state law. While we generally
support licensing regulation because it serves to validate the PEO relationship, we may not be able to satisfy
licensing requirements or other applicable regulations for all states. In addition, there can be no assurance that we
will be able to renew our licenses in all states.

We may face additional liabilities as a result of increases in unemployment tax rates.

We record our state unemployment tax expense based on taxable wages and tax rates assigned by each state. State
unemploytment tax rates vary by state and are determined, in part, based on prior years’ compensation experience in
each state. Should our claim experience increase, our uncmployment tax rates could increase. In addition, states
have the ability under law to increase unemployment tax rates to cover deficiencies in the unemployment tax fund.
Some states have implemented retroactive cost increases. Contractual arrangements with our clients limit our ability
to incorporate such increases into service fees, which could result in a delay before such increases could be reflected
in service fees. As a result, such increases could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results
of operations.

We face potential client liabilities for employment taxes.




Under agreerﬂcnts in our Business Solutions segment, we assume sole responsibility and liability for paying federal
employment taxes with respect to wages and salaries we pay our worksite employees including:

=  income tax withholding requirements;
*  obligations under FICA; and
»  gbligations under FUTA.

Employers have the obligation to withhold and remit the employer portion and, where applicable, the employee
portion of these taxes. Most states impose similar employment tax obligations on the employer. While agreements
we enter into provide that we have sole legal responsibility for making these tax contributions, the IRS or applicable
state taxing authority could conclude that such liability cannot be completely transferred to us. Accordingly, in the

. event that we fa11 to meet our tax withholding and payment obligations, the client may be held jointly and severally

liable for those obhgatlons An adverse resolution of this issue may dlscourage clients from entering into PEQ
relationships in the future.

We may not be able to realize our deferred income tax assets.

Significant estimates have been made by management with respect to the realizability of the Company’s deferred tax
assets. Actual results could differ from these estimates making it reasonably possible that a change in these estimates
could occur in the near term. The Company evaluates a variety of factors in determining the amount of the deferred
income tax assets to be recognized pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes” including the number of years the Company’s operating loss and tax credits can be
carried forward, the existence of taxable temporary differences, the Company’s earmings history and the Company’s
near-term earnings expectations.

We may not be able to protect our intellectual property rights.

We have, through invention, license agreements or other means, gained various rights in intellectual property that
create value for us. In order to avoid public disclosure of details relating to.our inventions and intellectual property
(especially with respect to our ultravielet ink formulas within our Ultraviolet Technologies segment), we have in
many cases chosen to avoid the patent filing process. Accordingly, it may be difficult to protect these various
intellectual property rights from infringement or other degradation and the underlying intellectual property could
thereby decrease in value to us. Much of our intellectual property (including, but not limited to ultraviolet ink
formulas within our Ultraviolet Technologies segment) is treated as a trade secret; as such, it may not have the same
protection as if it had been patented. ‘ .

We are exposed to financial market risks, including interest rate fluctuation and changes in foreign currency
exchange rates.

We are exposed to'changes in interest rates on variable interest rate revolving lines of credit. ,We believe an increase
in short-term borrowing rates during interest rate increases could have a material impact on interest expense.

Our results of operations could be adversely affected as a result of goodwill impairments.

When we acquire a business, we record goodwill equal to the excess amount we pay for the business, including
liabilities assumed, over the fair value of the tangible and intangible assets of the business we acquire. The Finanéial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” which
provides that goodwill and other intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives not be amortized, but instead must
be tested at least annually. for impairment, and intangible assets that have finite useful lives shouid continue to be
amortized over their useful lives. SFAS 142 also provides specific guidance for testing goodwill and other non-
amortized intangible assets for impairment. SFAS 142 requires management to make certain estimates and
assumptions when allocating goodwill to reporting units and determining the fair value of reporting unit net assets
and liabilities, including, among other things, an assessment of market conditions, projected cash flows, investment
rates, cost of capital and growth rates, which could significantly impact the reported value of goodwill and other
intangible assets. Fair value is determined using a combination of the discounted cash flow, market multiple and
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market capitalization valuation approaches. Absent any impairment indicators, we perform our impaimient tests
annually as of the end of the fourth quarter. Future impairments, if any, will be recognized as operating expenses. |

Our debt financing is guaranteed by our two majority shareholders (our Chairman of the Board of Directors and
our CEQ). A refusal to make additional guarantees by our Chairman of the Board of Directors could impact our
borrowing capabilities.

If our Chairman of the Board of Directors would not guarantee our debt, we may not be able to retain current
borrowmg capabllltles growth opportunmes or interest rates. |

Lo e st } _ _ -
We may not have suﬂ' cient funds to repay our obhgatmns 0 credttors e they Caemaing and our defaulw
could have a significant negative impact on our business. :

If we are not able to repay the principal and interest on our convertible term note with Laurus Master Fund, Ltd.
(“Laurus™) in shares of our common stock, we may not have sufficient funds to repay Laurus when our debt
obligations to Laurus become due.

Our bank credit agreement contains provisions that allow our creditors to accelerate the payment of our debt under
those agreements in the event that we are found to be in default of the credit agreement terms. In the event that we
are obligated to immediately pay such debt in full under one or more credit agreements we may not be able to meet
this demand. :

Accordingly, we may be tequired to obtain the funds necessary to repay these obligations either through refinancing,
the issuance of additional equity or debt securities or the sale of assets. We may be unable to obtain the funds
needed, if any, to repay the obligations from any one or more of these sources on favorable economic terms or at all.

The Company’s sharcholders may experience dilution if future equity offerings are used to fund opemnons or .
acquire additional businesses. '

If our future operations or acquisitions are financed through the issuance of equity securities, our shareholders could
experience significant dilution. In addition, securities issued in connection with future activities could potentially
have rights and preferences senior to the current rights and preferences of the Company’s common stock.

Our business growth could outpace the capability of our corporate management infrastructure.

We cannot be certain that our systems, procedures and controls will be adequate to support our operations as they
expand. Future growth also will impose significant additional responsibilities on members of our senior
management, including the need to recruit and integrate new senior level managers and exccutives. We cannot be
certain that we can recruit and retain such additional managers and exccutives. To the extent that we are unable to
manage our growth effectively, or are unable to attract and retain additional qualified management, our financial
condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected. These risks may be even more likely
to affect our Wireless Infrastructure segment due to the extremely rapid pace of growth in that industry and the
demands such growth places on our management infrastructure.

The departure of key personnel could disrupt our business, and few of our key personnel are obligated to stay
with us.

We depend on the continued efforts of our executive officers and on the senior management of the businesses we
acquire. Although we intend to enter into an employment agreement with each of our executive officers and certain
other key employees, we cannot be certain that any individual will continue in such capacity for any particular
period of time. The loss of key personnel, or the inability to hire and retain qualified employecs, could adversely
affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. We do not carry key-person life insurance on some
key employees, including our majority shareholder that guarantees certain debt obligations.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls, we may not be able to accurately report our
financial results or prevent fraud. We have reported material weaknesses in our internal control over financial




reporting that, if we do not substantially remedy, could result in material misstatements in our financial
statements, cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information and have a negative effect on
the trading price of our stock.

As described in Item 9A of this Report, certain control deficiencies constitute a material weakness in our internal
control over financial reporting as of August 31, 2006. In particular, we have concluded that (i) additional
accounting personnel were needed both at the parent company level and at certain subsidiaries at August 31, 2006 to
ensure that certain disclosure controls and procedures were operating effectively; (ii) greater segregation of dutles
was needed in the accounting functions; and (ii1) certain procedures should be documented to ensure that personnel
turnover does not result in a failure of those procedures.

Certain businesses we have acquired may have had limited infrastructure and systems of internal controls.
Performing assessments of internal controls, implementing necessary changes, and maintaining an effective internal
controls process is costly and requires considerable management attention, particularly in the case of newly acquired
entities. Internal control systems are designed in part upon assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and all
such systems, however well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance that the
objectives of the system are met. Because of these and other inherent limitations of control systems, there can be no
assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions.

We also cannot assure that we will implement and maintain adequate controls over our financial processes and
reporting in the future or that additional material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in our internal controls will
not be discovered in the future. Any failure to remediate any future material weaknesses or implement required new
or improved controls, or difficulties encountered in their implementation, could harm our operating results, cause us
to fail to meet-our reporting obligations or result in material misstatements in our financial statements or other public
disclosures. Inferior internal controls could also cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial
information, which could have a negative effect on the trading price of our stock.

A control group owns a substantial majority of our common stock.

At August 31, 2006, a Control Group held 80.3% or 8,456,134 shares of our outstanding common stock. Members
of the control group include our CEQ, Mr, John Fisbeck, and our Chairman of the Board, Mr. Carter Fortune.
Additionally, Mr. Harlan Schafir, Mr, Norman Wolcott, Jr. and the Wolcott Trusts are deemed members of the
control group. Individually, each of the above persons has the sole voting and dispositive power over the following
number of shares of the Company’s Commeon Stock as of August 31, 2006: John F. Fisbeck, 1,637,701 (or 15.6%),
Carter M. Fortune, 4,132,810 (or 39.3%), Harlan M. Schafir, 1,310,000 (or 12.4%), Norman G. Wolcott, Jr.,
individually, 713,751 (or 6.8%), Norman G. Wolcott Jr., as Trustee of the Wolcott Trusts, 285,372 (or 2.7%). In
addition to the above shares, Messrs. Fisbeck and Fortune share dispositive control over 376,500 (or 3.6%) shares of
the Company’s Common Stock held by Fisbeck - Fortune Development, LLC.

As a result, these persons could have a controlling influence in-determining the outcome of any corporate matters
submitted to our shareholders for approval, including mergers, consolidations, election of directors and any other
significant corporate actions. The interests of these shareholders may differ from the interests of the Company’s
other shareholders and their stock ownership may thereby limit the ability of other shareholders to influence the
management and affairs of the Company. . S .

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments = . o
None.
Item 2. Properties

.

As of August 31, 2006, we maintained the following operating facilities:

. Apgro:_&imate
_ Owned / Square
Segment Location(s) Description Leased Footage
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Corporate and various Indianapolis, IN Corporate offices, various  Leased (1) 171,000

Wireless Infrastructure & ~ subsidiary offices and

Electronics integration warehouse facilities

subsidiaries

Wireless Infrastructure Columbus, OH Offices, warehouse facility Leased (1) 11,000
Cleveland, OH, Kansas Offices, warchouse Leased 27,000
City, MO, Richmond, facilities
VA, Ft. Wayne, IN and -
Atlanta, GA

. ... Richmond, IN. . gy Offices o .. Leased(@ 10,0004
o Indlanapolls IN Offices " Leased - *1,000
Brentwood, TN Offices Leased 10,000
Transportation Indianapolis, IN, Sedalia, Offices, equipment yard, Leased (1) 41,000 (3)
Infrastructure - MO Knoxwlle TN warehouse storage. and '
g R R SRR T e g e e vehlclc shop e AN i ) . "
Ultraviolet Technologies Crawfordswlle IN S - Offices - Leased (1) -+ 20,000 .- s
Crawfordsville, IN Manufacturing facility Owned 34,000
United Kingdom, Offices, warehouse and Leased 11,000
Singapore, Shenzhen, manufacturing facilities
China and GuangDong,
China
Atlanta, GA Offices, warchouse facility Leased 5,000

(1) The leases on these properties are with a limited liability company owned by the Company’s two majority
shareholders. Refer to the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this
Form 10-K.

(2) The leases on this property are w1th a limited liability company owned by the former Chief Operatmg
Officer of the Company. Refer to the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included
elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

(3) Represents total facility square footage. Additionally, we have approximately 14 acres of yard space.

In the opinion of management of the Company, its properties are adequate for its present needs. We do not anticipate
difficulty in renewing existing leases as they expire or in finding alternative facilities. We believe all of our assets
are adequately covered by insurance.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

in the opinion of management, is expected to have a material adverse effect on the consclidated financial position,
results of operations, or cash flows if adversely resolved.

|

\

. . |

The Company is a party to certain pending claims that have arisen in the ordinary course of business, none of which, |

|

\

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders !
No matters were submitted to a vote of the Company’s sharcholders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The executive officers of the Company are as follows:

Name Age _ Position
John F. Fisbeck 50  President and Chief Executive Officer
Carter M. Fortune 65  Treasurer
Amy E. Gailo 39  Chief Financial Officer
Harlan M. Schafir 52 Chief Operating Officer (1)
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(1) Harlan M. Schafir was elected to the Company’s Board on October 1, 2003 and was also appointed Chief
Operating Officer of the Company as of that date. Mr. Schafir’s term as Chief Operating Officer ended on
September 30, 2006, when his employment contract with the Company was not renewed.

Each executive officer serves, in accordance with the by-laws of the Company, until the annual mecting of the
Board of Directors.

j -
John F. Fisbeck was elected President, Chief Executive Officer and Director of the Company on May 27, 2005.

*

Carter M. Fortune was appomted Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of the Company as of January
2002. Mr. Fortune resigned as Chief Executlve Officer on May 27, 2005 and was appomted Treasurer.

Amy E. Gallo was elected to the Company’s Board and became Chief F1nanc1a1 Officer and Secretary of the
Company in December 2002, Ms, Gallo resigned from the Company’s Board on July 29, 2005.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Market Information - o o e AR e RS o bt
The Common Stock of Fortune Industries, Inc. is traded on the American Stock Exchange (Symbol: FFI). As of
November 28, 2006, there were 146 holders of record of the common stock. This number does not include
shareholders for whom shares were held in “nominee” or “street name”. Prior to June 23, 2005, our stock traded on
the NASD OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol "FDVI" for the period June 17, 2001 through June 1, 2005 and
under the symbol "FDVF" for the period June 2, 2005 through June 22, 2005. High and low quotations reported by
the NASD OTC Bulletin Board or the American Stock Exchange, as applicable, during the periods indicated are
shown below. These quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-ups, mark-downs or commissions and
may not represent actual transactions. All share prices presented in this Annual Report on Form 10-K have been
restated to reflect the 1-for-10 stock split effective June 2, 2005.

High Low

Fiscal Year Ending August 31, 2006 .

Fourth Quarter $ 5218 391

Third Quarter 500 3.65

Second Quarter . 500 310

First Quarter 775 450
Fiscal Year Ending August 31, 2005

Fourth Quarter § 7558 200

Third Quarter 590 2.80

Second Quarter 8.00 3.60

First Quarter 11.80  7.00

The Company has never declared or paid any dividends on its Common Stock. Future dividends, if any, will be at
the discretion of the Board of Directors and will depend upon our operating performance, capital requirements,
contractual restrictions, any other factors deemed relevant by the Board of Directors.

Shares Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following information presents a summary of the Company’s equity compensation plans as of August 31, 2006:

Number of securities to Weighted-average Number of
be issued upon exercise exercise price of securilies remaining
of outstanding options, outstanding options, available for future
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights issuance
Equity Compensation Plan 14,000(2) $0.00 986,000
Approved by Shareholders (1)
Total 14,000 $0.00 986,000

(1) Includes the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan
(2} Includes shares to be issued upon the vesting of Restricted Stock Units (“RSUs”), for which no exercise
price will be paid.

Unregistered Shares Issnances

The following presents a summary of all sales of unregistered securities by the Company that were not previously
reported:

Amount of Issued Recipient of Issued
Date of Issuance Title of Securities Securities Securities
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June 23, 2006 Common Stock . 64,459 James Westbrook
' ()

(1) James Westbrook was issued 64,459 shares of the Company’s Common Stock pursuant to a unit purchase
agreement between the Company and James Westbrook & Associates, LLC to be held in escrow. The
“shares of comindn-stock may vestiper:the ferms of the dgreement based upon the achievement of certain
financial performance measures during the period June 24, 2006 through August 31, 2009. The Company
relied on the exemption from registration provided under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act. Our rehance
on this exemption was based on the limited nature of the offering, the sophistication of the recipient and
our status as an Exchange Act reporting company.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data as of and for each of the previous five fiscal years ending August 31, which
have been derived from our consolidated financial statements.

Year Ended August 31, -
2006 2005 (1) 2004 (2) 2003 (3) 2002
i {Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Total Revenues $ 157,113 $ 113,096 $ 66,882 § 15470 $ 2,342
Net Income (Lloss) 2,219 (2,317) 2,402 115 (2,075)
Net Income (Qbss) Available to Common
Shareholders | 1,888 2,317) 2,402 115 (2,075)

Net Income (Loss) per Share:

Basic $ 0.18 $ (0.22) £ 023 § 0.01 $ (030)

Diluted 3 0.16 $ (©.22) £ 023 § 0.01 $ (030
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding: .

Basic 10,582 10,496 10,209 7,739 6,983

Diluted 11,845 10,501 10,249 7,829 7,023

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and Short-Term [nvestments $ 4913 £ 5986 $ 5486 . % 1,222 s 291

Working Capital 23,383 1,200 9.174 3,358 939
_ Goodwill and Intangibles, net 16,283 16,385 12,303 7,219 2,027

Total Assets 74,285 65,086 51,569 18,033 6,262

Long-Term Obligations and

Redeemable Preferred Stock 34,512 11,585 12,881 7,210 2,606

Shareholders’ Equity 20,950 12,073 12,818 5,654 490

(1) Includes the acquisition of CSM, Inc. in April 2005.

(2) Includes the acquisition of Professional Staff Management, Inc. in October 2003 and the James H. Drew
Corp. in April 2004.

(3) Includes the acquisition of Nor-Cote International, Inc. in July 2003.
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and
notes thereto and the other financial data appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Overview
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As a holding company of various product and service entities, we have historically invested in businesses that are
undervalued or underperforming, and / or in operations that are poised for significant growth. Management’s
strategic focus is to support the growth of its operations by increasing revenues and revenue streams, managing costs
and creating earnings growth. Additionally, we continually seek and evaluate strategic acquisitions that expand core
i Offerings;andidrive incremental revenue,and earnings, growth.. :

Our operations are largely decentralized from the corporate-office. Autonomy is given to subsidiary entities, and
there are few integrated business functions (i.e. sales, marketing, purchasing and human resources). Day-to-day
operating decisions are made by subsidiary management teams. Our Corporate management team assists in
operational decisions when deemed necessary, selects subsidiary presidents and handles capital allocation among
our operations.

We were incorporated in the state of Delaware in 1988, restructured in 2000 and redomesticated to the state of
Indiana in May 2005, Prior to 2001, we conducted business mainly in the entertainment industry. Effective
September 1, 2005,we were no longer eligible as a small business reporter on Form 10-KSB under Regulation S-B
and mstead became subject to the repomng reqmrements on Form 10-K under Regulatlon S-K.

offered within certain segments which has necessitated that we change from three to five reportmg segmcnts We
have restated segment information for earlier periods in connection with the new reporting segments in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations in this 10-K report.

Key Factors Affecting or Potentially Affecting Results of Operations and Financial Condition

" Management considers the following factors, events, trends and uncertainties to be important to understanding its
results of operations and financial condition:

Holding Company

Management believes that its diversification in various businesses will improve long-term consistency in garnings.
It is our intent to continue to operate in selected market segments that may not directly relate to one another.
Management’s strategy has been and continues to be to acquire and grow businesses that present consistent long-
term growth opportunities. To this extent, over the past three fiscal years, we have completed four key acquisitions
furthering our growth strategy. In April 2005, we acquired CSM, Inc., a PEO located in Nashville, Tennessee. This
acquisition of the oldest PEO in the state expanded our Business Solutions segment geographic service offerings. In
April 2004, we acquired JH Drew, a construction installer of highway-products and commercial structural steel.
This acquisition allowed us to gain entry into the transportation infrastructure segment in the Midwestern United
States. In October 2003 we acquired PSM, a PEO located in Indianapolis, Indiana. This acquisition atlowed us to
gain entry into the PEO market. In July 2003 we acquired Nor-Cote, a specialty ink manufacturer with world-wide
distribution channels. This acquisition allowed us to gain entry into the Ultraviolet Technologies segment. We
continue to pursue other acquisition opportunities as deemed appropriate.

There are several key factors that have affected or potentially may affect our results of operations including the
following:

=  Eamings are dependant on a number of factors including our ability to exccute operational strategies and
integration of acquisitions under central business units. Our historical growth has been due to several
significant acquisitions over the past five years. Future growth in revenues and earnings may not increase
at the same rate as historical growth.

*  We have current and long-term debt habilities of $31.2 million. Prmcnpal payments of $3.5 million and
estimated interest payments of approximately $2.4 million are due within 12 months. The ability to meet
financing needs may affect future management strategies. '

= QOur tax benefit for the year ended August 31, 2006 was ($0.4) million and our effective rate was (39.0)%
as a result of the release of $0.5 million of the valuation allowance. As a result of the release of the
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valuatlon allowance to offset 100% of current federal taxes and recognition of the deferred tax benefit, our
effective tax rate is substantially lower than statutory rates. Management has made significant estimates
with respect to the realizability of our deferred tax assets. The valuation allowance primarily relates to net
operatmg loss carryforwards. We evaluate a variety of factors in determining the amount of the deferred

tax assets to beirecognized pursuant to SFAS No. 109 mcludmg the number ofiyears our operating Joss can

be carried forward, our earnings history and our near-term earnings expectations. Although fealization is
not assured, management believes it is more likely than not that all of the net deferred income tax assets
will be realized.

*  Certain of our expenses, such as wages, benefits and rent, are subject to normal inflationary pressures.
Inflation for medical costs can impact both our reserves for self-funded medical plans as well as our
reserves for workers' compensation claims.

= Typically, the first, third and fourth quarter represent the best quarters for our consolidated financial results,

These results are increased as a result of our investment in the construction industry.

*  We maintain a solid working relationship with all of our unions and geod employee relations are a focus of

our management. Although we believe we have good employee relations, there can be no assurances that
work stoppages can be avoided in future periods,

* A control group, which includes our two majority shareholders, owns 80.3% of the outstanding Common
Stock of the Company. As a result, these persons could have a controlling influence in determining the
outcome of any corporate matters submitted to our shareholders for approval, including mergers,
consolidations, election of directors and any other significant corporate actions. The interests of these
sharcholders may differ from the interests of the Company’s other shareholders and their stock ownership
may thereby limit the ability of other shareholders to influence the management and affairs of the
Company.

Wireless Infrastructure

We have completed five acquisitions between 2002 and 2006 in our effort to provide turn-key wireless
infrastructure products and services. We believe our investments related to acquisitions, hiring of additional
employees, training, geographic expansion and equipment expenditures over the past few years will enable us to
increase market share with existing customers and procure new customers and contracts. We believe there are great
opportunities for continued growth in the wireless industry due to the build-out and upgrades of the wireless
networks in the United States. We believe there are significant opportunities to increase revenues and earnings in
the Wireless Infrastructure segment through our product and service offerings including technology upgrades,
network integration activities, site acquisition, and engincering services related to existing and new technologies.
However, short-term revenues and profit may be negatively impacted by delays by carriers and increased cost
estimates. Factors such as industry mergers, customer budget constraints, the customers’ ability to cancel or put a
project on hold, our ability to hire and retain experienced personnel, execution of business strategies, competition
shutting us out of a market with a customer, keeping up with new technologies and industry standards, and working
capital constraints are all factors that may impact future operating performance within this segment.

Business Solutions

We continue to expand service offerings in addition to our payroll services, including human resource outsourcing,

employment training and testing. While the majority of customer operations are concentrated in the Indianapolis, IN

and Nashville, TN markets, we intend to expand service offerings through acquisitions or new offices in the next
twelve to twenty-four months. Financial results may be affected by changes in the state rcgulatory environments,
results under our partially self-funded health and partially self-funded workers compensauon insurance plans, and
economic condmons -

Transportation Infrastructure

We anticipate increased competition as a result of changing market conditions in the Transportation Infrastructure

segment. Operations within this segment continue to expand beyond strictly highway safety products to commercial

steel erection. Financial results continue to fluctuate as a result of federal and state funding for highway safety
projects, changes in steel and fuel prices, market conditions and competition.

23

« R . plid—




Ultraviolet Technologies

We expect continued growth in our Ultraviolet Technologies segment operafions. Future growth is dependent on
raw material availability and pricing, research and development initiatives, the ability to attract and retain qualified

managementiandothe 1personnelLandLheicontmued|success;of,our‘fore g _;gperahons:mcludmwﬁm

restrictions and political risks in our foreign markets.

Electronics Integration

We expect continued growth in our Electronics Integration segment operations as a result of several new business

ventures over the past two years. In December 2004, we created a start-up company, Commercial Solutions, which
| allowed us to gain a master distributor contract with a large manufacturer of television products. In May 2005 we
lost the master distributor agreement and directed our efforts to expanding our product offerings through other

T * distributor agreements-and increasing’our customer base;by,selling directitoithe health-careand;lodging industries. . e
In November 2005, we acquired AVR, an installer of commercial and residential electronics and homeTtheaters.™ oot
e - Combined with Kingston, these operations have seen revenue and earnings increases as a result of improved 7~~~

economic conditions, expanded vendor relationships, and management focus on earnings growth. Our future
financial success will largely be dependent on our ability to maintain preferred pricing with our vendors, availability
of products from our vendors, industry consolidation, economic conditions, and the ability to attract and retain
qualified management and other personnel.

Results of Operations

Results of operations for the year ended August 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

Net revenues for the year ended August 31, Operating incorne for the year ended August 31,
2006 2003 20064 2006 2005 . 2004
(Dollars in thousands)
Wireless Infrastructure 3 27,859 $ 14911 5 6,352 M (124 3% {603)- 3 (95)
Business Solutions 44,543 28458 17,958 .3423 2,369 2,010
Transportation Infrastructure 57,931 46,549 17,539 2,970 1,008 1,590
Ultravioler chhnologics 12,437 10,771 - 10,526 667 219) 469
Electronics Integration 14,343 12,407 14,507 (91} (1.0935) (162)
Holding Company - - - (3,195) (2,465) (1,264)
Segment Totals $ 157113 $ 113,09 $ 66,882 $ 3650 § (1.005) § 2,548
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders  § 1,888 s 23l 3 2,402

Year ended August 31, 2006 versus August 31, 2005

Net income available to common stock shareholders was $1.9 million, or $0.16 per diluted share on revenues of
$157.1 million for the year ended August 31, 2006 compared with a net loss of ($2.3) million, or (30.22) per diluted
share on revenues of $113.1 million for the year ended August 31, 2005. This represents a 39% increase in revenues
and 182% percent increase in net income. The increase in revenues and income for the year was due to increases
across all operating segments.

The following factors contributed to the increase in revenues in fiscal year 2006:

*  The Wireless Infrastructure increases were due mainly to increased demand for products and services
offered by our companies due to the cellular communication industry’s investment in expansion of their
' networks and increased marketing of our services.
*  The Business Solutions increases were due to the acquisition of CSM in April 2005 as well as increased
customer base.
s The Transportation Infrastructure increases were due to 1mproved market condmons due to the release of
federal highway funds and due to favorable weather conditions.
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*  The Uliraviolet Technologies increases were due to new product offerings and expanded revenue streams

in the Asian marketplace.
®  The Electronics Integration increases were due to the acquisition of AVR in November 2005, which created
our entry into the custom home theatre market.

The increase in net income in fiscal year 2006 was attributed to the increase in revenues discussed above. Also,
items which contributed to the increase in net income include the following:

= Decreased expenses relating to impairment charges on certain intangible assets of $0.6 million recognized
in the Electronics Integration and Wireless Infrastructure segments in fiscal year 2005.

* Increased productivity as a result of more favorable weather conditions and a change in job mix where we
acted as general contractor in our Transportation Infrastructure segment.

»  Expansion of television product offenings through new vendor relationships at more competitive pricing in
our Electronics Integration segment.

=  Implementation of a more stringent credit policy and an improved inventory management system in our
Electronics Integration segment.

*  Favorable claims experience related to our health and workers compensation plans in the Business
Solutions segment. :

= Income tax benefit of $0.5 miilion due to the release of a portion of our valuation allowance related 10 our
nct operating loss carryforward based on conservative projections of taxable earnings in fiscal 2007.

Additionally, items which offset the increase in net income include the following items:

* Increase in expenses related to hiring of new management and sales pcrsonnel in the Wireless Infrastructure
and Business Solutions segments.

»  Increase in expenses related to new offices in the Wireless Infrastructure and Ultraviolet Technologies
segments.

= Increase in interest expense of $1.0 million, or 72% due mainly to our issuance of a $7.5 million long-term
convertible note payable in November 2005 and financing of the CSM acquisition. Additionally, interest
expense increased approximately $0.6 million due to the changes in prime rate over the last fiscal year.

Year ended August 31, 2005 versus August 31, 2004

There was a net loss of ($2.3) million, or ($0.22) per diluted share on revenues of $113.1 million for the year ended
August 31, 2005 compared with net income of $2.4 million, or $0.23 per diluted share on revenues of $66.9 million
for the year ended August 31, 2004. This represents a 69% increase in revenues and 196% percent decrease in net
income.

The following factors contributed to the increase in revenues in fiscal year 2005:

*  We completed the acquisition of CSM in April 2005, JH Drew in April 2004 and PSM in October 2003,

*  We experienced internal, organic revenue growth of approximately $11.0 million due mainly to an increase
in demand for services provided by certain subsidiaries in our Wireless Infrastructure segment due to the
cellular communication industry’s investment in expansion of their networks and an increase in the
customer base in our PEO business due to small market penetration in the geographlc regions which we
service.

The following factors contributed to the decrease in net income in fiscal year 2005:

* Loss on a project in our Wireless Infrastructure segment of approximately $1.2 million due to additional
costs incurred in excess of contract prices. The project related to services performed by our technical
services group outside our typical arca of expertise and in a geographic area where significant expenses
were incurred related to overtime and travel,

* Impairment loss on certain intangible assets in our Wireless Infrastructure and Electronics Integration
segments of $0.6 million due to management directed restructuring in the respective divisions.
Restructurings included a change in customer list due to the loss of a master distributor agreement and a
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decrease in volume from the majority of customers included in the customer list at the purchase date and
restructurings of personnel resulting in non-compete agreement violations.
= Decrease in gross profit in the Transportation Infrastructure segment due mainly to seasonality of the
construction business, suppressed gross margins due to increased competition resulting from a delayed
L passmg of legislation v within the hlghway construction industry, and an increase in steel and diesel prices.
(S — ﬂ.--mlncrcascsm.mtcrest;expénsc of$0T8Imill 1onjlntercst;expensepncreaseclllnlf' scaltyearIZ005|approx1mately =
B $0.5 million due to an increase in prime and LIBOR rates»>The-remaining increase.was.dueo-an-increase in ce ey
debt of $10.6 million resulting from acquisitions and operating and capital cxpcndlture needs.
* Increase in workers compensation claims in the Transportation Infrastructure segment over the prior year of
approximately $0.2 million.
*  Total inventory markdowns of $0.2 ITlI”lOll related to our Electronics Integration segment for market price
adjustments and obsolescence.

Results by segment are described in further details as follows:

Wireless Infrastructure

Wireless Infrastructure segment operating results for the year ended August 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

Year ended
August 31,2006 | | August31,2005 | | Aupust31.2004
(Dollars in thousands)
Net revenues § 27859 1000 [§ 149011 %] | § 63352 100%
Cost of revenues 21,898 78.6% 11.557 77.8% 5.044 79.4%
Gross profit 5,961 21.4% 3314 22.2% 1,308 20.6%
b
Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative 5,680 20.4% 3,496 23.4% 1,279 20.1%
Deprecintion and amortization 405 1.5% 202 1.4% 124 2.0%
Impairment loss of intangible assets ~ - 0.0% 219 L.5% - 0.5
Total operating expenses 6,085 21.8% 39171 | 263% 1,403 22.1%
|
Segment operting income (loss) 3 {124 -0.4% $ (603) -4.0% 3 (95) -1.5%
[ ] ] | L1 Pl bl I

Revenues

Revenues for the year ended August 31, 2006 were $27.9 million compared to $14.9 million for the year ended
August 31, 2005, an increase of $13.0 million, or 87%. The increase in revenues is due mainly to additional work
procured from existing customers, geographic expansion and sales with new customers primarily within our '
construction services entity. In 2006, we opened new offices in Missouri and Ohio allowing us to expand our
regional presence. In addition, we focused our marketing efforts on our ability to offer turn-key products and
services which allowed us to secure contracts which benefited all of our wireless companies.

Revenues for the year ended August 31, 2005 amounted to $14.9-million compared to $6.4 million for the year
ended August 31, 2004, an increase of $8.5 million, or 133%. The increase in revenues was due mainly to growth in
the industry which created demand for our services and our acquisition of ITC in 2004 and Magtech in 2005. These
acquisitions resulted in increased revenues of $4.9 million. Our competition over the past five years has decreased
ductoa corresponding decrease in demand for network expansion and upgrade services by wireless carriers. Due to
capital expansion in the industry over the past ycar, we were able to increase market share with existing customers
and procure new customers as steps were laken by the carriers for larger investments in these areas.

Although revenues increased significantly in each subsidiary, the Wireless Infrastructure segment reported a net loss
from operations. The loss was mainly due to costs incurred in excess of contract prices on a project in our ITC
subsidiary. The project related to services performed outside our typical area of expertise and in a geographic area
where significant expenses were incurred related to overtime and travel. In fiscal year 2006, we took steps to help
mitigate these types of losses through implementation of a new management team within this subsidiary as well as
ongoing restructurings related to customer contract negotiations, purchasing procedures, and cost reduction plans.
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Gross Profit

Gross proﬁt for the year ended August 31, 2006 was $6.0 million, representmg 21% of revenues, compared to $3 3
_million rcpresemmg 22% of revenues for thc year cnded Augusl 31, 2005, an increase of $2.7 million, or 82%. The
w p;rosa profit: mcrcase WS d‘ﬁéq'mamly ioincieascd Feventes: offset’ somewhat by increased costs assouated with ';
geographic and branch expansion and hiring and training of new employees. ‘

Gross profit for the year ended August 31, 2005 was $3.3 million representing 22% of revenues, compared to $1:3
million representing 2 1% of revenues for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2004, The increase in gross profit was due
to the increased revenues as discussed above. The increase in gross profit margin was due mainly to an increase in
gross profit margins of 13% in our construction services entity due to internal management restructuring and
successful execution of strategies including accepting contracts with higher margins, procuring additional work
directly with carriers, and hiring employces rather than subcontracting a larger percentage of the work performed.
This was offset by a decrease in gross profit margin of 31% in our ITC subsidiary due to costs incurred in excess of
contract prices as discussed above. .

' - |

Operating Income (Loss) |

There was an operating loss for the yecar ended August 31, 2006 of (80.1) million, compared to an operating loss of
(80.6) million for the year ended August 31, 2005, a decrease in operating loss of $0.5 million, or 79%. The
improvement in operating income was due mainly to the increased gross profits described above offset somewhat by
increased selling, general and administrative expenses related to hiring of new management personnel and branch
expansion. Additionally, a non-recurring impairment charge on certain intangible assets of $0.2 million was.
recognized in fiscal year 2005 due to restructurings of personnel. : [

The operating loss for the year ending August 31, 2005 was ($0.6) million, compared to ($0.1) million for the year
ended August 31, 2004, a decrease in operating income of ($0.5) million, or 500%. Our ITC subsidiary reported a
decrease in operating income of $1.3 million due mainly to decreased gross margins as discussed above, ITC
recognized an impairment charge on certain intangible assets of $0.2 million due to restructurings of personnel,
resulting in non-compete agreement violations. The remaining subsidiaries in the wireless telecommunications
segment reported an increase in operating profits of $0.8 million.

Business Solutions

Business Solutions segment operating results for the years ended August 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows::

ll
!
|
:
|
!

Year ended
August 31, 2006 August 31, 2005 August 31, 2004
{Dollars in thousands)
Net revenues § 44,543 100% § 28458 100% 5 17958 100%
Cost of revenues 34.084 76.5% 21,646 76.1% 13,854 77.1% -
Gross profit 10,459 23.5% 6,812 23.9% 4,104 229%
Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative 6,437 14.5% 4,107 14.4% 1,937 10.8%
Depreciation and amortization 599 1.3% 336 1.2% 157 0.9%
Total operating expenses 7.036 15.8% 4,443 §5.6% 2,094 11.7%
Segment operating income (loss) $§ 3423 1.7% $ 2,369 8.3% $ 2,010 11.2%

Revenues

Revenues for the year ended August 31, 2006 were $44.5 million, compared to $28.5 million for the year ended
August 31, 2005, an increase of $16.0 million, or 56%. The primary reason for the revenue increase was the
acquisition of CSM in April 2005. We reported five months revenues for fiscal year 2005 of $6.5 million and
twelve months of revenues for fiscal year 2006 of $16.6 million related to this entity. The remaining increase in
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revenues was due mainly to an increase in the customers resulting in the total number of co-employees increasing
| 13% from 6,886 at August 31, 2005 as compared to 7,806 at August 31, 2006.
|

_Revenues for the year ended August 31, 2005 were $28.5 m11110n compared to $18.0 million for the year ended
"""August 3m04!anmase ol 0] mllllOH'LPSM ywhithiwasjacquiredioni@ciobétal+2003:Had;reventes:of §21.9..
“million for the year ended August 31, 2005 as combared to-$ 180" million'for the'eleven monthstended A ugustis'
2004, an increase of $3.9 million. The increase in revenues was due to an increase in the customer base. CSM,
which was acquired effective April 1, 2005, reported revenues of $6.5 million for the five months ended August 31,
2005,

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended August 31, 2006 was $10.5 million, representing 24% of revenue, compared to $6.8
million, representing 24% of revenues for the year ended August 31, 2005, an increase of $3.7 million, or 54%. The
primary reason for the increase in gross profit was the acqu1smon of CSM in Aprll 2005 CSM reported gross profit
14 mxlhonforthe-ﬁve‘momhs ended ﬁscal can 2005, dto:53: ; yearg2 006G 105 REaiineiatas

Pt e i - : N
plan resultmg in approx1mate1y $0.5 million in earnings. “Thé reiMaining increasé was sdifet RULH
SR revenues discussed above.

Gross profit for the year ended August 31, 2005 was $6.8 mllhon representmg 24% of revenues as compared to
$4.1 miltion for the year ended August 31, 2004, representing 23% of revenue. PSM reported gross margin of $5.4
million, or 24%, for the twelve months ended August 31, 2005 as compared to $4.1 million, or 25%, for the eleven
months ended August 31, 2004. The increase in gross profit was due mainly to a decreased claims experience in our
partially self-funded health insurance plan. This decrease in insurance expense was offset somewhat by a 1%
Indiana state increase in the unemployment tax in January 2005. CSM, which was acquired effective April 1, 2005,
reported gross profit of $1.4 million, or 22% of revenues for the five months ended August 31, 2005.

Operating Income

Operating income for the year ended August 31, 2006 was $3.4 million, compared to $2.4 million for the year ended
August 31, 2005, an increase of $1.0 million, or 42%. CSM reported five months of operating income of $0.2 -
million for the year ended August 31, 2005 as compared to $0.8 million for the fiscal year 2006. Operating income
increased for the year ended August 31, 2006 due mainly to an increase in revenues and gross profits as discussed
above offset somewhat by an increase in administrative and sales personnel expense.

Operating income for the year ended August 31, 2005 was $2.4 million as compared to $2.0 million for the year

ended August 31, 2004. PSM, which was acquired on October 1, 2004, reported operating income of $2.2 million

for the twelve months ended August 31, 2005 as compared to $2.0 million for the eleven months ended August 31,

2004. Operating income increased disproportionately with revenues due mainly to an increase in internal employees.
_ CSM reported operating income of $0.2 million for the five months ended August 31, 2005.

Transportation Infrastructure

Transportation Infrastructure segment operating results for the year ended August 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as
follows:
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Year ended .
Augusl 3t, 2006 August 31, 2005 August 31, 2004

(Doltars in thowsands)
Net revenues o § 57931 100% 5§ 46,549 100% - § 17.539 100%
Cost of revenues 3,137 88.3% 42,268 90.8% 14,803 84.4%
Gross profit . s 6,794 11.7% 4,281 9.2% 2,736 15.6%
Operating expenses e
Selling, general and adminisirative 3340 5.8% 2814 6.0% 945 54%
Depreciation and amortization 484 0.8% 459 1.0% 201 1.1%
Total operating expenses 3.824 6.6% 3.273 7.0% 1.146 6.5%
Segment operating income (loss) 3 2970 5.1% S 1,008 22% 5 1.5%0 9.1%
Revenues

Revenues for the year ended August 31, 2006 were $57.9 million compared to $46.5 million for the year ended
August 31, 2005, an increase of $11.4 million, or 25%. Revenues increased due mainly to favorable weather
conditions, increased market conditions in two Midwestern geographic markets, a change in job mix where we acted
as general contractor, thereby having greater control over timing of completion and scheduling of construction
crews, and improved market conditions due to the release of federal highway funds.

Revenues for the year ended August 31, 2005 were $46.5 million compared to $17.5 million for the year ended
August 31, 2004, an increase of $29.0 million, or 166%. The increase in revenues was due mainiy to the acquisition
of JH Drew in April 2004, resulting in four months of activity for the year ended August 31, 2004. Revenues
increased 2% on a pro-forma basis for the twelve months ended August 31, 2005 as compared to August 31, 2004,
The increase in pro-forma revenues was due mainly to a mild spring and moderate rainfall in the summer in the
Midwest states where we operate,

. +

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended August 31, 2006 was $6.8 million, representing 12% of revenues, compared to $4.3
million, representing 9% of revenues for the year ended August 31, 2005, an increase of $2.5 million, or 58%. The
increase in gross profit was due mainly to the revenues increase discussed above. Gross profit as a percentage of
revenues increased due to favorable weather conditions and change in job mix where we actéd as general contractor
both of which resulted i in increased productivity. These increases were offset somewhat by cost incurred in excess
of contract pnces on a project in one operating division. In fiscal year 2006, we took steps to help mitigate these
types of losses through implementation of a new management team within this subsidiary.

Gross profit for the year ended August 31, 2005 was $4.3 million representing 9% of revenues, compared o $2.7
mitlion representing 16% of revenues for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2004. The increase in gross profit dollars
was due to the acquisition of JH Drew in April 2004. The decrease in gross profit margin was due mainly to
seasonality and the inherent factors within the construction industry, which was new in 2005, heavy competition as a
result of the delayed passing of legislation within the highway constructlon industry, and i increase 1n steel and d:esel
prices. : ..

Operating Income

Operating income for the year ended August 31, 2006 was $3.0 million, compared to operating income of $1.0
million for the year ended August 31, 2005, an increase of $2.0 million, or 200%. Operating income for the year
endmg August 31, 2006 as compared to the same periods ending August 31, 2005 increased due mainly to the
mcrease in gross proﬁts discusséd above,

Operating income for the year ending August 31, 2005 was $1.0 million, compared to $1.6 million for the year

ended August 31, 2004, a decrease of ($0.6) million, or 38%. The decrease in operating income was due mamly to
) decrcased gross margins as discussed above as well as and an increase in workers compensation ClalrnS
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Ultraviolet Technologies

Ultraviolet Technologies segment operating results for the year ended August 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as i

follows:
Year ended
August 31, 2006 August 31, 2005 August 31, 2004
{Dollars in thousands)
Net revenues $ 12437 100%  § 10,771 1060% § 10,526 100%
Cost of revenues 7177 51.7% 5,934 55.1% 5,602 53.2%
Gross profit 5,260 42.3% 4,837 44.9% 4924 468%

e ._%‘Operalmg cxpcnscs e ’ N S e Lo e i, LN e . L . ;
Scllmg gencml and admlmstmnvc 4175 33.6% . - 46638 43 3%_ ":;' 4035 -f-._v_,;;_‘-}!};f}%;f; IR ':i;;,'gg';;', M
Depreciation and amortization 418 3.4% 393 3.6% 420 4.0% T

Total operating expenses 4,593 36.9% 5,056 46.9% 4,455 42.3%
Segment operating income {loss) $ 667 5.4% $ (219) -2.0% 3 469 4.5%
Revenues

Revenues for the year ended August 31, 2006 were $12.4 million compared to $10.8 million for the year ended
August 31, 2005, an increase of $1.6 million, or 15%. The increase in revenues was mainly due to new and/or
improved technologies and increased marketing efforts. Domestic sales increased in fiscal 2006 due to proprietary
product sales through a toll manufacturing agreement and sales of POP/ decal inks from our acquisition of [nk
Source in fiscal year 2005. International sales increased due to greater demand in the Asian marketplace including
nameplate/ membrane switch product sales and a license agreement of products entered into in August 2006 with a_
Japanese manufacturer. Additionally, we increased prices across various product lines in July 2005 due to mainly to
increased costs of raw materials. The increase in revenues was offset somewhat by lower U.S. sales to the loosc
leaf, tag and label and compact disk markets due to competition.

Revenues for the year ended August 31, 2005 were $10.8 million compared to $10.5 million for the year ended
August 31, 2004, an increase of $0.3 million, or 3%. The increase in revenues was due mainly to revenues the
acquisition of Ink-Source on September 30, 2004. This increase was offset by a decrease in revenues in the tag and E
label and compact disk markets which are shrinking, moving to combination print processes or becoming a ‘
commodity in a highly competitive market. Additionaily we have experienced a small increase in sales in Asia due

to an increase in sales in the nameplate/ membrane switch and container inks which are offsetting the erosion of

sales in the compact disk market.

Gross Prafit

Gross profit for the year ended August 31, 2006 was $5.3 million representing 42% of revenue, compared to $4.8
million representing 45% of revenues for the year ended August 31, 2005, an increase of 0.5 million, or 9%. Gross
profit increased slightly due mainly to price increases that were offset somewhat by additional costs related to
opening a new blending facility in July 2005 and to an increase in claims related to our partially self-funded health
plan. Gross profit as a percentage of revenues decreased slightly due to increased sales of lower margin items.

Gross profit for the year ended August 31, 2005 was $4.8 million representing 45% of sales, compared to $4.9
million representing 47% of sales for the year ended August 31, 2004, The decrease in gross profit margins was due
mainly to an increase in raw material costs that were offset somewhat by a price increase in the fourth quarter ended
August 31, 2005; and an increase in Asia sales for higher margin products as discussed above.

Operating Income

Operating income for the year ended August 31, 2006 was $0.7 million, compared to an operating loss of ($0.2)
million for the year ended August 31, 2005, an increase of $0.9 million, or 405%. The increase in operating income
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was due to the increase in gross profits described above and a decrease in personnel, mainly in sales This was
partially offset by an increase in research and development costs.

Operating income (loss) for thc year ended August 31, 2005 was ($0 2) million, compared to $0.5 million for the

year ended August 31, 2004, a decrease of ($0.7) million. The decrease in operating income was mainly due to the
decrease in gross margins as discussed above plus an increase in operating expenses of approximately $0.6 million
including the hiring of additional personnel, stock 1ssued to employees as part of certain employment agreements,

and increased expenses related to opening a new US branch and increased marketing efforts in Latin America and
Asia. These expenses were incurred primarily for business expansion and technology investment but were not offset
in 2003 with increased revenucs.

Electronics Integration

Electronics Integration segment operating results for the year ended August 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

Year ended .

August 31, 2006 August 31, 2005 August 31, 2004
{Dollars in thousands) }
Net revenues $ 14343 100% $ 12407 100% 3 14,507 100%
Cost of revenues 11913 83.1% 10,626 85.6% 11,955 82.4%
Gross profit 2430 16.9% 1,781 14.4% 2,552 17.6%
Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative 2,397 16.7% 2,243 18.1% 2,484 17.1%
Dcprecnatlon and amortization 124 0.9% 216 1.7% - 230 1.6%
Impairment I!oss ‘of intangible assets - 0.0% 417 1.4% - 0.0% \
Total operating expenses 2,521 17.6% 2,876 23.2% 2,714 18.7%
Segment operating income (loss) * . 3 (91) .-0.6% $ (1,095} *  -B.8% $ (162) 0% -

Revemies

Revenues for the year ended August 31, 2006 were $14.3 million compared to $12.4 million for the year ended
August 31, 2005, an increase of $1.9 million, or 15%. Revenues increased due mainly to the acquisition of AVR in
November 2005, which had ten month revenues of $1.3 million. This acquisition created our entry into the custom
home theatre market. Additionally, we expanded our television product offerings through new vendor relationships
which created more competitive pricing. These increascs were offset somewhal by the loss of a master dlstnbutor
agreement with a major electronics manufacturer in May 2005.

Revenues tor the year ended August 31, 2005 were $12.4 million compared to $14.5 million for the year ended
August 31, 2004, a decreasc of ($2.1) million, or 14%. This decrease is despite Commercial Solutions only reporting
seven months of activity for the twelve months ended August 31,2004, compared to twelve months ended August
31, 2005. The decrease in revenues in the distribution companies was mainly the result of a decreased customer base
due to the implementation of a more stringent credit policy resulting in lower sales volume and due to increased
pricing of certain products related to the loss of a master distributor agreement in April 2005 with a major
manufacturer for commercial televisions. This decrease in revenues was offset somewhat by expansion of product
offerings, mainly other brand name televisions from other manufacturers at competitive prices.

Gross Pmﬁf'.

Gross profit for the year ended August 31, 2006 was $2.4 million representing 17% of revenue, compared to $1.8
million représenting 14% of revenues for the year ended August 31, 2005, an increase of $0.6 million, or 33%.
Gross profit and gross proﬁt as a percentage. of revenues mcrcased as a result of the acquisition of AVR in
November 2005. : - i :

Gross profit for the year'ended August 31, 2005 was $1.8 million represaitiné 14% of sales, compared to $2.6
million representing 18% of sales for the year ended August 31, 2004. Gross profit margin decreased approximately
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3% due mainly to increased freight costs, and a $0.2 million increase in inventory reserves due to lower of cost or
market and obsolescence adjustments.

Operating Income (Loss)

There was an operating loss for the year ended August 31, 2006 of ($0.1) million, compared to an operating loss of
($1.1) million for the year ended August 31, 2005, a decreased loss of $1.0 million, or 91%. The change in
operating loss was due to the change in gross profits described above as well as a reduction in administrative and
sales personnel. Additionally, operating loss decreased $0.4 million in fiscal year 2006 versus fiscal year 2005 due
to impairment on certain intangible assets in fiscal 2005. The restructure resulted in a change to our customer base

and changes in key employees wnth non- compete agreements.

R T Wit 3

ended August 31, 2004, an increased loss of ($0.9) million. The increased loss was mainly due to the decreased
gross profits described above as well as impairment recognized on certain intangible assets of $0.4 million due to
management directed restructurings. Restructurings included a change in customer list due to the loss of a master
distributor agreement and a decrease in volume from the majority of customers included in the customer list at the
purchase date and changes in key employees with non-compete agreements.

Holding Company
Operating Expense

The Holding Company does not have any income producing operating assets. As such, the operating loss was cqual
to operating expenses. Operating expenses consist primarily of employee compensation and benefits, legal,
accounting and consulting fees. Operating expenses for the year ended August 31, 2006 were $3.2 miilion,
compared to $2.5 million for the year ended August 31, 2005, an increase of $0.7 million, or 28%. The increase was
due mainly to increased fees associated with our move to the American Stock Exchange from the OTC Bulletin
Board, additional corporate executive and accounting personnel; as well as increased audit, accounting and legal
expenses primarily resulting from Company growth.

Operating expenses for the year ended August 31, 2005 were $2.5 million, compared to $1.3 million for the year
ended August 31, 2004, an increase of $1.2 million, or 92%. This increase was due mainly to an increase in
accounting and legal expenses due to corporate growth through acquisitions and the hiring of additional executive
employees.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $2.5 million for the year ended August 31, 2006, compared to $1.4 million for the year ended
August 31, 2005, an increase of $1.1 million, or 79%. The increase was due mainly to partial bank financing of the
CSM acquisition in April 2005, additional borrowings under our line of credit for capital expenditures and other
funding to support wireless infrastructure growth, federal increase of prime rate interest, and issuance of a
convertible term note in Novemnber 2003 for working capital needs. This was offset by a decrease in $0.3 of interest
expense resulting from the conversion of a sharcholder note payable to preferred stock in fiscal 2006.

Interest expense for the year ended August 31, 2005 was approximately $1.4 million as compared to $0.6 million for
the year ended August 31, 2004. Interest expense increased in fiscal year 2005 approximately $0.5 million due to an
increase in prime and LIBOR rates. The remaining increase was due to an increase in debt of $10.6 million resulting
from acquisitions and operating and capital expenditure needs.

Income Taxes
There was ($0.4) million of income tax benefit for the year ended August 31, 2006, There was $0.1 million of
income tax expense for the year ended August 31, 2005. Federal income tax expense was offset through the release

of our valuation allowarnce to the extent of current period earnings and the release of the valuation allowance from
prior years net operating losses of $0.5 million based on conservative projections of taxable earnings in fiscal 2007.
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Management deems the likelihood of incurring taxable income for fiscal year ending August 31, 2007, in excess of
the deferred tax benefit of $0.5 million, to be more likely than not.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Our principal sources of liquidity include cash and equivalents, marketable securities and proceeds from debt
borrowings. We had $4.9 million, $6.0 million and $5.5 million of cash and equivalents and marketable securities at
August 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. At August 31, 2006 we had $11.7 million available on our line of
credit with the bank.

We had working capital of $23.4 million at August 31, 2006 compared with $1.2 million at August 31, 2005, The
increase in working capital was due mainly to the decrease in borrowings on our line of credit with the bank, which
occurred as a result of our borrowings on a $7.5 million long-term convertible note issued in November 2005 and
restructuring of our debt with the bank resulting in a $20 million reduction in short-term bank obligations anda
$16.6 million increase in long-term bank obligations. Excluding our debt obligations, working capital increased
approximately $2.7 million. We had $9.2 million in working capital at August 31, 2004. Current assets are
composed primarily of cash and equivalents, net accounts receivable, marketable securities, inventories, and costs &
estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts. :

Total debt at August 31, 2006 was $31.2 million including a $7.5 million convertible term note and $23.7 million in

bank debt. Total debt at August 31, 2005 was $33.2 million. The decrease in debt was due to the conversion of a

£6.6 million note payable to a stockholder to 66,180 shares of preferred stock.. Total debt at August 31, 2004 was

$22.6 million..On August 31, 2006, we negotiated a $35 million credit facility with Fifth Third Bank. Under terms

- of the new agreement, the term loan component is guarantged by personal assets of our two majority shareholders, :
while the revolving note is secured by assets of the Company.

The facility includes a $20 million term loan evidenced by a term loan note, which matures on August 31, 2011 and

a $15 million line of credit evidenced by a revolving ling of credit promissory note, which matures on August 31,

2008. Availability under the Revolving Loan is the lesser of $15 million or the borrowing base amount, which is
calculated monthly as a percentage of our eligible assets. [nterest is charged on the loans at LIBOR plus 1.75%, |
which may decrease to LIBOR plus 1.5% if we meet certain performance criteria. Qutstanding borrowings under our

line of credit amounted to $3,330 at August 31, 2006.

|
On November 21, 2005, we issued a convertible term note, in the principal amount of $7.5 million to Laurus, The ' }
convertible term note is convertible into shares of our common stock at an initial fixed conversion price of $5.50 per ‘
share. We also issued 10 Laurus a warrant, to purchase up to 272,727 shares of our common stock at an exercise |
price of $6.60 per share with a term of five years. In connection with the Laurus financing, we also issued to CB ‘
Capital Partners, Inc. (“CB Capital”} a warrant to purchase up to 13,636 shares of our common stock at an exercise ‘
price of $6.60 per share with a term of five years on January 25, 2006. |
The convertible term note has a term of three years and accrues interest at the prime rate plus 3% per year. Interest

on the principal amount is payable monthly, in arrears, on the first business day of each consecutive calendar month

thereafier until the maturity date. Under the terms of the convertible term note, the monthly principal payment is ’ |
payable either in cash at 102% of the respective menthly amortization amounts or, if certain criteria are met, in |
shares of our common stock. See Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements for additional dlscussmn of the

terms of the financing with Laurus.

The various debt agreements-contain restrictive covenants which limit, among other things, certain mergers and
acquisitions, redemptions of common stock, and payment of dividends. 1n addition, we must meet certain financial
ratios.

We have focused on rapid internal growth over the past three years and have incurred substantial operating costs in
the areas of research and development and branch expansion. Total capital-expenditures were $2.8 million, $1.9

million and $1.0 million for the years ended August 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Sources of funds for
this expansion have mainly been from additional borrowings from the bank,
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Cash Flows

Cash flows used in operations for the year ended August 31, 2006 was $1.2 million as compared to $5.3 million at

August 31, 2005. This increase in operating cash flows was due mainly to an increase in our net income of $4.5
million. Cash flows provided by operating activities was $0.5 million for the year ended August 31, 2004.

Net cash flow used in investing activities was $2.4 million for the year ended August 31, 2006 compared to $4.9
million for the year ended August 31, 2005. The decrease was due mainly to the acquisition of CSM effective April
1, 2005 as well as other smaller acquisitions in 2005 and 2006, offset largely by capital expenditures mainly in our
Wireless Infrastructure and Transportation Infrastructure segments related to increased construction work and

geographic expansion. Cash flows used in investing activities was $11.3 million for the ycar ended August 3 l, 2004.

Net cash flow provided by financing activities was $3.4 million for the year ended August 31, 2006 compared to

$10.4 million for thie year ended" August 31, 2005 The decrease-was maitilylttie-restilifofrlesabsmowinghicededito winmmasnemmny

=
'

finance operating and investing uses of cash. Cash flows provided by financing activitics was $13.2 milion for the
year ended August 31, 2004,

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of August 31, 2006:

Payments Duc By

Less than More than

Contractual obligation Total | year 1-2 years 3-5 years 5 years
{Dollars in thousands)

Debt and capital lease

obligations $ 31,167 $ 3.488 $ 13,640 3 6,039 $ 8000
Operating lease (1) 4,507 1,882 2,027 447 151
Total $ 35,674 $ 5,370 $ 15,667 $ 6486 $ 8,151

(1) OQperating leases represent the total future minimum lease payments,

Excluded from the above table is interest associated with borrowings under our line of credit and term loan with the
bank and our convertible note payable with Laurus because both the amount borrowed and applicable interest rate
are variable. :

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

As is common in the industries we operate in, we have entered into certain off-balance sheet arrangements in the
ordinary course of business that result in risks not directly reflected in our balance sheets. Our significant off-
balance sheet transactions include transactions with related parties, liabilities associated with guaranties, letter of
credit obligations and surety guarantees.

Transactions with Related Parties

We have entered into various acquisition agreements over the past three years which contain option agreements
between the sellers and our majority sharcholder, Mr, Carter Fortune, related to the Company’s stock. The option
agreements provide for put/ call options on the Company’s common stock held by the scllers. The put/ call options
range in price from $1 to $10 per common share. Total estimated cash outlays for these options range from $10
million to $13 million dollars and are expected to be exercised over the next fiscal year. As more fully described in
the footnotes to this filing, Harlan Schafir exercised his put sale rights by executing the sale of his shares of
Company stock to Mr. Fortune on November 22, 2006.
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We lease a total of six facilities with a limited liability company owned by the Company’s two majority
shareholders whose primary purpose is to own and lease these properties to the Company. The limited liability
company does not have any other significant assets. We may experience increased expenses related to leases due to
the Company’s review of the fair value of our lease payments. .

Refer to Note 17 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements for detailed information regardmg related
party transacllons

Guaranties

A significant portion of our debt and surety bonds are personally guaranteed by the Company’s Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer. Future changes to thesc guaranties may affect financing capacity of the
Company.

Restricted Ca_gh

Certain states and vendors require us 10 post letters of credit to ensure payment of taxes or payments to our vendors
under health insurance and workers compensation contracts and to guarantee performance under our contracts. Such
letters of credit are generally issued by a bank or similar financial institution. The letter of credit commits the issuer
to pay specified amounts to the holder of the letter of credit if the holder demonstrates that we have failed to perform
specified actions. If this were to occur, we would be required to reimburse the issuer of the letter of credit.
Depending on the circumstances of such a reimbursement, we may also have to record a charge to earnings for the
reimbursement. We do not believe that it is likely that any claims will be made under a letter of credit in the
foreseeable future. As of August 31, 2006, we had approximately $3.5 million in restricted cash primarily to secure *
obligations under our PEQO contracts in the Business Solutions segment.

Payment and Performance Bonds

Within our Wircless Infrastructure and Transportation [nfrastructure segments, certain customers, particularly in
connection with new construction, require us to post payment or performance bonds issued by a financial institution
known as a sutety. These bonds provide a guarantee to the customer that we will perform under the terms of a
contract and that we will pay subcontractors and vendors. If we fail to perform under a contract or to pay
subcontractors and vendors, the customer may demand that the surety make payments or provide services under the
bond. We must reimburse the surety for any expenses or outlays it incurs. Under our continuing indemnity and
security agreement with the surety, we have posted letters of credit in the amount of $7.5 million in favor of the -
surety and, with the consent of our lenders under our credit facility; we have granted security interests in certain of
our assets to collateralize our obligations to the surety. We expect this letter of credit in favor of the surety to be-
reduced in the. future. To date, we have not been required to make any reimbursements to the surety for bond-related
costs. We believe that it is unlikely that we will have 1o fund claims under our surety arrangements in the
foreseeable future. As of August 31, 2006, an aggregate of approximately $52.0 mxlhon in original face amount’ of
bonds issued by the surety were outstandmg

Control Group

A control group holds 80.3% of the outstanding Common Stock of the Company. As of August 31; 2006, Messrs.
John Fisbeck, Carter Fortune, Harlan Schafir, Norman Wolcott, Jr., the Norman G. Wolcett, Sr. and Lucille H.
Wolcott Revocable Trust of 1995 Marital Trust and the Norman G, Wolcott, Sr. and Lucille H. Wolcott Revocable
Trust of 1995 Survivar’s Trust (the “Wolcott Trusts™) are considered members of a “group” deemed to beneficially
own 8,456,134 shares of the Company’s Common Stock representing 80.3% of the outstanding Common Stock of
the Company. Individually, each of the above persons has the sole voting and dispositive power over the following
number of shares of the Company’s Common Stock as of August 31, 2006: John F. Fisbeck, 1,637,701 {or 15.6%),
Carter M. Fortune, 4,132,810 (or 39.3%), Harlan M. Schafir, 1,310,000 (or 12.4%), Norman G. Wolcott, Jr.,
individually, 713,751 (or 6.8%), Norman G. Wolcott Jr., as Trustee of the Wolcott Trusts, 285,372 (or 2.7%). In
addition to the above shares, Messrs. Fisbeck and Fortune share dispositive control over 376,500 (or 3.6%) shares of
the Company's Common Stock held by Fisbeck - Fortune Development, LLC.

+
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Critical Accounting Policies

The Company has identified the following policies as critical to its business and the understanding of its results of
operations. The impact of these policies is discussed throughout Management’s Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations where these policies affect reported and anticipated financial resuits.
For a detailed discussion on the application of these and other accounting policies see the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. Preparation of this report requires the Company’s use of estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements, and the reported revenue and expense amounts for the periods being reported. On
an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates these estimates, including those related to the valuation of accounts
receivable and inventory reserves, the potential impairment of long-lived assets and income taxes, valuation of
contingent consideration resulting from acquisitions, and valuation of certain liability reserves. The Company bases
the estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable, the
results of which forms the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Senior management has
discussed the development, selection, and disclosure of these estimates with the Company’s audit committee.

Management believes the following critical accounting policies affect its more significant judgments and estimates
used in preparation of its consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue recognition policies vary by operating segment. In the Wireless Infrastructure segment, Fortune Wireless,
PDH, ITC, JWA, and Magtech enter into contracts principally on the basis of competitive bids, the final terms and
prices of which are frequently negotiated with the customer. Although the terms of its contracts vary considerably,
most are made on a unit price basis in which the Company agrees 1o do the work for units of work performed. The
Company also performs services on a cost-plus or time and materials basis. The Company completes most projects
within twelve months. The Company generally recognizes revenue utilizing output measures, such as when services
are performed, units are delivered or when contract milestones are reached. Cornerstone Construction recognizes
revenue using the percentage of completion method on contracts in process. Under this method, the portion of the
contract price recognized as revenue is based on the ratio of costs incurred to the total estimated cost of the contract.
The estimated total cost of a contract is based upon management’s best estimate of the remaining costs that will be
required to complete a project. The actual costs required to complete a project and, therefore, the profit eventually
realized, could differ materially in the near term. Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted
contracts are shown as a current asset. Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts
are shown as a current liability. Anticipated losses on contracts, if any, are recognized when they become evident.

In the Business Solutions segment, PSM, CSM and related entities bill clients under their Professional Services
Agreement, which includes each worksite employee’s gross wages, plus additional charges for employment related
taxes, benefits, workers’ compensation insurance, administrative and record keeping, as well as safety, human
resources, and regulatory compliance consultation. Most wages, taxes and insurance coverage-are provided under
PSM’s and CSM’s federal, state, and local or vendor identification numbers. No identification or recognition is
given to the client when these monies are remitted or calculations are reported. Most calculations or amounts that
PSM and CSM owe the government and its employment insurance vendors are based on the experience levels and
activity of PSM and CSM with no consideration to client detail. PSM and CSM bill the client their worksite
employees’ gross wages plus an overall service fee that includes components of employment related taxes,
employment benefits insurance, and administration of those items, The component of the service fee related to
administration varies, in part, according to the size of the client, the amount and frequency of payroll payments and
the method of delivery of such payments. The component of the service fee related to workers’ compensation and
unemployment insurance is based, in part, on the client’s historical claims experience. Charges by PSM and CSM
are invoiced along with each periodic payroll delivered to the client.

PSM and CSM report revenues in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") No. 99-19, Reporting

Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent. PSM and CSM report revenues on a gross basis, the total
amount billed to clients for service fees which includes health and welfare benefit plan fees, workers’ compensation
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insurance, uniemployment insurance fees, and employment-related taxes. PSM and CSM report revenues on a gross
basis for such fees because PSM and CSM are the primary obligor and deemed to be the principal in these
transactions under EITF No. 99-19. However, PSM and CSM report revenues on a net basis for the amount billed to
clients for worksite employee salaries and wages. This accounting policy of reporting revenue net as an agent versus
gross as a principal has no effect on gross profit, operating income, or net income.

PSM and CSM account for their revenues using the accrual method of accounting. Under the accrual method of
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which the worksite employee performs work. PSM and CSM
accrue revenues for service fees, health and welfare benefit plan fees, workers’ compensation and unemployment
insurance fees relating to work performed by worksite employees but unpaid at the end of each period. PSM and
CSM accrue unbilled receivables for payroll taxes, service fees, health and welfare benefits plan fees, workers’
compensation and unemployment insurance fees relating to work performed by warksite employees but unpaid at
the end of each period. In addition, the related costs of services are accrued asa liability for the same period.
Subsequent to the end of each period, such costs are paid and the related service fees are billed.

Consistent with their revenue recognition policy, PSM and CSM’s direct costs do not include the payroll cost of its
worksite employees. The Company’s direct costs associated with its revenue generating activities are comprised of
all other costs related to its worksite employees, such as the employer portion of payroll-related taxes, employee
benefit plan premiums and workers’ compensation insurance costs.

In the Transportation Infrastructure segment, JH Drew recogmzes revenue using the perceniage of completion
method on contracts in process. Under this method, the portion of the contract price recognized as revenue is based
on the ratio of costs incurred to the total estimated cost of the contract. The estimated total cost of a contract is based
upon management’s best estimate of the remaining costs that will be required to complete a project. The actual costs
required to complete a pl‘OjCCl and, therefore, the profit eventually realized, could differ materially in the near term.

. Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts are shown as a current asset. Billings in

excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts are shown as a current liability. Anticipated losses
on contracts,’ if any, are recognized when they become evident.

[n the Ultraviolet Technologies segment, revenue from the sale of products at Nor-Cote is recognized according to
the terms of the sales arrangement, which is generally upon shipment. Revenues are recognized, net of estimated
costs of retums allowances and sales incentives, title and principal ownership transfers to the customer, which is
generally when products are shipped to customers. Products are generally sold on open account under credit terms
customary to,the geographic region of distribution. Ongoing credit evaluations are performed on customers and the
Company does not generally require collateral to secure accounts receivable.

In the Electronics Integration segment, revenue from the sale of products at ngston and Commercnal Solutlons Is
recognized accordmg to the terms of the sales arrangement, which is generally upon shipment. Revenues are
recognized when title and principal ownership transfers to the customer, which is generally when products are
sh1pped to customers. Products are generally sold on open account under credit terms customary to the geographic
region of distribution. Ongoing credit evaluations are performed on customers and the Company does not generalty
require collateral to secure accounts receivable. AVR enters into contracts principally on the basis of competitive
bids, the final terms and prices of which are frequently negotiated with the customer. Although the terms of its
contracts vary considerably, most are made on a unit price basis in which the Company agrees to do the work for

units of work performed. The Company also performs services on a cost-plus or time and materials basis. The

Company completes most projects within one month. The Company generally recognizes revenue utilizing output
measures, such as when services are performed, units are delivered or when contract milestones are reached.

.

Revenue is reduced by appropriate allowances, estimated returns, price concessions, and similar adjustments, as
applicable,

¥Yaluation of Accounts Receivable and [nventol‘y Reserves:
Collectab1l1ty of accounts receivable is evaluated for each sub51d1ary based on the subsndlary s industry and current

economic conditions. Other factors include analysis of historical bad debs, projected losses, and current past due
accounts. Inventories are valued at lower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out method based on average cost.
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The Company’s valuation of inventory includes both a markdown reserve for inventory that will be sold below

original cost, and a usage reserve. The reserve values are evaluated by each subsidiary based upon historical

information and assumptions about future demand and market conditions. The usage reserve value is based on

historical information and assumptions as to usage of current product in inventory and related usage trends. The
Gompanyas,accounts receivable and, 1nventory reserves mcreased by $0.1 million and decreased by (30.1) million

respectlvely, at August 31, 2006 compared 1o Auguéﬁl 005 T o D A A e ST AT KIS WA R E
usage reserves could be required in future periods due to changes in market conditions.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets:

The Company has adopted SFAS No. 142, With the adoption of SFAS 142, material goodwill included in the
Company’s Wireless Infrastructure, Business Solutions, Transportation Infrastructure, Ultraviolet Technologies and
Electronics Integration segments was assessed for impairment. [n making this assessment, management relies on a
number of factors including operating results, business plans, economic projections, anticipated future cash flows,
and transactions and market place data. There are inherent uncertainties related to these factors and management’s
judgment in applying them to the analysis of goodwill impairment. Since management’s judgment is involved in
performing goodwill and other intangible assets valuation analyses, there is risk that the carrying value of the o
goodwill and other intangible assets may be overstated or understated. 4

The Company has elected to perform the annual impairment test of recorded goodwill as required by SFAS 142 as
of the end of fiscal fourth quarter. The results of this annual impairment test indicated that the fair value of each of
the reporting units as of August 31, 2006, exceeded the carrying, or book value, including goodwill, and therefore

recorded goodwill was not subject to impairment,

In the fiscal year ended August 31, 2005, the Company recognized impairment on certain other intangible assets in
its Wireless Infrastructure segment of $0.2 million and its Electronics Integration segment of $0.4 million.
Management determined the assets were impaired based upon violation of non-compete agreements with certain
terminated employees and a substantial change in the customer mix within the Electronics Integration segment.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets:

for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” which generally requires the Company to assess these assets
for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying amounts of such assets may
not be recoverable. The Company considers historical performances and future estimated results in its evaluation of
potential impairment and then compares the carrying amount of the asset to the estimated non-discounted future
cash-flows expected to result from the use of the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment
recognized is measured by comparing projected individual segment discounted cash flows to the asset segment
carrying values. The estimation of fair value is measured by discounting expected future cash flows at the discount
rate the Company utilizes to evaluate potential investments. Actual results may differ from these estimates and as a
result the estimation of fair values may be adjusted in the future.

The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets in accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting
|
|
I
|
|

Income Taxes:

Deferred tax assets are recognized for taxable temporary differences, tax credit and net operating loss carryforwards.
These assets are reduced by a valuation allowance, which is established when it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. In 2004, based on this evaluation; the Company recorded
approximately a 75% valuation allowance on the consolidated balance sheet for its deferred tax assets. This amount
approximates a valuation allowance of 75% on its Wireless Infrastructure segment, 25% on its Business Solutions
segment, 75% on its Transportation Infrastructure segment, 100% on its Ultraviolet Technologies segment, and
100% on its Electronics Integration segment. During 20035, the Company recorded a 100% valuation allowance on
additions to deferred tax assets due to uncertainty regarding future profitability of the Company based on its 2005
loss and estimated increase in budgeted operating expenses related to implementation of certain provisions of the
Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002, In 2006, the Company released 20% of the valuation allowance totaling $0.5 million.
This amount was a release of 40% of the Transportation Infrastructure segment and 60% of the Business Solutions
segment. In addition, management is required to estimate taxable income for future years by taxing jurisdictions and
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to consider this when making its judgment to determine whether or not to record a valuation allowance for part or all

of a deferred tax asset. A one percent change in the Company’s overall statutory tax rate for 2006 would not have a
material effect in the carrying value of the net deferred tax assets or liabilities.

The Company has operations tn multiple taxing jurisdictions and is subject to audit in these jurisdictions. Tax audits
by their nature are often complex and can require several years to resolve. Accruals of tax contingencies require

) managcmcm 10 make estimates and judgments with respect to the ultimate outcome of tax audits. Actual results

could vary from these estimates.
Accrued [nsurance and Workmen’s Compensation Reserves:

The Company’s Business Solutions segment recognizes significant reserves in relation to its partially self-funded
worksite employees’ health and partially self-funded workers compensation programs based on (a) the amount of

past claims incurred and (b) the estimated time lag to report and pay such claims. The Company’s policy for its

partially self-funded health plan is to accrue estimated unpaid claims incurred during the fiscal year based on the
weighted average historical claims paid over a 2-month 10 3-month lag period. PSM is insured for losses under its

health plan in excess of approximately $0.2 million per person with an aggregate stop loss of $13.4 million at

August 31, 2006, Our deductible under our workers compensation insurance is $0,25 million. The combined reserve
recognized for unpaid health and workers compensation benefits on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet is i
$3.4 million (for which approximately $3.4 million of cash is restricted on the Company’s consotidated balance

sheet) for the year ended August 31, 2006.

New Accounting Policies:

In June 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, “Considering the
Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements”, which
requires companies to evaluate the materiality of identified unadjusted errors on each financial statement and related
financial statement disclosure using both the rollover approach and the iron curtain approach. SAB 108 is effective
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2006. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this
interpretation will have on its financial statements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN™) No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes”, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in financial statements in
accordance with SFAS No. 109. This Interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute
for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax
return. The Interpretation requires that the Company recognize in the financial statements the impact of a tax
position if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on the technical merits of the
position. The Interpretation also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning afier
December 15 2006. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this interpretation will have on its financial
statements,

In June 2006 the FASB reached a consensus on EITF Issue No. 06-03, “How Taxes Collected from Customers and '
Remitted to Governmental Authoritics Should be Presented in the Income Statement (That Is, Gross versus Net
Presentation).” The Task Force reached a conclusion that the presentation of taxes assessed by a governmental

authority that is directly imposed through a revenue-producing transaction between a seller and a customer on either

a gross basis (included in revenues and costs) or on a net basis (excluded from revenues) is an accounting policy i
decision that should be disclosed. The provisions of EITF 06-03 become effective as of December 31, 2006. The
Company does not expect this statement to have a material impact on its financial position, results of operations or

cash flows.

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, “Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets.” Statement 156 _
amends SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of '
Liabilities,” and requires all separately recognized servicing assets and servicing liabilities to be initially measured

at fair value, if practicable, and permits an entity to subsequently measure those servicing assets and servicing
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liabilities at fair value. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006. The Company
does not expect this statement to have a material impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments — An
Amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140.” SFAS 155 provides entities with relief from having to
separately determine the fair value of an embedded derivative that wouldiotherwiselbélreqiiifeditolbelbifircated;
from its host contract in accordance with SFAS No. 133. SFAS 155 allows an entity to make an irrevocabl¢ éléction ="
to measure such a hybrid financial instrument at fair value n its entirety, with changes in fair value recognized in

earnings. SFAS No. 155 is effective for all financial instruments acquired, issued or subject to a remeasurement

event occurring after the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006. The

Company does not expect this statement to have a material impact on its financial position, results of operations or

cash flows.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154 “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections” which supersedes APB
Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes” and SFAS No. 3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial
Statemnents”. SFAS 154 provides guidance on the accounting for and reporting of accounting changes and error -
corrections. 1t establishes, unless impractible, retrospective application as the required method for reporting a change
in accounting principle in the absence of explicit transition requirements specific to the newly adopted accounting
principle. The correction of an error in previously issued financial statements is not an accounting change. However,
the reporting of an error correction involves adjustments to previously issued financial statements similar to those
generally applicable to reporting an accounting change retroactively. Therefore, the reporting of a correction of an
error by restating previously issued financial statements is also addressed by this Statement. SFAS 154 is effective
for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact this interpretation will have on its financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment”. This statement is a revision of
SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, and supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion No.
25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employvees™. SFAS 123R focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in
which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions. The Statement required entitics to
recognize compensation expense for awards of equity instruments to employees based on the grant-date fair value of
those awards (with limited exccptions). SFAS 123R also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of
recognized compensation expense to be reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flow as
prescribed under the prior accounting rules. On September 1, 2005, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS
123R using the modified prospective method. The adoption of this statement resulted in increased salaries, wages,
and related expenses. The amount of the impact was immaterial to the Company for the year ended August 31,
2006.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs™. This statement clarifies the accounting for
abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and wasted material (spoilage), and requires that
these items be recognized as current-period charges. In addition, SFAS 151 is effective for the first quarter of fiscal
year 2006. The Company does not expect this statement to have a material impact on its financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

In September 2004, the FASB reached a consensus on EITF Issue No. 04-08, “The Effect of Contingently
Convertible Instruments on Diluted Earnings per Share.” The Task Force reached a conclusion that Contingently
Convertible Instruments should be included in diluted earnings per share computations, if dilutive, regardless of
whether the market price trigger or other contingent features have been met. Contingent stock resulting from various
acquisitions over the last three years, not included in the Company’s common stock outstanding at August 31, 2006;
are included in the accompanying statements of operations and Note 15 in diluted camings per share.

Forward-Looking Statements:
Statements contained in this document, as well as some statements by the Company in periodic press releases and
oral statements of Company officials during presentations about the Company constitute ““forward-looking

statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Act”). Forward-
looking statements include statements that are predictive in nature, depend on or refer to future events or conditions,
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which include words such as “expect,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “predict,” “believe™ and similar expressions. These
statements are based on the current intent, belief or expectation of the Company with respect to, among other things,
trends affecting the Company’s financial condition or results of operations. These statements are not guaranties of
future performance and the Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

. Actual events and results involve risks and uncertainties and may differ materially from those expressed or

forecasted in forward-looking statements due to a number of factors. Factors that might cause or contribute to such
differences, include, but are not limited to, the risks and uncertainties that are discussed under the heading “Risk
Factors.” Readers should carefully review the risk factors referred to above and the other documents filed by the

" Company w1th the Securities and Exchange Commission.

" Item 7A, Quanntatwe and Qualztattve Disclosures about Market Risk
R R T , :

BRI SR

We are exposed to certain market r1sks arising from adverse changes in interest rates duc primarily to the potcnual :

effect of such changes on our variable rate line of credit and term note with the bank and our convertible term note
as described in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements. Approximately 98% of the Company’s debt as of
August 31, 2006 bears interest at variable rates. At August 31, 2006 and 2005, we have no outstanding interest rate
swap agreements. Based on amounts outstanding at August 31, 2006, if the interest rate on the Company’s variable
debt were to increase by 1.0%, annual interest expense would be higher by approximately $0.3 million.

Cash and cash equivalents as of August 31, 2006 was $3.6 million and is primarily invested in money market
interest bearing accounts. A hypothetical 10% adverse change in the average interest rate on the Company’s
investment$ would not have had a material effect on net income for the year ended August 31, 2006. We do not
currently utlhze any derivative financial instruments to hedge interest rate risks.

We are expgsed to foreign currency risks due to both transactions and translations between functional and reporting
currencies in our European, Singapore, and Chinese foreign subsidiaries. A hypothetical 10% adverse change in the

foreign currency translation would not have had a material effect on net income for the year ended August 31, 2006,

We do not currently utilize any derivative financial instruments to hedge foreign currency risks.
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Report of lndependent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Fortune Industries, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Indianapolis, IN 46278

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Fortune Industries, Inc, and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of August 31, 2006 and 2005 and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended August 31, 2006. Our audits also included the

financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Part [V, Item 15. These consolidated financial statements and

schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purposc of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinions. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Fortune Industries, Inc. and subsidiaries as of August 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended August 31, 2006 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the related financial
statement schédule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly'in all material respects the information set forth therin,

/s/ Somerset CPAs, P.C.

Indianapolis, Indiana
November 17, 2006
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FORTUNE INDUSTRIES, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Restricted cash
Marketable securities (Note 3)
Accounts receivable, net (Note 4)
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings
on uncompleted contracts (Note 5)
Inventory, net (Note 6)
Deferred tax asset (Note 11)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Tota! Current Assets

OTHER ASSETS
Property, plant & equipment, net (Note 7)
Goodwill (Note 8)
Other intangible assets, net (Note 8)
Long-term accounts receivable (Note 4)
Other long-term assets

Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS})

ASSETS

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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. August 31,

August 31,
2006 2005
$ 3,632 $ 3,787
3,462 1,484
1,281 2,199
25,731 21,358
4,500 2,681
6,761 8,315
1,535 1,014
1,922 1,790
48,824 42,628
6,323 5,064
11,984 11,680
. 4,299 4,705
1,276 600
1,579 409
25,461 22,458
b3 74,285 b3 65,086




FORTUNE INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (CONTINUED)

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Line of credit (Note 9) b3
Current maturities of long-term debt (Note 9)
Current maturities of convertible term note (Note 9)
Accounts payable
Health and workers' compensation reserves
Accrued expenses
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on
uncompleted contracts (Notg 5)
Other current liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (NOTE 9)
Line Of credit
Long-term debt, less current maturities
Convertible term note
Line of credit - related party
Other long-term liabilities

Total Long-Term Liabilities

chtal Liabilities

COMM[TMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (NOTE 13)

Common stock, $0.10 par value; 150,000,000 authorized,;
10,522,722 and 10,559,843 issued and outstanding at
Aughst 31, 2006 and August 31, 2003, respectively

Preferred stock, $0.10 par value; 1,000,000 authorized;
66, 180 and 0 issued and outstanding at August 31 2006
and August 31, 2005, respectively

Additional paid-in capital and warrants outstanding (Note 12)

Accumulated deficit

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total Shareholders' Equity

i TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY - §

August 31, August 31,
2006 - 2005

: 18,998
2,124 2,675

1,364 -
9,324 7,095
3,363 4,000
5,449 6,288
1,968 2,101
1,849 271
25,441 41,428

3,330 -

18,213 4 898

6,136 -

- 6,618

. 215, 69
27,894 11,585
53,335 53,013
- 1,053 1,04?

6,618 / -

17,633 17,340
(4,518) (6,406)
164 93
20,950 12,073
74,285 65,086

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FORTUNE INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

REVENUES
Service revenues
Product revenues
TOTAL REVENUES

COST OF REVENUES
Service cost of revenues
Product cost of revenues
TOTAL COST OF REVENUES

GROSS PROFIT

OPERATING EXPENSES
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Impatrment on intangible assets {Note 8)
Total Operating Expenses

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
[nterest income
Interest expense
Gain (loss) on investments in marketable securities, net (Note 3)
Exchange rate gain (loss)
Other income
Total Other Income (Expense)

INCOME (L0SS) BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES
Provision (Benefit} for income taxes (Note 11}
NET INCOME (LOSS)

Preferred stock dividends

NET INCOME (LOSS) AVAILABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS

BASIC INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE
Basic weighted average shares outstanding

DILUTED INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding

See Accompanying Noves to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended
August 31, August 31, August 31,
2006 2005 2004
$ 57,354 $ 19,809 24310
99,759 73,287 42,572
157,113 113,096 66,882
43,184 30,702 19,076
83,025 61,369 32,182
126,209 92,071 51,258
30,904 21,025 15,624
24,985 19,685 11,912
2,269 1,709 1,164
- 636 -
27,254 22,030 13,076
3,650 (1,005) 2,548
346 61 -
(2,483) (1,445} (620)
)] (40) 36
5 - (34)
285 194 19
(1,854) (1,230) (599)
1,796 (2,235 1,949
{423) 82 (453)
2,219 (2,317 2,402
331 - -
$ 1,888 % (2317) 2,402
$ 0.18 § {0.22) 0.23
10,582,203 10,495,794 10,208,544
$ 016 § (0.22) 0.23
11,845,284 10,500,794 10,248,544




' FORTUNE INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)
Additional Accumulated
Paid-in Capital Other Total
Common Preferred  and Warrents  Accumulated  Comprehensive Shareholders” Comprehensive
Stock Stock Outstanding Deficit Income Equity | Income
BALANCE AT AUGUST 31, 2003 $ 801 § - 3 11,406 § (6.491) $ (63) 3 5654 % 52
Issuance of 1,370,000 shares of common
stock for acquisitions 137 - 4,329 - - 4,466 § -
Reclassification of temporary equity to
permanent equity 80 - 400 - - 480 -
Reclassification of permanent equity fo
IeMpOrary equity (1) . {242) - - (253) -
Net income : - - . 2,462 - 2,402 2,402
Foreign currency translation
adjustments, net of tax - - - - 208 208 208
Unrezlized gains {losses) on
investments, net of tax - - - - {126) {116) (126)
Reclassification adjusiments for realized
gains & losses included in net income,
net of tax i - - - - {13) (13} {13)
[ _Total comprehensi;w income . - . - - - - - 3 1,513
BALANCE AT AUGUST 31, 2004 s 1,008 § - 8 15,893 § (4,089) § 6§ 1208
Issuance of 223,350 shares of common
stock for acquisitions 23 - 1012 - - 1,035 § -
Exercise of stock options 2 - - - - 2 -
| Reclassification of 80,000 shares of common
stock for contingency settlements 8 - 176 - - 184 -
Other stock compensation 5 - 259 - - 264 -
Net income . - - - (2317 - 317 23N
Foreign currency translation '
adjustments, net of tax - - - - (k] {7 (7
Unrealized gains {losses) on . - N
investments, net of 1ax . - . . 64 o4 64
Reclassification adjustments for realized
gains & losses included in net income,
net of tax ’ - - . - 40 40 40
Total comprehensive loss . - - - - - - $ (2,230)
BALANCE AT AUGUST 31, 2005 5 1,046 § - 3 17,340 % (6,406) § 93§ 12,073
Issuance of 64,459 shares of common
stock for acquisitions 7 - 293 - - 30 s -
Retirement of 101,580 shares of common
stock (2) - (98) - - (100) -
Issuance of 66,180 shares of preferred
stock - 6,618 - - - 6,618 .
Stock compensation 2 - 98 - - 100 .
Net income ‘ - - - 2,219 - 229 2,219
Dividends I - - - 33 - 330 -
Foreign curtency translation
adjustments, net of tax - - - - 80 80 &0
Unrealized gains (Josses) on .
investments, net of tax - - - - {16) (16) (16)
Reclassification adjustments for realized .
gatns & losses included in net income,
net of tax - - - - 7 7 7
Total comprehensive income - - - - - - 3 2,290
BALANCE AT AUGUST 31, 2006 M 1053 § 6,618 § 17633 § (4,518) § 164 § 20,950

it

See Accompanying Notes 1o Con d Financial § s
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FORTUNE INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) t
!' Year Ended
August 31, August 31, August 31,
2006 2005 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income (Loss) 3 2219 % (2.317) § 2,402
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 2,269 2,301 i,164
W s ey e, StOCk based compensation 100
o s {Gain) Loss on sale of investments ‘ 7
Loss on disposal of fixed assets -
Deferred income taxes {521) - {625)
Changes in certain operating assets and liabilities:
Restricted cash {1.978) (987) -
Accounts receivable, net 3 (4,271 (4,792} (2,338)
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on
uncompleted contracts (1.19) (802) 763
Inventory, net ’ 1,567 1,537 (1,913)
Prepaid assets and other current assets (130) 29 {1
Other long-term assets (809) (830) (24)
Accounts payable 2,181 1.109 623
Health and workers' compensation reserves {637) (457) 479
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 727 (548) (350)
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on
uncompleted contracts (133) 189 252 .
Net Cash Provided by (Used in} Operating Activities (1,234) (5.259) 508
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures (2,754) (£,932) (961) i
Purchases of marketable securities (204) (176} {2,435)
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 1,050 - 689
Proceeds from sale of certificates of deposits - - 24
Acquisition of productive assets and businesses (502) (2,758) (8,605)
Net Cash Used in investing Activities (2410} (4,866) (11,288)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net borrowings (payments) under line of credit © (15,668) 11,050 6,910
Borrowings on shoni-term debt - related party ) - 800 . -
Payments on short-term debt - related party - (827) -
Borrowings on long-term debt 20,000 1,880 8,665
Borrowings on long-term debt - related party - - 4,308
Payments on long-term debt (7.236) (2,4%6) {6.473)
Debt issuance costs (856) - -
Borrowings from convertible debentures 7,500 - -
Dividends on preferred stock (331) - - ‘
Other - (5) {201) |
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 3,409 10,402 13,209 ‘
|
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 80 (17) 213 ;
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS (155) 260 2,642 i
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of Period 3,787 3,527 885
End of Period .3 3632 §$ 3,787 % 3,527

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FORTUNE INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)
4 Year Ended :
j August 31, August 31, August 31,
2006 2005 2004
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES ‘
Interest paid $ 2431 % 1,398 536
lncomé taxes paid ‘ ’ 3 85 § 116 -
v . [ s FUNE R R | IS o I
i“"“" " " Unrealized nct«ga?ﬁ‘('la's"s‘j*én niarkétablE securities - ¢ o7 g L (16) 8. - 22 126
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Issuance of preferred stock for debt extinguishment 3 6,618
Issuance of warrants in connection with loan refinancing 200
3 6,818
Acquisitions (See Note 2)
Cash and equivalents : $ 15 % 2,704 4,496
Restricted savings account . : . - - © 246
Accounts receivable %96 672 8,933
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on .
. uncompleted contracts - o ‘ - - {6,842
Iiventory ’ T3 106 1,777
érepaid expenses and other current assets : 2 1,303 147
Other non-current assets - : 1 195 _ 431
Accounts payable (48) (1,290) (2,747)
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (12) (4,121) {2,857}
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on ' ‘
" uncompleted contracts ' ’ . - (1,661)
Health and workers compensation reserves - - 3,271)
Vehicles, equipment and leasehold improvements ’ 77 - 11,347
Goodwill and other intangible assets ‘ 658 4,982 4,831
802 4,551 18,514
Common stock consideration . 300 1,039 4,364
Cash paid il . 502§ 3,512 14,150

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
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FORTUNE INDUSTRIES, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED,

EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)
NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Fortune Industries, Inc. (formerly known as Fortune Diversified Industries, Inc.) is an Indiana corporation, originally
incorporated in Delaware in 1988. The term “Company™ as used herein refers to Fortune Industries, Inc. and its
subsidiaries unless the context otherwise requires. The Company provides a variety of services and products for
selected market segments, which are classified under five operating segments, Wireless Infrastructure, Business
Solutions, Transportation Infrastructure, Ultraviolet Technologies and Electronics Integration. As a holding
company of various products and services, the Company has historically invested in businesses that are undervalued,
underperforming, or operations that are poised for significant growth. Management’s strategic focus is to support
the revenues and earnings growth of its operations by creating synergies that can be leveraged to enhance the
performance of the Company’s entities and by investing capital to fund expansion. Additionally, management
continually seeks and evaluates strategic acquisitions that expand core offerings and drive incremental revenue and
earnings growth.

Principles of Consolidation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Fortune
Industries, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. Nor-Cote contains foreign subsidiaries from the United
Kingdom, China and Singapore, which have been eliminated in consolidation at the Nor-Cote subsidiary level. All
significant inter-company accounts and transactions of the Company have been eliminated.

Foreign Currency Translation: Assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries of Nor-Cote are translated into U.S.
dollars at the exchange rate in effect at the end of the period. Revenue and expense accounts are translated at a
weighted-average of exchange rates in effect during the year. Translation adjustments that arise from translating the
subsidiaries’ financial statements from local currency to U.S. dollars are accumulated and presented, net of tax, as a
separate component of sharcholders’ equity.

Comprehensive Income (Loss): Comprehensive income (loss) refers to the change in an entity’s equity during a
period resulting from all transactions and events other than capital contributed by and distributions to the entity’s
owners. For the Company, comprehensive income (loss) is equal to net income plus the change in unrealized gains
or losses on investments and the change in foreign currency translation adjustments, The Company reports
comprehensive income (Joss) in the consolidated statement of sharcholders’ equity.

Estimates: Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Those estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the
reported revenues and expenses. Actual results could vary from the estimates that were used.

Significant estimates used in preparing these consolidated financial statements include those assumed in computing
profit percentages under the percentage-of-completion revenue recognition method. It is reasonably possible that the
significant estimates used will change within the next year.

Revenue and Cost Recognition: In the Wireless Infrastructure segment, Fortune Wireless, PDH, ITC, JIWA, and
Magtech enter into contracts principally on the basis of competitive bids, the final terms and prices of which are
frequently negotiated with the customer. Although the terms of its contracts vary considerably, most are made on a
unit price basis in which the Company agrees to do the work for units of work performed. The Company also
performs services on a cost-plus or time and materials basis. The Company completes most projects within twelve
months. The Company generally recognizes revenue utilizing output measures, such as when services are
performed, units are delivered or when contract milestones are reached. Cornerstone Construction recognizes
revenue using the percentage of completion method on contracts in process. Under this method, the portion of the
contract price recognized as revenue is based on the ratio of costs incurred to the total estimated cost of the contract.
The estimated total cost of a contract is based upon management’s best estimate of the remaining costs that will be

50



!I
required to’complete a project. The actual costs required to complete a project and, therefore, the profit eventually
realized, could differ materially in the near term. Costs and estimated camings in excess of billings on uncompleted
contracts arc shown as a current asset. Billings in excess of costs and estimated camings on uncompleted contracts
are shown as a current liability. Anticipated losses on contracts, if any, are recognized when they become evident.

In the Business Solutions segment, PSM, CSM and related entities bill clients under their Professional Services
Agreement as licensed Professional Employer Organizations (PEOs), which includes each worksite employee’s
gross wages, plus additional charges for employment related taxes, bencfits, workers’ compensation insurance,
administrative and record keeping, as well as safety, human resources, and regulatory compliance consultation, Most
wages, taxes and insurance coverage are provided under PSM’s and CSM's federal, state, and local or vendor
identification numbers. No identification or recognition is given to the client when these monies are remitted or
calculations are reported. Most calculations or amounts PSM and CSM owe the government and its employment
insurance vendors are based on the experience levels and activity of PSM and CSM with no consideration to clicnt
detail. PSM ‘and CSM bill the client their worksite employees’ gross wages plus an overall service fee that includes

*':components ofiemployment related taxes, employment benefits insurance, and administration of those items. The
component of the service fee'related to administration varies, in part, according fo-the size of the client,.the amount |

and frequcncy of payroll payments and the method of delivery of such payments. The component of the service fee
related to health, workers’ compensation and unemployment insurance is based, in part, on the client’s historical
claims experience. Charges by PSM and CSM arc invoiced along with each periodic payroll delivered to the client.

PSM and CSM report revenues in accerdance with Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") No. 99-19, Reporting
Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent. PSM and CSM report revenues on a gross basis, the total
amount billed to clients for service fees which includes health and welfare benefit plan fees, workers’ compensation
insurance, unemployment insurance fees, and employment related taxes. PSM and CSM report revenues on a gross
basis for such fees because PSM and CSM are the primary obligor and deemed to be the principal in these
transactions-under EITF No, 99-19, PSM and CSM report revenues on a net basis for the amount billed to clients
for worksite employee salaries and wages. This accounting policy of reporting revenue net as an agent versus gross
as a principal has no effect on gross profit, operating income, or net income,

PSM and CSM account for their revenues using the accrual method of accounting. Under the accrual method of
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which the worksite employee performs work. PSM and CSM
accrue revenues for service fees, health and welfare benefit plan fees, workers’ compensation and unemployment
insurance fees relating to work performed by worksite employees but unpaid at the end of each period. PSM and
CSM accruc unbilled receivables for payroll taxes, service fees, health and welfare benefits plan fees, workers’
compensation and unemployment insurance fees relating to work performed by worksite employees but unpaid at
the end of each period. In addition, the related costs of services are accrued as a liability for the same period.
Subsequent to the end of each periad, such costs are paid and the related service fees are billed.

. Consistent with their revenue recognition policy, PSM and CSM’s direct costs do not include the payroll cost of its

worksite employees. The Company’s direct costs associated with its revenue generating activities are comprised of
all other costs related to its worksite employees, such as the employer portion of payroll-retated taxes, employee
benefit plan premiums and workers’ compensation insurance costs.

In the Transportation Infrastructure segment, JH Drew recognizes revenue using the percentage of completion
method on contracts in process. Under this method, the portion of the contract price recognized as revenue is based
on the ratio of costs incurred to the total estimated cost of the contract. The estimated total cost of a contract is based
upon management’s best estimate of the remaining costs that will be required to complete a project. The actual costs
required to complete a projcct and, therefore, the profit eventually realized, could differ materially in the near term.
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts are shown as a current asset. Billings in
excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts are shown as a current liability. Am:cnpated losses
on contracts, if any, are recognized when they become evident.

In the Ultraviolet Technologies segment, revenue from the sale of prodicts at Nor-Cote is recognized according to
the terms of the sales arrangement, which is generally upon shipment. Revenues are recognized, net of estimated
costs of returns, allowances and sales incentives, title and principal ownership transfers to the customer, which is
generally when products are shipped to customers. Products are generally sold on open account under credit terms
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customary to the geographic region of distribution. Ongoing credit evaluations are performed on customers and the
Company does not generally require collateral to securc accounts receivable,

In the Electronics Integration segment, revenue from the sale of products at Kingston and Commercial Solutions is
recognized according to the terms of the sales arrangement, which is generally upon shipment. Revenues are
recognized when title and principal ownership transfers to the customer, which is generally when products are
shipped to customers. Products are generally sold on open account under credit terms customary to the geographic
region of distribution. Ongoing credit evaluations are performed on customers and the Company does not generally
require collateral to secure accounts receivable. AVR enters into contracts principally on the basis of competitive
bids, the final terms and prices of which are frequently negotiated with the customer. Although the terms of its
contracts vary considerably, most are made on a unit price basis in which the Company agrees to do the work for
units of work performed. The Company also performs services on a cost-plus or time and materials basis. The

Company completes most proje;cts within one month. The Company generally recognizes revenue utilizing output
measures, such as when services are performed, units are delivered or when contract milestones are reached.

Revenue is reduced by appropriate allowances, estimated returns, price concessions, and similar adjustments, as
applicable. !

Cash and Equivalents: Cash and equivalents may include money market fund shares, bank time deposits, certificates
of deposits, and other instruments with original maturities of three months or less.

Restricted Cash: Restricted cash includes certificates of deposits and letters of credit issued to collaterize its

obligations under its health and accident benefit program, its workers compensation program, and certain general
insurance coyerage related to the Company’s Busmcss‘ Solutqlgns scgment AL August*3l ‘2006 sthe Company had ,
$3; 462 in.total restricted cash.-QOf this, $15725 is restrlcted'fonemployer contributions (Gtvarious health afd’ acc1den
benefit programs established under third party actuarial analysis, $1,490 is restricted for the Company’s workers
compensation program in accordance with terms of its insurance carrier agreement, and the remainder is restricted
for certain standby letters of credits in accordance with various state regulations.

Markeiable Securities: Marketable securities include common stocks classified as available for sale investments in
accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 115, "Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” The securities are carried at fair value based on current market
quotations, Unrealized holding gains and losses, net of tax, are not included in "net income," but are accounted for
as "other comprehensive income™ and reflected as a separate component of the change in shareholders’ equity. The
cost of securities used to compute realized gains and Josses is based on specifically tdentified securities. The fair
value of investment securities is determined by currently available market prices. Dividends on marketable equity
securitics are recognized in income when declared.

Accounts Receivable: Accounts receivable is stated at the amount billable to customers. Accounts receivable are
ordinarily due 30-60 days after the issuance of the invoice. The Company provides allowances for estimated
doubtful accounts and for returns and sales allowances, based on the Company’s assessment of known delinquent
accounts, historical experience, and other curréntly available evidence of the collect-ability and the aging of the
accounts receivable, Delinquent receivables that are deemed uncollectible are written off based on individual credit
evaluation and specific circumstances of the customer. The Company’s policy is not to accrue interest on past due
trade receivables.

Inventories: Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost or market value. Costs are determined primarily under the
first-in, first-out method (FIFO) method of accounting.

Shipping and Handling: Costs incurred for shipping and handling are included in the Company's consolidated
financial statements as a component of costs of revenue.

Property, Plant, Equipment, and Depreciation: Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost and include
expenditures for new additions and those which substantially increase the useful lives of existing assets.
Depreciation is computed principally on the straight-line method over the estimated useful life. Depreciable lives
range from 3 to 30 years.
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Expenditures for normal repairs and maintenance are charged to operations as incurred. The cost of property or
equipment retired or otherwise disposed of and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts
in the period of disposal with the resulting gain or loss reflected in earnings or in the cost of the replacement asset.

-+ Goodwill'did Othier Indefinite-Lived Intafigible Asséts: The Company accounts for goodwill and other indefinite- .. o _..—.

lived intangible assets under SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." Under SFAS No. 142, .
goodwilt and other intangible assets with indeterminate lives are assessed for impairment at least annually and more
often as triggering events occur. In making this assessment, management relies on a number of factors including
operating results, business plans, economic projections, anticipated future cash flows, and transactions and market

place data. There are inherent uncertainties related to these factors and management’s judgment in applying them to

the analysis of both goodwill and other intangible assets impairment. Since management’s judgment is involved in
performing goodwill and other intangible assets valuation analyses, there is risk that the carrying value of the

goodwill and other intangible assets may be overstated or understated.

The Company has clected to perform the annual impairment test of recorded goodwill and other indefinite-lived
intangible assets as required by SFAS 142 as of the end of fiscal fourth quarter. The results of this annual
impairment test indicated that the fair value of each of the reporting units as of August 31, 2006, exceeded the
carrying, or book value, including goodwill, and therefore recorded goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible
assets were not subject to impairment. The required annual impairment test may result in future periodic write-
downs,

Long-lived Assets: The Company evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets, primarily property, plant and
cquipment and other definite-lived intangible assets, whenever significant events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value of these assets may be impaired. If such indicators of impairment are present, the
Company determines whether the sum of the estimated undiscounted cash flows attributable to the assets in question
is less than their carrying value. If less, the Company recognizes an impairment loss based on the excess of the
carrying amount of the assets over their respective fair valucs. The fair value of the asset then becomes the asset’s
new carrying value, which the Company depreciates over the remaining estimated useful life of the asset. Fair value
is determined by discounted future cash flows, appraisals or other methods.

Fuair Value of Financial Instruments: The fair value of financial instruments is estimated using relevant market
information and other assumptions. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment
regarding interest rates, prepayments, and other factors. Changes in assumptions or market conditions could
significantly affect these estimates. The amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets for cash and
equivalents, marketable securities, receivables, and payables approximate fair value.

Stock-based Compensation: On September 1, 2005, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 123R, “Share-
Based Payment” using the modifiéd prospective method. Prior to fiscal 2006, the Company elected to follow APB
25 and to adopt the disclosure-only provisions as required under SFAS 123, and SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure”. The adoption of this statement resulted in increased
salaries, wages, and related expenses. The amount of the impact was immaterial to the Company for the year ended
August 31, 2006.

Income per Common Share: Income per common share has been computed in accordance with SFAS No. 128,
"Earnings per Share." Under SFAS 128, basic income per common share is computed based on net income
applicable to common stock divided by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period.
Diluted income per common share is computed based on net income applicable to common stock divided by the
weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period after giving effect to securities
considered to be dilutive common stock equivalents.

All references in the Form 10-K consolidated financial statements and notes to the consolidated financial statements
related to share amounts, per share amounts and average shares outstanding have been adjusted retroactively to
reflect the 1-for-10 stock split of the Company’s common stock effective June 2, 2005.
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Income Taves: The Company accounts for income taxes under the provisions of SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for
Income Taxes."” Accordingly, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between the
financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates. Changes in
deferred income tax assets and liabilities that are associated with components of other comprehensive income,

-mprimarily.umealizcdIinvestmentlgains,lare'charg‘cdlor|crcditedidirectlyIAIO other comprehensive.income, Otherwise,

changes in-deferred income tax assets and liabilities ar¢’included as'a’ component of iNCome tax’CX Penseial nc,,

Company files separate United States, United Kingdom and Singapore inCome tax returns. .

Research and Development Costs: Research and development costs are expensed as incurred and totaled $538 and
$440 for the year ended August 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Research and development expense is recorded in
the Company’s Nor-Cote subsidiary.

. i
Advertising Costs: Advertising costs including marketing, advertising, publicity, promotion and other distribution
costs, are expensed as incurred and totaled $328 and $227 for the year ended August 31, 2006 and 2005,
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Warrants Issued With Convertible Debt: The Company has issued and anticipates issuing warrants alongwith debt *¢™
and equity instruments to third parties. These issuances are recorded based on the fair value of these instruments.
Warrants and equity instruments require valuation using the Black-Scholes model and other techniques, as
applicable, and consideration of various assumptions including but not limited to the volatility of the Company’s

stock, risk free rates and the expected lives of these equity instruments.

Debt and cquity issuances may have features which allow the holder to convert at beneficial conversion terms,
which are then measured using similar valuation techniques and amortized to interest expense in the case of debt or
recorded as dividends in the case of preferred stock instruments. No issuances have beneficial conversion terms as
of August 31, 2006. : :

Self-Funded Insurance: The Company’s Nor-Cote subsidiary has elected to act as a self-insurer for certain costs
related to employee health and accident benefit programs. Costs resulting from non-insurcd losses are estimated and
charged to income when incurred. The Company has purchased insurance which limits its annual exposure for

individual claims to $40 and which limits its aggregate annual exposure to approximately $460.

The Company’s PSM subsidiary maintains a loss-sensitive worksite employees’ health and accident benefit
program. Under the insurance policy, PSM’s self-funded liability is limited to $180 per employee, with an aggregate
liability limit of approximately $13,412. The aggregate liability limits are adjusted monthly, based on the number of
participants.

Workers' Compensation: The Company’s PSM and CSM subsidiaries maintain partially self-funded workers’
compensation insurance programs. Under the insurance policies established at each company, PSM and CSM’s
deductible liability is limited to $250 per incident, with an aggregate liability timit of approximately $1,100.

New Accounting Pronouncements:

In June 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulietin No. 108, “Considering the
Effects of Prior Year Misstatemnents when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements”, which
requires companies to evaluate the materiality of identified unadjusted errors on each financial statement and related
financial statement disclosure using both the rollover approach and the iron curtain approach. SAB 108 is effective
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2006. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this
interpretation will have on its financial statements. -

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued FASRB Interpretation (“FIN") No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes
recognized in financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109. This Interpretation prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken
or expected to be taken in a tax return. The Interpretation requires that the Company recognize in the financial
statenents the impact of a tax position if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on-audit, based on
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the technical merits of the position. The Interpretation also provides guidance on derecognition, classification,

interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal ycars
beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this interpretation will have on

its i narzcnal statements.

In June 2006 the FASB reached a consensus on EITF Issue No. 06-03, “How Taxes Collected from Customers and
Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should be Presented in the Income Statément (That Is, Gross versus Net
Presentation).” The Task Force reached a conclusion that the presentation of taxes assessed by a governmental
authority that is directly imposed through a revenue-producing transaction between a seller and a customer on either
a gross basis (included in revenues and costs) or on a net basis (excluded from revenues) is an accounting policy
decision that should be disclosed. The provisions of EITF 06-03 become effective as of December 31, 2006. The
Company does not expect this statement to have a material impact on its financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, “*Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets.” SFAS 156 amends
SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Asscts and Extinguishments of Liabilities,”
and requires all separately recognized servicing assets and servicing liabilities to be initially measured at fair value,
if practicable, and permits an entity to subsequently measure those servicing assets and servicing liabilities at fair
value. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006. The Company does not expect
this statement to have a material impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments — An
Amendment,of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140.” SFAS 155 provides entities with relief from having to
separately dctcrmme the fair value of an embedded derivative that would otherwise be required to be bifurcated
from its host contract in accordance with SFAS No. 133. SFAS 155 allows an entity to make an irrevocable election
to measure such a hybrid financial instrument at fair value in its entirety, with changes in fair value recognized in
carnings. SFAS 155 is effective for all financial instruments acquired, issued or subject to a remeasurement event
occurring after the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006, The Company is
currently evaluating the impact this interpretation will have on its financial statements.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154 “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections” which supersedes APB
Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes™ and SFAS No. 3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in Interitn Financial
Statements”. SFAS 154 provides guidance on the accounting for and reporting of accounting changes and error
corrections. It establishes, unless impractible, retrospective application as the required method for reporting a change
in accounting principle in the absence of explicit transition requirements specific to the newly adopted accounting
principle. The correction of an error in previously issued financial statements is not an accounting change. However,
the reporting of an error correction involves adjustments to previously issued financial statements similar to those
generally applicable to reporting an accounting change retroactively. Therefore, the reporting of a correction of an -
error by restating previously issued financial statements is alse addressed by this Statement. SFAS 154 is effective
for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact this interpretation will have on its financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R. This statement is a revision of SFAS 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation”, and supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees”. SFAS 123R focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains
employee services in share-based payment transactions. The Statement required entities to recognize compensation
expense for awards of equity instruments to employees based on the grant-date fair value of those awards (with
limited exceptions). SFAS 123R also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation
expense to be reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flow as prescribed under the prior
accounting rules. On September 1, 2005, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 123R using the modified
prospective method, the results of which did not have a material 1mpact on its financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs™. This statement clarifies the accounting for
abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and wasted material (spoilage), and requires that
these items be recognized as current-period charges. In addition, SFAS 151 is effective for the first quarter of fiscal




year 2006. The adoptlon of this statement did not have a material |mpact on the Company’s financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

In'September 2004, the FASB reached a consensus on EITF Issue No. 04-08, “The Effect of Contingently
Convertible Instruménts on’Diluted Earnings. per Share.” The Task Force reached a conclusion that Contmgsﬁ_]y

Convertible Instruments should be included in diluted earnings per share computatlb'ﬁsA if dxlutwe regardless of =
whether the market price trigger or other contingent featurcs have been met. Contingent stock resulting from various
acquisitions over the last three years, not included in the Company’s common stock outstanding at August 31, 2006;

are included in the accompanying statemenits of operations and Note 15 in diluted earnings per share.

NOTE 2 - ACQUISITIONS AND PRO FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Acquisitions

During the fiscal year 2006, the Company had the following matetial acquisition: -

Audio - Video Revolution, Inc. (Electronics Integration segment}  * _—

The Company acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of Audio - Video Revolution, Inc. (“AVR”)
through an asset purchase agreement entered into as of November 14, 2005. Purchased assets in the agreement
include, at a minimum, goodwill, proprietary property and products, furniture, equipment, machinery and other
intellectual property. The Company’s acquisition of AVR enabled the Company to offer a wider range of design,
engineering and installation of structured cabling systems for the residential and commercial marketplace.

The following is a condensed balance sheet disclosing the amount assigned to each major asset and liability caption
of AVR at the acquisition date:

Inventory, net $ 13
Property, Plant and equipment, net 59
Goodwill 130
$ 202
Cash consideration - $ 202
3 202

During the fiscal year 2005, the Company had the following material acquisition:

CSM, Inc. (Business Solutions segment)

Effective April 1, 2005, the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of CSM,
Inc. and subsidiaries (“CSM”) for $2,704 in cash and $600 in restricted shares of the Company’s common stock.
Founded in 1985, CSM is a PEO serving over 200 company locations, representing over 3,100 employees in more
than 24 states. The Company acquired CSM in order to expand its presence in the PEO industry. $707 and $3,100 of
the excess purchase price paid over the fair value of tangible net assets acquired was allocated to goodwill and
intangible assets, respectively. The identified finite-life intangible assets consist of $1,680 of customer relationships
and $830 of a non-compete agreement, which are being amortized over their useful lives of 10 years and 5 years,
respectively. Additionally, there is $590 of identified tradename, which is an infinite-life intangible asset.

Per the terms of the agreement, the $600 in restricted share consideration totaled 150,000 restricted shares that vest
over the three year period from April 1, 2005 through March 31, 2008 based upon annual operating performance.
The vested shares of common stock can be put to the Company’s majority shareholder and chairman of the Board of
Directors during the period June 1, 2008 to September 30, 2008 at $10.33 per share. The 150,000 shares are valued
at the closing price of the Company’s stock on the date of purchase at $4.00 share. ‘
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The contmgcnt stock consideration is included as a component of the purchase price in accordance with SFAS 141,
“Business Combmatlons" and ETIF 95-8, “Accounting for Contingent Consideration Paid to the Shareholders of an
Acquired Entcrpnsc in a Purchase Business Combination,” under arrangements not affected by employment
termination. The consideration is included in permanent equity under SFAS 141 as management of the Company
deemed l_ikeli_hood that payment of such contingent consideration is beyond a reasonable doubt.

11
The followmg is a condensed balance sheet disclosing the amount assigned to each major asset and hablhty caption
of CSM at the acquisition date: ‘

Cash $ 2,704

Accounts receivable, net 302
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ‘ 1,290
Property and equipment _ 132

. Goodwill, ‘ 207

- -.lntangible’;asscts - : : 3.100
) i . . -8.235
Accounts payable 1,146
Other accrued liabilities 2,257
Deferred revenue 1,361
Other current liabilities 171
4,935

3 3,300

Cash consideration ' - $ 2,700
Fair value of common stock consideration K . . 600
‘ $ 3,300

During the fiscal Srcar 2004, the Company had the following material acquisitio}ls:

James H. Drew Corporation (T ransporiation Infrastructure segmenf)

On April 30, 2004 the Company acqulred James H. Drew Corporatlon and subsidiarics (“JH Drew™) pursuant to a’
stock purchase agreement by and between Cemex, Inc., (“Seller™) and the Company. The purchase agreement’s

- terms include, among other things, the exchange of all of the outstanding shares of JH Drew for $13,584, of which

$11,500 was paid in cash at closing, $434 in restricted shares of the Company’s stock, and the remaining $1,650
plus interest of $57 was paid on December 15, 2004. In calculating the purchase price the parties considered, among
other factors, JH Drew’s consolidated accounts receivable, costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on
uncompleted contracts, inventories, accounts payable and other current assets and current liabilities. The Company
acquired JH Drew in order to gain entry into the transportation infrastructure industry. The funds constituting the
purchase price were derived from the combination of a loan from Fifth Third Bank and a loan to the Company from
the Company’s majority shareholder.

Per the terms of the agreement, the $434 in restricted share consideration totated 43,000 restricted shares that vested
over the one year period from April 1, 2005 through March 31, 2006 based upon annual operating performance. The

- 43,000 shares are valued at the closing price of the Company’s stock on the date of purchase at $10.10 share.

The contingent stock consideration is included as a component of the purchase price in accordance with SFAS 141
and EITF 95-8 under arrangements not affected by employment termination, The consideration is included in
permanent equity under SFAS 141 as management of the Company deemed likelihood that payment of such
contingent consideration is beyond a reasonable doubt

The following is a condensed balance sheet disclosing the amount assigned to each major asset and liability caption’
of JH Drew at the acquisition date:

Contracts receivable, net 8,277
Cost and estimated earnings in excess of billings - . 6,842
Inventory, net 1,777
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Prepaid expenses . 23

Deferred tax asset 389
Property and equipment 1,327
Acquired goodwill 152
18,787

Accounts payable 2,628
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 914
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings 1,661
5,203

$_13.584

Cash consideration % 13,150
iFair valug of common stock consideration 434

Professional Staff Management, Inc. (Business Solutions segment)

On October 1, 2003, the Company acquired Professional Staff Management, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries
(“PSM") under various merger agreements between the Company and Harlan Schafir (“Scller™). The purchase
agreement’s terms include, among other things, the exchange of all of the outstanding shares of PSM for $4,930, of
which $1,000 was paid in cash at closing and $3,930 in restricted shares of the Company’s stock. The Company
acquired PSM in order to gain entry into the PEO industry. The excess purchase price paid over the fair value of
tangible net assets acquired totaled $4,679. The allocation to goodwill and intangible assets was $3,580 and $1,099,
respectively. The identificd finite-life intangible assets consist of $700 of customer relationships and $399 of a non-
compete agreement, which are being amortized over their useful lives of 10 years and 5 years, respectively.

Per the terms of the agreement, the $3,930 in restricted share consideration totaled 1,310,000 restricted shares. The
shares of common stock can be put to the Company’s majority shareholder during the period November 15, 2006 to
December 15, 2006 at various prices between $0 and $10.00 per share. The maximum aggregate value of the puts is
$8,100. The 1,310,000 shares are valued at the closing price of the Company’s stock on the date of purchase at $3.00
share (discounted due to historical trading volume being significantly lower than the shares issued in the
transaction).

The business combination was accounted for as a purchase under SFAS No. 141. The contingent stock
consideration is included as a component of the purchase price in accordance with SFAS 141 and EITF 95-8 under
arrangements not affected by employment termination. The consideration is included in permanent equity under
SFAS 141 as management of the Company deemed likelihood that payment of such contingent consideration is
beyond a reasonable doubt. The agreements were intended to qualify as a reverse-triangular merger for tax purposes
pursuant to the provisions under Section 368(a)(2)(E) of the Internal Revenue Code.

The following is a condensed balance sheet disclosing the amount assigned to each major asset and liability caption
of PSM at the acquisition date:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 449
Restricted savings account 246
Accounts receivable, net . 656
Interest receivable ' 3
Prepaid expense ' 121
Property and equipment, net ' 20
Other assets 42
Goodwill 3,580
Customer list 700
Non-Compete agreement 399

10,263
Current maturities of notes payable 4
Accounts payable 119
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Payroll taxes and withholdings 525

Accrued worksite employee payroll cost . : 240
Health and workers’ compensation reserves 3,271
Other accrued compensation 545
Due to shareholder : 7
Customer deposits ' 106
Other accrued liabilities 316
5,333

$ 4930
Cash consideration $ 1,000
Fair value of commeon stock consideration 3,930
4930

Pro Forma Financial Statements

The following pro forma data summarize the results of operations for the periods indicated as if the AVR, CSM, JH
Drew and PSM acquisitions had been completed as of the beginning of the periods presented. The pro forma data
give effect to actual operating results prior to the acquisitions and adjustments to interest expense, amortization of
intangible assets and income taxes. No effect has been given to cost reductions or operating synergies in this
presentation. These pro forma amounts do not purport to be indicative of the results that would have actually been
achieved if the acquisitions had occurred as of the beginning of the periods presented or that may be achieved in the
future.

Year ended
August 31, August 31, August 31, _
" ] 2006 2005 2004 '
Net revenue § 157,343 $ 123,195 $ 112,129
Operating income (loss) 5 3,650 $ (L,616) $ 3,496 | i
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders $ 1,888 $ (2,938) 3 2,373
Basic income {loss) per common share $ 0.18 $  (0.28) 3 0.23
Diluted income {loss) per common share $ 0.16 S  (0.28) $ 0.23 |

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS IN MARKETABLE EQUITY SECURITIES

The amortized cost and approximate fair values of marketable securities held are summarized as follows:

August 31, August 31,
2006 2005
Amortized cost ‘ $ 1,310 $ 2221
Net unrealized toss (16) (22)
Estimated fair value h 1,281 $ 2,199

The net tax effect of the unrealized gain (loss) after consideration of the valuation allowance is insignificant and is
not included in deferred tax asset or accumulated other comprehensive income. There was ($7) and (340) of
realized losses from the sale of marketable securities for the years ended August 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
There was $36 of realized gains from the sale of marketable securities for the year ended August 31, 2004,
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NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable and contracts receivable arc summarized as follows:

Accounts receivable
Contracts receivable:
Progress billing

Retainages -

Less allowance for doubtfui accounts and sales returns

Long-term accounts receivable

NOTE 5 - CONTRACTS IN PROGRESS

Information related to contracts in progress is summarized as follows:

Costs incurred on uncompleted contracts
Estimated earnings recognized 1o date on uncompleted contracts

Less billings on uncompleted contracts

Atgusi31, ~ 7 AuguSt 31 =y
2006 2005
8 13,856 b 16,178
11,683 5,075
1,606 1,752 e
27,145 23,005 g
(1.414)_ (1,647)
h 25,731 $ 21,358
5 1,276 g 600
August 31, August 31,
2006 2005
) 36,700 $ 25,744
7416 5,412
44,116 31,156
(41,584) (30,576)
$ 2,532 $ 580

The net amount is included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets under the following captions:

.Costs and estimated eamnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts
Billings in excess of costs and estimated eamings on uncompleted contracts

NOTE 6 - INVENTORY
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August 31, August 31,
2006 2005
$ 4,500 3 2,681
1,968 2,101
$ 2,532 $ 580




Inventoties are summarized as follows:

August 31,

August 31,
2006 2005

Raw materials ~ ) ' $ 698 $ 757
Work-in-process ' : : 72 39
Finished goods 6,259 7,896 .
' . 7,029 8,692 ,
i
Less inventory reserve (268) (377) -

3 6,761 $ 8,315
NOTE 7 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - ;
Property, plant and equipment, including capital leases, are comprised of the following: :
August 31, August 31, ;
2006 2003 |
. |
Land and building 3 1,891 $ 1951,
.Machinery and equipment _ o 6934 5,615 ;
‘Rescarch equipment e : ' 389 420
Office equipment 4,857 4,131 |
Vehicles o " 3,633 3,067 ,
Leasehold improvements 3l6 145
‘ 18,020 15,329 1
|
Less accumulated depreciation (11,697) (10,265) :
S 6313 S 5064 .

The provision for depreciation amounted to $1,623, $1,108 and $792 for the years ended August 31, 2006, 2005 i

and 2004, respectively.

NOTE 8 - GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill, as recorded under SFAS 142, are summarized as follows;

Wireless Business  Transportation Ultraviolet Electronics

Segment
Infrastructure Solutions . Infrastructure Technologies Integration -Totals

: T i

|

Goodwill at August : ' \
31, 2005 3 1,189 $ 4,287 £ 152 $ 4,694 . 3 1,358 $11,680 |
Goodwill acquired 308 - - - 130 438 :
Goodwill adjustment . ‘ - (134) - - - (134)
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#

Goodwill at August
31,2006 3 1,497 34,153 3 152 3 4,694 § 1,488 $ 11,984

The total amount of goodw:ll that is dcductlble for tax purposes is $l 969and 51 839alAugust 31 2006 and 2005 B

T Tespectively, ¢ AT RSN R A i
The following table sets forth the gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of the Company’s other )
intangible assets:
Aupgust 31, 2006
Gross Weighted Average
Carrying Accumulated Net Book Amortization L
Amount Amortization Value Period (in years) ‘qu‘
. -
Customer relationships $ 3342 675  $ 2,667 et S om
Non-compete 200 38 162 10 A
Non-compete 1,229 468 761 5
Non-compete 200 81 119 3
Total 4,971 1,262 3,709 8
Tradename (not subject to amortization) 590 - 590
Total | $ 5561 $ 1262 § 4299
August 31, 2005
(iross Weighted Average
Carrying Accumulated Net Book Amortization
Amount Amortization Value Period (in years)
Customer relationships $§ 3,222 $ 352 $ 2,870 10
Non-compete 200 18 182 , 10
Non-compete 1,229 222 1,007 5
Non-compete 100 44 56 _ 3
Total 4,751 636 4,115 ' 8
Tradename (not subject to amortization) 590 - 590
Total $ 5341 $ 636 3 4,705 ' -

Intangible asset amortization expense is $646, $601 and $372 for the years ended August 31, 2006. 2003, and 2004,
respectively, which includes $20, $30 and $55 of amortization related to loan origination fees, respectively.

In fiscal year 2003, the Company recognized impairment on certain other intangible assets in its Electronics
Integration segment of $417 and in its Wireless Infrastructure segment of $219. Management determined the assets
were impaired based upon {a) violation of non-compete agreements with certain terminated employees and (b)
substantial change in the customer mix within the Electronics Integration segment.

Amortization expense on intangible assets currently owned by the Company at August 31, 2006 for each of the next
five fiscal years is as follows:

2007 : ‘ $ 643
2008 ; 627
2009 : 637
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2010 - .o 374 !

¢
2012 and thereafter _ 1057 '

- Total § 3,709 |

NOTE 9 - DEBT ARRANGEMENTS

The Company’s debt liabilities consisted of the following:

August 31, August 31,
2006 2005

Notes payable:

Revolving line of credit promissory note due August 31, 2008, Interest at’
LIBOR plus 1.75% or 1.50% upon.achievement of certain financial
performance criteria. The loan is secured by the business assets of the

Company. 5 3,330 3 -

Term loan note due in monthly installments of $167 plus interest at LIBOR

plus 1.75% or 1.50% upon achievement of certain financial performance

criteria through maturity date, August 31, 2011. The loan is s¢cured by the

business assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company’s two .
majority shareholders. : 20,000

Revolving line of credit promissory note due August 31, 2006. Interest at .5% '
less than the credit facility's Prime Rate. The loan is secured by the business '
assets of the Company, with a second lien on assets pledged by the Company’s

majority shareholder. 18998 |

Various term notes due in monthly installments totaling $211 plus interest at
.5% less than the credit facility's Prime Rate through maturity dates between
April 30, 2007 and July 15, 2009. The loans were secured by the business

assets of the Company, with a second lien on assets pledged by the Company’s * ' ’
majority shareholder. ' - 7,113

Various tlé:rm_notes due in monthly installments of $6, including interest at
ranges from'4.9% to 9.03% through April 2010. The loans are secured by
vehicles and equipment. ) 173 233

Convertible Term Note: ' ' !

. Convertible term note due in monthly installments of $227 plus interest at the
Prime Rate plus 3.0% (subject to adjustments as described betow) through
maturity date, November 30, 2008, The loan is guaranteed by the Company’s
two majority shareholders. 7,500

Debt with sharehé]der:

Unsecured revolving line of credit promissory note with the Company’s ‘ )
majority shareholder due May 1, 2007. Interest at LIBOR plus 3.0%. - 6,018
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Term note duc in monthly instaliments of $3 including interest at 4.0% through

September 2008. The loan is secured by vchicles and equipment. 63 94
Capital leases:

Varijous notes due in monthly installments of $5 including interest at ranges

from 2.3% to 11.6% through June 2010, The loans are secured by computers

and equipment. 101 133
Total debt 31,167 33,189

el g . (3.488) (2]673) _
) TR R e e e RgE L A

Long-term portion of outstanding debt £ 27,679 § 11,516

Fiscal year principal payments due on long-term debt outstanding (including convertible term note} at August 31,

2006 are approximately as follows:

2007 $ 3488

2008 8,166

2009 5,474

2010 2,039

2011 2,000

2012 and thereafter 10,000 :
$ 31,167

Credit Facility Loan and Security Agreement

Effective August 31, 2006, the Company entered into a $35,000 credit facility with Fifth Third Bank. The credit

facility replaced the parties’ $25,000 credit facility, which expired on the same day. The facility includes a $20,000

term loan evidenced by a term loan note, which matures on August 31, 2011 and a $15,000 revolving loan

evidenced by a revolving line of credit promissory note, which matures on August 31, 2008. Availability under the

revolving loan is the lesser of $15,000 or the borrowing base amount, which is calculated monthly as a percentage of

the Company's eligible assets. Interest is charged on the loans at LIBOR pius 1.75%, which may be reduced to

LIBOR plus 1.5% if the Company meets certain performance criteria. The line of credit is secured by assets of the

Company and the term loan is secured by personal guarantees of the Company’s two majority sharcholders (the

Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEQ). Outstanding borrowings amounted to $3,330 at August 31, 2006. .,,,
Total unused borrowings under the line of credit amounted to $11,743 at August 31, 2006.

Covenant terms of the Company’s agreement require the maintenance of certain ratios including debt (not including
subordinated debt) to EBITDA and fixed charge coverage. Additionally, the Company must maintain $1,000 in
tangible net worth and the personal guarantor of the agreement must meet certain liquidity tests. As of August 31,
2006, the Company was in compliance with all covenants.

Cancellation of Line of Credit - Relared Party -

As described in Note 13, on November 30, 2005, the Company issued 66,180 shares of $0.10 par value preferred
stock to the Company’s majority shareholder as consideration for cancellation of certain debt obligations owed by
the Company under a line of credit promissory note dated May 25, 2005. A total of $6,618 of debt was retired under

the agreement.

Convertible Term Note
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On November 21, 2005 the Company issued a convertible term note (the “Note™) payable to an unrelated party,
Laurus, in the principal amount of $7,500. The Note has a term of three years and is convertible into the Company’s
common stock at an exercise price of $5.50 per share subject to certain adjustments contained in the Note. Principal
payments are payable monthly at $227 beginning March 1, 2006. Interest is payable monthly in arrears beginning
January 1, 2006 at prime plus 3.0% subject to a floor of 9.5%. This interest rate is subject to adjustments as later
described and as fully set forth in the Note. Additionally, the Company issued a warrant to Laurus (the “Laurus
Warrant”) to purchase up to an aggregate of 272,727 shares of the Company's commen stock. The Company also
issued a warrant (the “CB Capital Warrant™) exercisable for shares of the Company’s common stock to CB Capital
Partners, Inc. ("CB Capital™), a financial advisor to purchase up to an aggregate of 13,636 shares of the Company’s
common stock. The Laurus and CB Capital warrants (collectively, “the Warrants”) have a term of five years and an
exercise price of $6.60 per share. The Company intends to use the proceeds from the offering of the Note and the
Warrants for general working capital purposes. The Note is unsecured by the Company, but guaranteed by the
Company’s two majority sharcholders. The Company has registered the shares of common stock underlying the
Note and Warrants.

Subject to the terms of the Note, the monthly principal and interest payments are payable in shares of the
Company’s common stock if certain criteria are met, as follows:

*+ the average closing price of the Company’s common stock as reported by Bloomberg, L.P. for the five trading
days immediately preceding the repayment date is greater than or equal to 109% of the conversion price of the
_ Note, set in the Note at $5.50 per share (based upon the conversion price of $5.50, the average closing price
required would be $6.00);
+ the mtal value of the shares converted cannot exceed 25% of the aggregate dollar trading volume of the
Company’s common stock for the previous twenty-two trading days;

»  there must be an effective registration statemenl covering the shares of the Company’s common stock into
which the principal and interest under the Note are convertible or an exemption from registration for resale
must be available pursuant to Rule 144 of the Securities Act; and

* there must be no event of default existing under the Note that has not been cured or is otherwise waived in
writing by Laurus at Laurus’ option.

If the above-criteria are not met, the Company must pay that portion or ali of the monthly principal payment in cash
at a rate of-102% of the respective monthly amortization amounts. The Company shall have the option to postpone
payment of any. 12 principal paymenis due. As of August 31, 2006, the Company has postponed 6 months of
principal payments. These deferred principal amounts shall be due and payable, at the Company’s option, on any
subsequent payment date or on the maturity date of the Note. If Laurus does not convert any portion of the Note
into shares of the Company’s common stock, the Company may continue to postpone payments until March 1, 2007,
at which time principal payments will be required. :

The Company may prepay the Note at any time by paying 130% of the principal amount then outstanding, together
with accrued but unpaid interest thereon. Upon an event of default under the Note, Laurus may demand repayment
in full at a rate of 105% of the outstanding principal amount of the Note. If the Note remains outstanding after an
event of default that is not cured, the interest rate increases an additional 1.0% per month. Events of default include:
*  afailure to make payments under the Note when due;
* .a material breach of the transaction documents by the Company;
*  bankruptcy related events;
* achange of control transaction without prior approval; and

-

= cvents of default under certain other agreements to which the Company 1s a party.
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On a month-by-month basis, the interest rate on the Note is subject to reduction by 2% for every 25% increase in the
market price of the Company’s common stock above the fixed conversion price of the Note, but in no event shali the

interest rate be less than 0%.

Laurus also has the option to convert all or a portion of the Note into shares of the Company’s common stock at any
time, at an initial fixed conversion price of $5.50 per share, subject to limitations and adjustment as described below.
The Note is currently convertible into 1,363,636 shares of the Company’s common stock, excluding the conversion
of any accrued interest. The conversion price is adjustable on a weighted average basis upon certain future issuances
of securities by the Company at a price less than the conversion price then in effect. There are a number of
limitations on Laurus ab:hty to convert the Note and exercise the Laurus Warrant. These limitations mclude

FrEpvy = BT, : °
; -LauruSEmayinoticonvcrtithelNole’.orIexerclse thchaurusp.Warrant forlamumberfof sharess that wou]d cause sall
has been an event of default or Laurus provides the Company with seventy-five days prior notice.

= Laurus agreed that it would not acquire in aggregate more than 2,108,764 shares of common stock through the
conversion of the Note or the Laurus Warrant or through any agreement related thereto unless the Company’s
shareholders approved such issuance.

Subject to prior satisfaction of the conversion of amounts due and subject to certain other restrictions set forth in the
Note, if (i) the average closing price of common stock as reported by Bloomberg, L.P. for five consecutive trading
days in any calendar month shall be greater than or cqual to 200% of the conversion price, then Laurys shall convert
on each such occurrence (limited to once per calendar month), such principal amount of the Notc as does not exceed
25% of the aggregate dollar trading volume of the common stock for the period of twenty-two trading days
immediately preceding such date less any amounts previously converted.

The Warrants were recorded at fair value and classified as a liability. Any discount accretion is considered
immaterial based on the Black-Scholes model. The Company recorded $856 for debt issue costs, including $308
paid to affiliates of Laurus, $475 to CB Capital, and $73 for legal and professional fees. The debt issue costs are
included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of August 31, 2006.

NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT PLAN

| The Company maintains & profit-sharing plan that covers all employees who meet the eligibility requirements set
' . forth in the plan. Company contributions are made at management’s discretion and are allocated based upon each
participant’s eligible compensation.

The plan includes a 401(k) savings plan whereby employees can contribute and defer taxes on compensation

contributed to the plan. The Company is not required to contribute to the plan but may make a discretionary
contribution,

NOTE 11 - INCOME TAXES

The reconciliation for the 2006, 2005 and 2004 income tax expense {benefit) computed at the U.S. Federal statutory
tax rate to the Company's effective income rate is as follows:

shares then held by Laurus to exceed 4.99% of the Company’s outstanding shares of common stock unless lherc '

August 31, August 31, August 31,

2006 2005 2004
Tax at U.S. Federal statutory rate 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
State and local taxes, net of federal benefit 56 ° 56 5.8

Other : - -
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- . 1.4
Change in valuation allowance . (78.6) ) (39.6) (73 3)
2 ' (3‘9.0)% 0.0% - (32 )%

r e i = i s & o .

Significant components of the provision for income tax expense (benefit) from contmumg operatlons are as fo]low «-»‘L S

: : Year'Ended s _, ;'
" August 31, August 31, August3],- :
- L . , . 2006 2005 2004 |
~ Current; :: : : . : r
Federal* - ' ' $. 753§ @4 S 6%
State’ 124 72 172
877 31 862
Deferred:
Federal (328) (567) (55)
State {54) (318) {(3)
(382) (885) (58)
Change in valuation allowance (920) 936 (1,257)
Net income tax (benefit) § @423 . 3 82 - 5 (453)

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
llablllIlCS for financial statement purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. The significant
componems ‘of the Company's deferred tax asset are as fo]lows

August 31, ) Augus‘t-3 l—,

SFAS 109 requires a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets reponed if, at"August 31, 2006, the
Company had federal tax operating loss based on the we:ght of the evidence, it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Afier consideration of the evidence, both positive and
negative, management has determined that a $2,111 valuation allowance at August 31, 2006 is neces'sary to reduce
the deferred tax assets to the amount that will more likely than not be realized. The change in the valuation
allowance for the current period is $920. At August 31, 2006 the Company has federal net operating loss
carryforwards of approximately $4,400 which expire between 2020 and 2023. The state tax operating loss
carryforwards are approximately $7,100. The difference betwéen federal and state net operating loss carryforwards
represents a change in business venue in a prior period. The Company's capital loss carryforward is approximately
$900, which expires in the fiscal year ending August 31, 2007. The Company also incurred net operating losses
related to European operations that can be carried forward indefinitely.

|

.- 2006 - 2005 |

'{ Current: ' i
Allowances for doubtful accounts and inventory ' $ 596 $ 850 |
Accrued liabilities and other 900 524 -

.. Noncurrent: : {
z Amortization of covenants T (84) oo 304 i
Depreciation _ (33) (/D :

* Net operating losses and other carryforwards 2,467 2,458

. ' _ : 3646 . - . 4,045 ;

Valuation allowance - (2,111) . : (3,63 1 ’
Total deferred tax assets v $ 1,535 5 014

|
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'NOTE 13 - SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

NOTE 12 - EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS AND OTHER STOCK COMPENSATION
Restricted Share U!;frs

Effective April 13, 2006, the Company’s shareholders approved the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan. Under terms of the
2006 Equity Incentive Plan, the Company may grant options, restricted share units and other stock-based awards to
its management personnel as well as other individuals for up to 1.0 million shares of common stock. As of August
31, 2006, 14,000 restricted share-units could potentially be issued under this plan. The Company recognized
compensation costs of $10 for the year ended August 31, 2006. X
In connection with the purchase of various acquisitions, the Company recognized compensation costs of $90 for the
year ended August 31, 2006.

Warrants
At August 31,- 2006, the éompany had 5,000 warrants issued and outstanding that are each convertible into one

share of common stock with an exercise price of $10.00 per share. The remaining contractual term on these warrants
is through June 30, 2008. )

Common Stock

During the fiscal year ended August 31, 2005, the Company declared a 1-for-10 stock split to shar¢holders of record,

effective June 2, 2005. The following are the details of the Company s common stock as of August 31, 2006 and
August 31, 2005:

Number of Shares

Authorized [ssued Outstanding Amount
August 31, 2006
Common stock, $0.10 par value 150,000,000 10,522,722 10,522,722 $ 1,053
August 31, 2005 )
Common stock, $0.10 par value 150,000,000 10,559,843 10,559,843 $ 1,046

A total of 64,459 shares were issued and a total of 101,580 shares were retired durmg the vear ended August 31,
2006.

At August 31, 2006 the Company had 14,000 shares of common stock that could potentially be issued under the
terms of a restricted share unit agreement entered into as part of the Company’s Employee Stock Plan and 1,363, 636
shares of common stock related to the Laurus convertible term note.” The Company also had 291,090 outstanding
warrants issued as part of the Laurus transaction and stock compensation.

Preferred Stock

The following are the details of the Company'é non-voting preferred stock as of August 31, 2006 and August 31,
2005:

Number of Shares
Authorized Issued. QOutstanding Amount
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August 31, 2006 ’ . .
Preferred stock, $0.10 par value 1,000,000 L 66,180 . 66,180 $ 6,618

August 31, 2005
Preferred stock, $0.10 par value 1,000,000 .- - .5 -

On November 30, 2005, the Company issued 66,180 shares of $0.10 par value non-voting preferred stock to the
Company’s majority sharcholder as consideration for cancellation of certain debt obligations owed by the Company
under a line of credit promissory note dated May 25, 2005. The shares are not convertible to common stock and
have various restrictions pertaining to their transferability as they are not registered under the Securities Act of 1933,
The shares issued are single class and pay on a monthly basis an annual cash dividend of $7.50 per share. Dividends
of $331 were paid for the year ended August 31, 2006. No dividends were paid for the year ended August 31, 2005.

NOTE 14 - ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Significant components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is as follows:

Reclassification of Accumulated
Foreign Unrealized Realized Gains Other
Currency Gains (Losses) (Losses) included Comprchensive
Adjustments on Sccurities in Net Income Income (Loss)
Balance at August 31, 2004 5 132 $ (113) 3 (13) s 6
" Period change SRR - an 64 40 87
Balance at August 31, 2005 .15 ‘ (49) 27 - 93
“Period change . 80 (16) 7 - 71
Balance at August 31, 2006 : 3 195 . § (65) 3 C 34 $ 164

The net tax effect of the unrealized gain (loss) afier con51deratmn of the valuation allowance is 1n51gn1ﬁcant and is
not included in deferred tax assets or accumulated other comprehensive i income (loss).

NOTE 15 - PER SHARE DATA

+

The following pfesents the computation of basic income {loss) per share and diluted income (loss) per share:

Year Ended
August 31, ~ August 31, August 31,
2006 2005 2004
Net Income (Loss) Available to Common Shareholders $ . 1,888 . $ 2,317 $ 2,402
Basic Income (Loss) Per Common Share : $ 0.18 - $ (0.22y 3 0.23
- Basic weighted avérage number of comrhon shares . . '
outstanding ] ’ ) X 10,582,203 10,495,794 10,208,544
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Diluted Income (Loss) Per Common Share: 5 0.16 3 (0.22) $ 0.23

Diluted weighted average number of common shares
outstanding 11,845,284 10,500,794 10,248,544

At August 31, 2006, diluted shares represent 1,363,636 shares obtainable through the Laurus convertible term note,
272,727 shares obtainable through the Laurus Warrant, 13,363 shares obtainable through the CB Capital Warrant,
14,000 restricted share units granted under the Company’s 2006 equity incentive plan, and 5,000 shares obtainable
through warrants issued as stock compensation.

v

NOTE 16 - OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Property Lease Commitments

Segment Location(s} - Description
Corporate and various Wireless Indianapolis, IN (1) Corporate offices, various
Infrastructure & Electronics ‘ subsidiary offices and warchouse
Integration subsidiaries facilities
Wireless Infrastructure Columbus, OH (2); Cleveland, OH, Kansas  Offices, warehouse facilities

City, MO, Atlanta, GA, and Richmond,
VA metropolitan areas (3); F1. Wayne, IN

(4)
Business Solutions Richmond, IN (5); Indianapolis, IN {6); Offices
Brentwood, TN (7) :
Transportation Infrastructure Indianapolis, IN, Sedalia, MO, Knoxville, Offices, equipment yard,
TN (8) warehouse, storage

Ultraviolet Technologies Crawfordsville, IN {8); United Kingdom, Offices, warehouse and

Singapore, Shenzhen, China and manufacturing facilitics

GuangDong, China (10); Atlanta, GA (11)

Electronics Integration Avon, IN (12) Showroom

(1) The leases on these properties are with a limited liability company owned by the Company’s two majority
shareholders. The operating lease agreement provides for monthly base rent of $42 per month for office
and warehouse facilities through February 2009, adjusted annually to fair market value. The agreement also
includes a one year renewal option. The lease is an “Absolute Triple Net Lease” which provides for the
lessee to pay most expenses related to the building including repairs and maintenance, insurance, and
property taxes.

(2) The leases on these properties are with a limited liability company owned by the Company’s two majority
shareholders. The operating lease agreement provides for monthly base rent of $4 through April 30, 2011,
adjusted annually to fair market value. The agreement also includes a one year renewal option. The lease is
an “Absolute Triple Net Lease™ which provides for the lessee to pay most expenses related to the building
including repairs and maintenance, insurance, and property taxes.

(3) The Company maintains various operating lease agreements that provide for monthly base rents between
$3 and $8 that expire between April 1, 2007 and April 30, 2011 and may be adjusted annually to fair
market value or to increases defined in the agreements. The agreements include various multi-year renewal
options and the lessee pays most expenses related to the building including repairs and maintenance,
insurance, and property taxes.

(4) The Company maintains a sublease obligation that provides for monthly base rent of $3 through December
31, 2010 and may be adjusted annually to fair market value or to increases defined in the agreement. The
agreement includes a one year renewal option and the lessee pays most expenses related to the building
including repairs and maintenance, insurance, and property taxes.
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{5) The lease on this property is with the former Chief Operating Officer of the Company. The operating lease
agreement provides for monthly base rent of $4 through May 30, 2008, with nominal annual increases. The
agrecment also includes a onc year renewal option.

(6) The Company maintains a sublease obligation that provides for monthly base rent of $5 through December
31, 2008 and may be adjusted annually to fair market value or to increases defined in the agreement. The

lessec pays most expenses related to the building including repairs and maintenance, insurance, and
property taxes. There is no renewal option.

(7) The Company maintains an operating lease agreement that provides for monthly base rent of $10 through

January 31, 2009. In addition to an escalating base monthly rent, the agrecment requires the Company to
pay any increase in operating costs, real estale taxes, or utilities over the base year.

{8) The leases on these propertics are with a limited liability company owned by the Company’s two majority
shareholders. The operating lease agreement provides for monthly base rent of $15 through April 30, 2009,
adjusted annually to fair market value. The agreement also includes a one * year renewal option. The lease is
an “Absolute Triple Net Lease™ which provides for the lessee to pay most expenses related to the buildings
mcludmg repairs and maintenance, insurance, and property taxes.

(9) The leases on these properties are with a limited liability company owned by the Company’s two majorlty
sharcholders. The operating lease agreement provides for monthly base rent of $7 through August 31
2009 adjusted annually to falr market value. The Agreement also includes one renewal option.

' i

"~ (10)The Company maintains various operating leases in the United Kingdom, Singapore and China providing

for monthly base rent of approximately $18 with various expirations through 2¢15, which may be adjusted
annually to fair market value or to increases defined in the agreement. The agreement includes a one year,

rencwal option and the lessee pays most expenses rclated to the building including repairs and
maintenance, insurance, and property taxes.

P

(11) The Company maintains an operating lease agreement that provides for monthly base rent of $3 through
May 31, 2007 and may be adjusted annually to fair market value or to increases defined in the agreement.

The lessee pays most expenses relatéd to the building including repairs and maintenance, insurance, and
property taxes. The lease includes three one year renewal options.

(12) The Company maintains a sublease obhgatlon provides for monthly base rent of §1 through September 30
2006.

Rent expense under these agreements amounted to $1,307, $976 and $487 for the years ended August 31, 2006,
2005, and 2004, respectively.

Equipment -

The Company leases a fleet of trucks and trailers, support vehicles and specialty construction cquipment. As of
August 31, 2006, the Company had approximately 300 units of rolling-stock fleet. Lease expense under these
agreements amounted to approximately $1,735, $734 and $236 for the years ended August 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,

respectively and leases expire in various years through 2009. Most operating leases provide for a one year term per
vehicle with an option to purchase or continue leasing on a month-to-month basis.

Future minimum commitments under these agreements at August 31, 2006 are approximately as follows:

Vehicles and

. : _ Facilities *  Equipment
2007 ' ' $ 1328 % 554
2008 . . 1203 T
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2009 759 18

2010 225 _ -

2011 o . 170 -
" 2012 and thercafter - rammmasbi-gizerranss " : '

NOTE 17 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following is a summary of related party amounts included in the consolidated balance sheets at August 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively:

August 31, August 31,
2006 . 2005

Assets: '

Note receivable from subsidiary employee % 300 $ 300
Liabilities: :

Long-term line of credit - (6,618)
Installment notes payable {63) (94)
Net assets (liabilities) 3 237 $  (6412)

The note receivable represents a loan with a subsidiary employee in connection with the acquisition of the

subsidiary. The loan is secured by restricted stock and expires March 31, 2008,

The Company had $6,618 borrowed at August 31, 2005 under a long-term unsecured line of credit with the
Company’s majority shareholder. Effective November 30, 2005, the Company issued 66,180 shares of $0.10 par
value preferred stock to the Company’s majority shareholder as consideration for cancellation of this debt
obligation. '

The installment notes payable represents loans for equipment and vehicle purchases by a shareholder. The loans are
secured by the assets and expire no later than August 31, 2007. Interest expense is immaterial.

The following is a summary of related party amounts included in the consolidated income statements at August 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively:

August 31, August 31, August 31,
2006 2005 2004

Revenues: :
Electronics Integration (1) 5 83 $ - $ -
Totai ‘ ‘ 83 - - -
Expenses:

Wireless Infrastructure (2) (3} (4) 292 231 64
Business Solutions (5) 47 24 2
Transportation Infrastructure (6) ' 180 180 60
Ultraviolet Technologies (7) . ' 84 78 -
Electronics Integration (2) (8) 281 235 117
Holding Company (9) (10) 192 392 187
Total 1,076 1,140 450
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(1) The Company’s AVR subsidiary performed $83 worth of services for businesses owned by the Company’s
two majority shareholders.

{2} The Company maintains an operating lease agreement for rental of a building with a related party, A
majority of the Company’s subsidiaries maintain offices and or warehouse space in the facility. The lease
agreement includes a five year term with one option to extend the lease term for a one year period. The .
agreement provides for a monthly base rent of $42 per month. The base rent shall be adjusted annually to !
fair market value. In addition the Cormpany shall pay certain expenses including taxes, assessments, :
maintenance and repairs. Rent and related cxpenses of $554, $461 and $120 were recogmzed for the years i

. -ended August—3l 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, . - o

- (3) The Company maintains a debt-obligation to its majority shareholder for the purchase of vehlcles and . \
equ1pment “The loans are secured by the assets and pay interest at 6%. Interest expense of $3, $5 and $5 ‘
was recognized for the years ended August 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

(4) The Company’s Fortune Wireless subsidiary maintains an operating leasc agreement for rental of a
building with a related party. The operating lease agreement provides for monthly base rent of $4 through
April 30, 2011, adjusted annually to fair market value. The agreement also includes a one year renewal
option. Rent and related expenses of $16 were recognized for the year ended August 31, 2006.

{5) The Company’s PSM subsidiary holds two leases for an office building in Richmend, IN from a related
party. The leases are for a period of five years and expire in May 2008 and August 2010. The agreements
provide for base rent of $4 per month with nominal annual increases. Rent and related expense of $47, §24
and $22 were recognized for the years ended August 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

(6) The Company’s JH Drew subsidiary maintains an operating lease agreement for rental of three buildings
located in Indiana, Tennessee and Missouri with a related party. The lease agreement includes a five year
term with one option to extend the lease term for a one year period and provides for base rent of $15,000
per month. The base rent shall be adjusied annuaily to fair market value. In addition the Company shall pay
certain expenses including taxes, assessments, maintenance and repairs. Rent and related expenses of
$180, $180 and $60 were recognized for the years ended August 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. ,

(7} The Company’s Nor-Cote subsidiary maintains an operating lease agreement for rental of a building from a
related party. The agreement provides for monthly base rent of $7 and expires in August 2009. The base
rent shall be adjusted annually to fair market value. The Agreement also includes one renewal option,
which allows the Company to extend the lease term for an additional year. Rent and related expenses of
$84 and $78 were recognized for the years ended August 31, 2006 and 2005, respectivety.

-(8) The Company leased an office and warehouse facility in which a former Director of the Company is a
member. The lease was terminated in May 2004. Rent expense of 356 was recogmzed for the year ended
August 31, 2004,

(%) Consulting services of $73 were paid to a related party company owned by the Company § Chief Executwe ‘
Officer. These consulting services will be recognized as eompensauon expense for disclosure purposes for
the Chief Executive Officer.

(10) The Company had borrowings under a long-term unsecured line of credit with-the Company’s majority
shareholder. Interest expense booked on the line of credit was $119, $392 and $187 for the years ended
August 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Other Related Party Transactions T ) B - : : i

- b

The Company has entered into various acquisition agreements over the past three years which contain option
agreements between the sellers and the Company’s majority shareholder retated to the Company’s stock. The option
agreements.provide for put/ call options on the Company’s common stock held by the sellers. The put/ call options
range in price from $1 to $10 per common share. Total estimated cash outlays for these options range from $10
million to $13 million dollars and are expected to be exercised over the next fiscal year. As more fully described in

_ Note 23, Harlan Schafir exercised his put sale rights by executing the sale of his shares of Company stock to Mr.
Fortune on November 22, 2006,

Guaranties
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A significant portion of the Company’s debt and surcty bonds arc personally guaranteed by the Company’s
Chairman of the Board and Chicf Executive Officer. Future changes to these guaranties may affect financing

capacity of the Company.

NOTE 18 - SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES |, . .. ..

Significant estimates have been made by management with respect to the realizability of the Company’s deferred tax
assets. Actual results could differ from these estimates making it reasonably possible that a change in these estimates
could occur in the near term. The net change in the valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets was $521 and
$0 at August 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The valuation allowance relates primarily to net operating loss
carryforwards, tax credit carryforwards, and net deductible temporary differences. The Company evaluates a variety
of factors in determining the amount of the deferred income tax assets to be recognized pursuant to SFAS No. 109,
including the number of years the Company’s operating loss and tax credits can be carried forward, the existence of
taxable temporary differences, the Company’s carnings history and the Company’s near-term carnings expectations.
Although realization is not assured, management believes it is more likely than not that all of the net deferred

income tax assets will be realized.

Company subsidiaries in the Business Solutions Segment establish reserves for workers compensation and health
insurance claims by estimating unpaid losses and loss expenses with respect to claims occurring on or before the
balance sheet date. Such estimates include provisions for reported claims and provisions for incurred-but-not-
reported claims, The estimates of unpaid losses are established and continually reviewed by the Company using a
variety of statistical and analytical techniques. Reserve estimates reflect past claims experience, currently known
factors and trends and estimates of future claim trends.

Irrespective of the techniques used, estimation error is inherent in the process of establishing unpaid loss reserves as
of any given date. Uncertainties in projecting ultimate claim amounts are enhanced by the time lag between when a
claim actually occurs and when it becomes reported and settled. These policies contain aggregate limits of
indemnification, so the risks of additional claims under the contracts are limited. For the reasons previously
discussed, the amounts of the reserves established as of a given balance sheet date and the subsequent actual losses
and loss expenses paid will likely differ, perhaps by a material amount. There is no guaranty that the recorded
reserves will prove to be adequate. Changes in unpaid loss estimates arising from the review process are charged or
credited, as applicable, to carnings in the period of the change.

Certain portions of the Company’s business (including, but not limited to the Wireless Infrastructure and
Transportation Infrastructure Segments) recognize revenues using the percentage-of-completion method of
accounting. This accounting method results in the Company recognizing contract revenues and earnings ratably
over the contract term in proportion ta its incurrence of contract cost. The earnings or losses recognized on
individual contracts ar¢ based on estimates of contract revenues, costs and profitability which requires considerable
judgment. If in any period the Company significantly increases its estimate of the total costs to complete a given
project, the Company may recognize very little or no additional revenues with respect to that project. If the total
contract cost estimates indicate that there is a loss, such loss is recognized in the period such determination is made.
To the extent that the Company’s cost estimates fluctuate over time or differ from actual costs, its operating results
may be materially affected. As a result, the Company’s gross profit in future periods may be significantly reduced
or eliminated. . : s

NOTE 19 - CONCENTRATION OF CRElDlT RISK

The Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and
cash equivalents, including marketable securities, and accounts receivables. The Company places its cash and cash
equivalents with high credit quality institutions. At times, such amounts may be in excess of the FDIC insured limit.
The Company routinely assesscs the financial strength of its customers and, as a consequence, believes that its
accounts receivable credit risk exposure is limited.
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NOTE 20 - COMMITTMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation _ t

The Company is involved in various legal proceedings. The Company believes it has adequate legal defenscs with '
respect to each of the suits and intends to vigorously defend against these actions. However, it is reasonably possible
that these cases could result in.outcomes unfavorableto the Company While the Company. cun"ently believes that
) ;thefi?nm‘?oﬁﬂ?gfﬁlnmate potentialtlossTwounld not'be’material to thc‘pclompany s financial position, the outcome of '
_ Imganon i$ 1nheremly difficult to predict. In the event of an adverse outcome, the ultimate potential loss could have |
a‘material effect on the financial position or reported results of operations in a particular quarter.

Restricted Cash

Certain states and vendors require us to post letters of credit to ensure payment of taxes or payments to the

Company’s vendors under health insurance and workers compensation contracts and to guarantee performance

under the Company’s contracts. Such letters of credit arc generally issued by a bank or similar financial institution.

The letter of credit commits the issuer to pay specified amounts to the holder of the letter of credit if the holder
demonstrates that the Company has failed to perform specified actions. I this were to occur, the Company would be
required to reimburse the issuer of the letter of credit. Depending on the circumstances of such a reimbursement, the t
Company may also have to record a charge to earnings for the reimbursement. The Company does not believe that it

1s likely that any claims will be made under a letter of credit in the foresceable future. As of August 31, 2006, the;

Company had approximately $3.5 million in restricted cash primarily to secure obligations under its PEO contracts !
in the Business Solutions segment.’

k]

} g L e e s o T, T
mersie—r Payment'and Pérformance Bonds = -

Within the Company’s Wireless Infrastructure and Transportation Infrastructure segments, certain customers, |
particularly in connection with new construction, require the Company to post payment or performance bonds issued
by a financial institution known as a surety. These bonds provide a guarantee to the customer that the Company wnll
perform under the terms of a contract and that the Company will pay subcontractors and vendors, If the Company . '
fails to perform under a contract or to pay subcontractors and vendors, the customer may demand that the surety | i
make payments or provide services under the bond. The Company must reimburse the surety for any expenses or | ‘
outlays it incurs. Under the Company’s continuing indémnity and security agreement with thé surcty, the Company '
has posted letters of credit in the amount of $7.5 million in favor of the surety and, with the consent of the : ‘
Company’s lenders under its credit facility; the Company has granted security interests in certain of its assels to '
collateralize its obligations to the surcty. The Company expects this letter of credit in favor of the surety to be
reduced in the future. To date, the Company has not been required to make any reimbursements to the surety for
bond-related costs. The Conipany believes that it is unlikely that it will have to fund claims under its surety
arrangements in the foreseeable future. As of August 31, 2006, an aggregate of approximately. $52.0 million in
original face amount of bonds issued by the surety were outstanding.

|

NOTE 21 - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL D_ATA' (UNAUDITED) - ‘

The following table presents the unaudltcd consolidated operating results by quarter for the fiscal years ended ,
August 31, 2006 and 2003 _ ’

For the Three Months Ended
November 30, February 28, May 31, * _ August 31, 1 -

2006: ! !
Revenues : $ 36,443 § 33356 $ 39468 § 47,846

Gross Profit ’ 7,238 7,534 7,570 8,562 Y
Net income available to common ' i,
shareholders 847 362 143 536 i :
Basic earnings (loss) per share ' 0.08 0.03 0.01 0.06 !

Diluted earnings (loss) per share 0.08 0.03 0.01 0.04




2005:

Revenues h) 25,048 $ 20,149 $31,904 $ 35,995
Gross Profit . o 489 3,709 6,631 5,795
Net-income. (loss) available to common T R : :
shareholders - - - ) T e 703 - - —(1,324) 1,078 (2,774)
Basic earnings (loss) per share 0.07 (0.13) 0.10 ©26y .~
Diluted earnings (loss) per share 0.07 (0.13) 0.10 (0.26)

NOTE 22 - SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s reportable business segments are organized in a manner that reflects how management reviews and
cvaluates those business activitics. Certain businesses have been grouped together for segment reporting based upon
similar products or product lines, marketing, selling and distribution characteristics.

As a result of the Company’s expanded services offered within certain segments, the Company reevaluated the
composition of its reporting segments and has changed its reporting from three reportable segments to five
reportable segments. The segments arc organized as follows:

-~ RN

Segment & Entity Business Activity

Wireless Infrastructure ‘ ) ' )
Fortune Wireless, Inc.; PDH, Inc.; [nnovative Installer and service provider of cell phone
Telecommunications Consultants, Inc.; Magtech tower sites

Services, Inc.; Comerstone Wireless Construction
Services, Inc.; James Westbrook & Associates, LLC

Business Sclutions
Professional Staff Management, Inc. and Provider of outsourced human resource services
subsidiaries; CSM, Inc. and subsidiaries and related
entities

Transportation Infrastructure .
James H. Drew Corp. and subsidiaries Installer of highway construction safety
products

Ultraviolet Technologies
Nor-Cote International, Inc. and Manufacturer of UV curable screen printing ink
subsidiaries praducts

Electronics Integration :
Kingston Sales Corporation and subsidiaries; Distributor and installer of home and
Commercial Solutions, Inc.; Audio-Video Revolution, commercial electronics
Inc. and subsidiaries '

The following tables report data by segment and exclude revenues from transactions with other operating segments:
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Wireless

Business

i
1
¥
i

t

Transportation ~ Ultraviolet . Electronics ~ Holding ~ Segment
, Infrastructure__Solutions (1) __Infrastructure _Technologies  Integration Company Totals
Year Ended August 31, 2006 ’ ‘
~ Net revenues '$ 27859 5. 44543 § 57931 8 12437 0§ 14343 5 - $ 157,113
Cost of revenues 21,898 34,084 51,137 7,177 11,913 - . 126,209
Gross profit 5,961 16,459 6,794 5,260 2,430 - 30,904
Operating expenses _
Selling, geq!eral and administrative 5,680 6,437 3,340 4,175 2,397 2,956 - 24,985
Depreciation and amortization 405 599 484 418 124 239 b 2,269
Total opcra(;'ng cxpenses 6,085 7,036 3.824 4,593 2,521 3,195 | 27,254
Segment op%mting income (loss) S (124 § 3,423: $ 297 3§ 667 % 9§ (3195 S ! 3650
§ |
v g P
(1) Gross b’sillings of $293,367 less worksite employee payroll costs of $248,824,  —w—-- i -
: { _ . . i
Wireless Business Transportation Ultraviolet Electronics Holding :Segmenl
Infrastructure  Solutions (1) Infrastructure Technologies  Integration  Company Totals
Year Ended August 31, 2005 (restated)
Net revenues (external customers) $ 14911  § 28458 § 46,549 % 10771 8 12,407 § - $. 113,096
Cost of revenues . 11,597 21,646 42,268 5.934 10,626 - I 92071
Gross profit ¥ ) 3,314 6,812 4,281 4,837 1,781 - '21,025
_Operating exp;cnses ) : .
Selling, genef"fll and admtnistrative 3,496 4,107 2,814 4,663 2,243 2,362 ? 19,685
Depreciation almd amortization 202 336 459 393 216 103 bo1,709
Impairment loss of intangible assets 219 - - - 417 - | 636
Total operating expenses 3,917 4,443 3,273 5,056 2,876 2,465 - 22,030
: b
Segment operating income (loss) $ (603) 3 2369 % 1,008 § (219) $ (1,095 § (2465 § ! (1.005)
- 1
i
(1) Gross billings of $193,136 less worksite employee payroll costs of $164,678. '
. 1
. i
Wireless Bustness Transportation Ultraviolet . Electronics Helding Segment
Infrastructure  Solutions (1) Infrastructure Technologies  Integration  Company Totals
Year Ended August 31, 2004 (restated) .
Net revenues (external customers) $ 6352 % 17958 § 17,539 8§ 10,526 § 14,507 $ - $ 166,882
Cost of revenues . 5,044 13,854 14,803 5,602 11,955 - :51,258
Gross profil ‘ 1,308 4,104 2,736 4,924 2,552 - 15,624
Operating expenses !
Selling, general and administrative 1,279 1,937 945 4,035 2434 1,232 11,912
Depreciation and amortization . 124 157 201 420 - 230 32 11,164
Total operating expenses 1,403 2,094 1,146 4,455 2,714 1,264 13,076
Segment operating income (loss) $ 95) § 2010 § 1590 % 469 5 (162) % (1,264) § 12,548

(1) Gross billings of $123,798 less worksite employee payroll costs of $105,840.
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Wireless Business Transportation Ultraviolet Elcctronics Holding Segmer
Infrastructure Solutions Infrastructure Technologies Intcgration Company Totals
As of August 31, 2006 -
Current Assets
Cash and equivalents $ (791 § 4308 % 7% 3 594 % (87y $ (370y § 3.63
Restrictedisavings account - B - 3,462 - - - - 3.4¢
Available for sale investments %*W“&;wl% s - - 35 1,2¢
Accounts receivable, net 9,632 1,858 ) W‘!SMWW
Costs and cstimated earnings in excess e T ————
of billings on uncompleted contracts 2,269 - 2,231 - - - C 45
Inventory, nct 218 30 3.154 1,721 1,638 - 6.74
Deferred tax asset - 876 659 - - - 1,53
Prepaid expenses and
other current assets 255 623 424 286 22 312 1,92
Total Current Assets 11,583 12,403 17,247 4,485 3,733 (627 48,87
Other Assets
Property, plant & equipment, net 1,311 448 1,686 1.997 299 582 6,32
Goodwill 1.497 4,153 152 4.695 1.487 . 11,98
Other intangible assets, net 359 3,289 - 651 - - 425
© Accounts reveivable - long term - - 1,276 - - - 1.2%
Other long term assets - 28 - 14 87 1,450 1,55
Total Other Assets 3,167 7,918 3,114 7.357 - 1,873 .. 2,032 25.4¢
TTotal Assets e STTER T § 0, 147500 28 20321y $.se 20361 8. 74
Wircless Business Transportation Ultraviolet Electronics Holding Segment
Infrastructure Solutions Infrastructure Technologics  Integration ~ Company Totals
As of August 31, 2005 (restated)
Current Assets
Cash and equivalents 3 55 & 3103 § 359 8 399 8 - § (1299 § 3,787
Restricted savings account - 1,484 - - - - 1,484
Available for sale investments - 2,199 - - - - 2,199
Accounts receivable, net 6,915 1,304 3,821 1,652 1,663 3 21,358
Costs and estimated carnings in excess
of billings on uncompleted contracts 414 - 2,267 - - - 2.681
Inventory, net 121 15 4,059 1,805 2,315 - 8315
Deferred tax asset - 563 451 - - - 1,014
Prepaid expenscs and
other current assets 542 421 398 193 5 231 1,790
Total Current Assets 8,047 9,089 17,355 4,049 3,983 105 42,628
Other Assets .
Property, plant & equipment. net 1,011 306 1,066 2,076 136 469 5,064
Goodwill 1,271 4287 152 4,694 1,276 - 11,680
Other intangiblc asscts, net 192 3,773 - 740 - - 4,705
Accounts receivable - long term - - 600 - - - 660
Other long tcrm assets - 18 - 14 41 336 409
Total Other Assets 2,474 8,384 1,818 7,524 1,453 805 22,458
Total Asscts $ 10,521 $ 17473 8§ 19173 § 11,573 § 5,436 $ 910 $ 65,086

NOTE 23 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Departure of Directors or Principal Officers

On September 21, 2006, Mr. Harlan Schafir, Chief Operating Officer and Director of the Company, was given
notice that his employment agreement with the Company would not be renewed and that his employment with the
Company would cease as of the expiration of his Employment Agreement on September 30, 2006. Mr. Schafir was
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d .l -, - . . A
also notified that his term as.a Dlrector would also cease as of September 21, 2006, Tlns notlce c:01nc1ded with the
terms of M. Schafir’s Employment Agreement : ‘

L3

PSM Agreement AT n Tt - R

- , l # .

" As part of the merger agreements w1th PSM the 1 310 000 shares of the Company’s common stock held by Mr

* Schafir is subject to various option agreements that give Mr. Schafir the option to put any or all of the Company’s -
Stock received by him to a group of individuals including the Company’s majority sharcholder or to the Company,
according to the terms of these Agreements. The put price is dependent on PSM’s curnulative operating
performance from October 1, 2003 through September 30, 2006. The total valué of the puts was approximately
38,100 as Mr, Shafir’s shares achieved their maximum put value. On November 22, 2006 Mr. Schafir exercised
his put sale rights and sold all of his Company shares to Mr. Fortune..1,250,000 of the shares were pnced at $6.00
per share and 60,000 of the shares were priced at $]0 00 per share. ;

R
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
g None
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to
be disclosed in the reports the Company file pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specifiéd in the SEC’s rules and forms and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. The Company’s
management, including the Chief Executivé Officer and Chief Financial-Officer, recognizes that, because the design
iofranyesystemioficontrolsysibasedsinipart.upons certa:massumptnons;gbout the,l:kellhoodiof‘afutureLevents and;alsolls i
subject to other inherent limitations, disclosure controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated,

can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance of achieving the desired objectives.

Under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the Company has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures as of August 31, 2006. Based on this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, for the reasons more fully set forth below, the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures were not effective on August 31, 2006 in providing reasonable assurance that information
required to be disclosed in the reports the Company file pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 was
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms.

More specifically, the Company’s management has concluded that (i) additional accounting personnel were needed

both at the parent company level and at certain subsidiaries at August 31, 2006 to ensure that certain disclosure =l g
cofitrols and procedures were operating effectively; (ii) greater segregation of duties was needed in the accounting <
functions; and (iii) certain procedures should be documented to ensure that personnel tunover does not result in a ,g

failure of those procedures. The Company will continue to evaluate the need for additional staff at the parent and
subsidiary levels, but given the size and location of the Company’s subsidiaries the Company believes it will
continue to face challenges in attracting and retaining qualified personnel. Additionally, the Company is also in the
process of evaluating ways in which the impact of personnel turnover on the implementation of disclosure controls
and procedures can be reduced. Management continues to evaluate the effectiveness of this segregation and the
need for additional enhancements, including, but not limited to, the addition of accounting personnel.

Item 9B. Other Information

None -
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PART III

ltem 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

]

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the mformatton included in the Registrant’s

Proxy Statemem Wl‘llCh the Company will file with the SEC within 120 days after the end of fiscal 2006.

Item 11. Executive Compensation H

The information required by this item is incorperated by reference to the information included'in the Registrant’s
Proxy Slalemen% which the Company will file with the SEC within 120 days after the cnd of ﬁscal 2006.

s

WItemﬁIZ Securlty ‘OWi nershlp of Certain’ Beneficial Owners and: Management and Related Shareholder

Matters : l

‘
T

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information included in the Registrant’s

Proxy Statement, which the Company will file with the SEC within 120 days after the end of fiscal 2006.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
1
The 1nfom‘1atlon required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information included i in the Reglstrant s
Proxy Statement, which the Company will file with the SEC w:thm 120 days after the end of ﬁsca] 2006.
: Ig : . ' .
ltem 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Serv:ces - - '

i . -

The mformahon ‘required by thlS item is mcorporated by reference to the mformatlon mcluded in thc Registrant’s

N
i

: :Proxy Statement, -which the Company w:ll file with the SEC wnthm 120 days aﬁer the end of fi scal 2006
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Item 15.

The follo

PART IV

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

wing financial statements, schedules and exhibits are filed as part of this Report:

(1) Financial Statements. Reference is made to the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 42 of
this Report.

{2) All schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the required information;is.shown,inithezd 7

financial statements or the notes to the financial statements.

(3) List of Exhibits.

Exhibit
No. Description

3.1 Articles of Amendment to the Company’s Restated Articles of Incorporation (1)

10.1 Fortune Industries, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (2)

21.1 List of subsidiaries (3)

231 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (3) . - R pEE: e "

31.1 Certificate Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 by John F. Fisbeck. (3}

31.2 Certificate Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 by Amy E. Gallo. (3)

321 Certificate Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 by John F. Fisbeck. (3)

322 Certificate Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 by Amy E. Gallo. (3)

Notes to Exhibits:

1. This exhibit is incorporated by reference from the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated April 17,

2006.

2. This exhibit is incorporated by reference from the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, dated

3. This exhibit is incorporated by reference from the Company’s Current Report on Form 10-K dated August

April 18, 2006.

31, 2006.
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o SIGNATURES | B
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
: o _

FORTUNE TI\“DUS_TRIES,‘- INC,

Date: November 28, 2006 : B By: /s/John F. Fisbeck

John F. Fisbeck,
Chief Executive Officer

"

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has-been ‘signed below by the -
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.-' :

Date: November 28, 2006 ' Lo . " Js/ John F: Fisbeck

Jehn F, Fisbeck, Chief Executive Officer
and Director

Date: November 28, 2006 /s Amy E. Gallo L
Amy E. Gallo, Chief Financial Officer
Date: November 28, 2006 . . .« /s/ Carter M. Fortune - =
. ' T - Carter M. Fortune, Chairman’of the Board

Date; Noveml?er 28,2006 - o : /s/ P. ‘Andy i{avl _

I SR T " . R P. Andy Rayl, Director - :
Date: Novcﬂ:;gér 28, 2006 . . s/ David A.'Bef‘r‘v 3 -

] R

David A. Berry, Director -

" Date:. Noven{t;‘er_ 28,2006 - L . /s/ Nolan R. Lackey :

Nolan R. Lackey, Director’

v




W

FORTUNE INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE Il - YALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

s A s g, 4ALL0WANCE1FOR DOUBLEUL ACCOUNTS "
{DOLLARS INTHOUSANDS)= 5= =" =%

Balance at Balance at
Beginning Write-offs / End of

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts of Year Provision Recoveries Year

Year ended August 31, 2004 $ 338 $ 791 $ 17 $ 1,112

Year ended August 31, 2005 1,112 680 280 1,512

Year ended August 31, 2006 1,512 36 134 1,414
Balance at Balance at

Valuation Allowance on Beginning Provisions End of
Deferred Tax Asset of Year (Reduction) Year

Year ended August 31, 2004 $ 3,367 $ (1,272 $ 2,095

Year ended August 31, 2005 2,095 936 3,031

Year ended August 31, 2006 3,031 (920) 2,111

See accompanying Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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LCorporate uxecutives

k
John F. Fisbeck Amy E. Gallo Carter M. Fortune

President

President & Chief Chief Financial Treasurer
Executive Officer Officer |
: !
|
Board of Directors Operational Management Team
Transportation Infrastructure Wireless Infrastructure
Carter M. Fortune i
Chairman of thé Board Hank Sipe Carrie Fitzsimons
President Chief Operating Officer
i James H Drew Corp. Fortune Wireless, Inc.
S
John F. Fisbeck Electronics Integration
Pre5|de:nt & C'.h'ef Andrew Spence : Spence Gilmer
Executive Officer President President
J‘{ Kingston Sales Corp. : Commercial Solutions, Inc.
! George Summers
y President |
Nolan R. La‘ckey1 Audio - Video Revolution, Inc.
. ] '
President
Ackey Investment Company Ultraviolet Technologies
| ¢ ‘
! .Herm Haffner Mike Bain
{ 12 CEQ - Americas Managing Director - Europe & Asia
P Andy Rayl’ ‘Nor-Cote International, Inc. Nor-Cote International, Inc.
, Chief Operating Officer
: Technuity, Inc.
g ' Business Solutions
1 _ 5' ; Marc Fortune
' David A. Berry

Consu!tant & Former
Telecqmmunications
; Business Owner

L

i, Audit/Committee Member

: . o = Corporate Offices
i Chairman of Audit Committee

o = Distributors
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